
 

 
 

4 Executive Boulevard, Ste. 303, Suffern, NY 10901| 845-357-1510 | eFax 703-471-6676 

Environmental Consultants & Contractors 

May 13, 2024 
File No. 02220718.03 
 
Central Permit Processing Unit 
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection 
79 Elm Street 
Hartford, Connecticut 06106-5127  
 
Subject: Proposed SCRRRA Compost Facility; Preston, Connecticut 

Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 
Solid Waste Facility Permit Application Package 

  

On behalf of the Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority (SCRRRA), SCS 
Engineers (SCS) submits this Solid Waste Facility permit application package for the proposed 
facility. SCRRRA plans to construct and operate a new compost facility to compost food scraps 
(targeted feedstock) and wood chips, using aerated static pile (ASP) technology.   

The site address is 132 Route 12, Preston and is identified as Lot 132, Block 12.  The lot is owned 
by SCRRRA and is 33.67 acres in total.  A large portion of the lot is leased to Covanta for a waste-to-
energy facility.  The proposed compost facility will be located south of Brewster Road and will occupy 
about 7.5 acres. 

The proposed facility will be the first and only large-scale aerobic food waste composting facility in 
southeastern Connecticut, fulfilling an infrastructure need in a historically underserved region.  With 
this facility, SCRRRA will provide the infrastructure to create a sustainable, environmentally friendly 
system for diverting organics from the waste stream, to be turned into a high-quality soil amendment 
for farmers and gardeners.  Creation of this facility will not only save money for the SCRRRA member 
towns, in the face of rising waste management costs, but will also greatly benefit the environment in 
many ways, including reducing greenhouse gas emissions produced by trucks and sequestering 
carbon in the natural composting process. 

This application package includes: 

• A Permit Application Transmittal Form (DEP-APP-001; see Attachment 1) 

• A Permit Application for Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility (DEP-SW-
APP-100; see Attachment 2) and the following supporting documents: 
– Attachment A: Executive Summary 
– Attachment B: Applicant Compliance Information Form 
– Attachment C: USGS Map 
– Attachment D: Coastal Consistency Review Form 
– Attachment E: NDDB Information 
– Attachment H: Background Information 
– Attachment I: Statement of Consistency with the Solid Waste Management Plan 
– Attachment J: Business Information 
– Attachment K: Facility Plan 
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Permit Application Transmittal Form 

Please complete this transmittal form in accordance with the instructions in order to ensure the proper handling of your 
application(s) and the associated fee(s). Print legibly or type. 
 

Part I:  Applicant Information:  
• *If an applicant is a corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or a 

statutory trust, it must be registered with the Secretary of State. If applicable, applicant’s name shall be stated 
exactly as it is registered with the Secretary of State. 

• If an applicant is an individual, provide the legal name (include suffix) in the following format: First Name; Middle 
Initial; Last Name; Suffix (Jr, Sr., II, III, etc.). 

Applicant:  Southeast Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 
Mailing Address:  7 Hurlbutt Road 
City/Town: Gales Ferry State:  CT Zip Code:  06335 

Business Phone:  860-381-5558  ext.:        

Contact Person: David W. Aldridge Phone:  860-381-5558 ext. 201 
E-Mail:  daldridge@scrrra.org 

Applicant (check one):  individual  *business entity  federal agency  state agency  municipality  tribal 
*If a business entity, list type (e.g., corporation, limited partnership, etc.):       

 Check if any co-applicants. If so, attach additional sheet(s) with the required information as supplied above. 

Please provide the following information to be used for billing purposes only, if different: 

Company/Individual Name:       

Mailing Address:       
City/Town:       State:       Zip Code:        

Contact Person:       Phone:        ext.       

Part II: Project Information 

Brief Description of Project: (Example: Development of a 50 slip marina on Long Island Sound)  

Construction and operation of a SSO composting facility. 

Location (City/Town): Preston 

Other Project Related Permits (not included with this form): 
Permit 

Description 
Issuing 

Authority 
Submittal 

Date 
Issuance 

Date 
Denial 
Date  Permit # 

General Permit 
for Stormwater CT DEEP TBD       NA       

                                    

 

CPPU USE ONLY 

 
App #:________________________________ 
 
Doc #:________________________________ 
 
Check #:______________________________ 
 
_____________________________________
_ 
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Part III:  Individual Permit Application and Fee Information 
New, 
Mod. 

or Renew 
 

Individual Permit Applications 

 
Initial 
Fees 

No. of 
Permits 

Applied For 

 
 

Total Initial Fees 

Original + 
Required 
Copies 

 AIR EMISSIONS     

      New Source Review 
  Revision   minor mod $940.00             1 + 0 

      Title V Operating Permits 
  Revision   minor mod    non-minor mod none             1 + 0 

      Title IV none             1 + 0 
      Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) none             1 + 0 

 WATER DISCHARGES     
      To Groundwater $1300.00             1 + 1 
      To Sanitary Sewer (POTW) $1300.00             1 + 1 
      To Surface Water (NPDES) $1300.00             1 + 1 

 WATER PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT     
      Dam Safety none             1 + 2 

      
Domestic Sewage Treatment Works 
(For municipal and private sewage treatment facilities 
discharging to surface waters)  

$1300.00/ 
Mod = $940             1 + 1 

      Water Diversion (consumptive) and Registrations              1 + 5 
 LAND AND WATER RESOURCES     

      Flood Management Certification none             1 + 1 
      Flood Management Certification Exemption none             1 + 1 
      Inland Wetlands and Watercourses (State Agencies Only) none             1 + 5 
      Inland 401 Water Quality Certification none             1 + 5 
      FERC- Hydropower Projects- 401 Water Quality Certification none              
      Water Diversion (non-consumptive)              1 + 5 
      Certificate of Permission $375.00             1 + 2 
      Coastal 401 Water Quality Certification none             1 + 2 
      Structures and Dredging/and Fill/Tidal Wetlands $660.00             1 + 2 

 WASTE MANAGEMENT     
      Aerial Pesticide Application              1 + 2 
      Aquatic Pesticide Application $200.00             1 + 0 
      CGS Section 22a-454 Waste Facilities              1 + 1 
      Disruption of a Solid Waste Disposal Area $0             1 + 1 

      Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage and Disposal 
Facilities              1 + 1 

      Marine Terminal License $100.00             1 + 0 
      Stewardship $4000.00             1 + 1 
New Solid Waste Facilities  1 $7,750 1 + 1 

      Waste Transportation              1 + 0 
 
 

 
  Subtotal 1 $7,750  

 
 

GENERAL PERMITS and AUTHORIZATIONS Subtotals Page 3 &4 

Enter subtotals from Part IV, pages 3 - 6 of this form Subtotals Page 5 

 Subtotals Page 6 

0 0  
0 0  

 0 0  

 TOTAL 1 $7,750  

  Indicate whether municipal discount or state waiver applies. 
Less Applicable Discount 

 $7,750  

 
AMOUNT REMITTED $7,750  

Check # 12242 Check or money order should be made payable to: 
“Department of Energy and Environmental Protection” 

See fee schedule on individual application. 
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Part IV: General Permit Registrations and Requests for Other Authorizations 
Application and Fee Information  

 General Permits and Other Authorizations Initial 
Fees 

No. of 
Permits 

Applied For 
Total Initial Fees 

Original + 
Required 
Copies 

 AIR EMISSIONS     

 Limit Potential to Emit from Major Stationary Sources of Air 
Pollution $2760.00             1 + 0 

 Diagnostic and Therapeutic X-Ray Devices (Medical X-Ray) Registration $190.00/Xray 
device             1 + 0 

 Radioactive Materials and Industrial Device Registration (Ionizing 
Radiation) $200.00             1 + 0 

 Emergency/Temporary Authorization               
 License Revocation Request $0              

 Other, (please specify):                               

 WATER DISCHARGES     
 

 

Categorical Industry User to a POTW 
Discharges >  10,000 gpd 
Discharges < 10,0000 gpd 

 
$6250.00 
$3125.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

 
1 + 0 

 

 

Comprehensive Discharges to Surface Water and Groundwater 
Registration Only 
Approval of Registration by DEEP 

 
$625.00 

$1250.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

 
1 + 0 

 Domestic Sewage $625.00             1 + 0 
 Food Service Establishment Wastewater No Registration 

 
 
 

Groundwater Remediation Wastewater  
Registration Only 
Approval of Registration by DEEP 

 
$625.00 

$1250.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

 
1 + 0 

 
 
 

Miscellaneous Discharges of Sewer Compatible Wastewater 
Registration Only 
Approval of Registration by DEEP 

 
$500.00 

$1000.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

 
1 + 0 

 Nitrogen Discharges No Registration 
 Point Source Discharges from Application of Pesticides $200.00             1 + 0 
 Stormwater Associated with Commercial Activities $300.00             1 + 0 

 

 

Stormwater Associated with Industrial Activities 
No Exposure Certification 
<50 employees–see general permit for additional requirements 
>50 employees–see general permit for additional requirements 

 
$250.00 
$500.00 

$1000.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

1 + 0 

 Stormwater & Dewatering Wastewaters-Construction Activities              1 + 0 

 Stormwater from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems 
(MS4) $625.00             1 + 0 

 Stormwater from DOT Separate Storm Sewer Systems (DOT MS4) $0             1 + 0 
 Subsurface Sewage Disposal Systems Serving Existing Facilities              1 + 0 
 Swimming Pool Wastewater - Public Pools and Contractors $500.00             1 + 0 

 
 
 

Vehicle Maintenance Wastewater 
Registration Only 
Approval of Registration by DEEP 

 
$625.00 

$1250.00 

 
      
      

 
      
      

1 + 0 

 Emergency/Temporary Authorization -  Discharge to POTW $1500.00             1 + 0 
 Emergency/Temporary Authorization -  Discharge to Surface Water $1500.00             1 + 0 
 Emergency/Temporary Authorization -  Discharge to Groundwater $1500.00             1 + 0 
 Other, (please specify):                               

Note: Carry subtotals over to Part III, page 2 of this form. Subtotal 0 $0  

 See fee schedule on registration/application.   Contact the specific permit program for this information. 
 (Contact numbers are provided in the instructions) 
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Part IV: General Permit Registrations and Requests for Other Authorizations (continued) 

 General Permits and Other Authorizations Initial  
Fees 

No. of 
Permits 

Applied For 
Total Initial Fee 

Original + 
Required 
Copies 

 AQUIFER PROTECTION PROGRAM     
 Registration for Regulated Activities $625.00             1 + 0 
 Permit Application to Add a Regulated Activity $1250.00             1 + 0 
 Exemption Application from Registration $1250.00             1 + 0 

 WATER PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT 

 Dam Safety Repair and Alteration: Non Filing  No Registration 

 Dam Safety Repair and Alteration: Filing – No PE $100.00             1 + 0 
 Dam Safety Repair and Alteration: Filing – PE $200.00             1 + 0 
 Dam Safety Repair and Alteration: Approval of Filing $250.00             1 + 0 
 Diversion of Remediation Groundwater No Registration 

 Diversion of Water for Consumptive Use: Reauthorization 
Categories $2500.00             1 + 0 

 Diversion of Water for Consumptive Use: Authorization Required $2500.00             1 + 4 
 Diversion of Water for Consumptive Use: Filing Only $1500.00             1 + 1 
 Water Resource Construction Activities              1 +0 
 Emergency/Temporary Authorization               
 Notice of High Hazard Dam or a Significant Hazard Dam $0             1 +0 

 Other, (please specify):                               

LAND AND WATER RESOURCES 
 Minor Coastal Structures   

 4/40 Docks/Access Stairs  $700.00             1 + 1 
 Beach Grading No Registration 
 Buoys or Markers No Registration 
 Experimental Activities/Scientific Monitoring Devices No Registration 
 Harbor Moorings No Registration 
 Non-harbor Moorings  $250.00             1 + 1                
 Osprey Platforms and Perch Poles No Registration                
 Pump-out Facilities No Registration 
 Swim Floats No Registration 

 Coastal Maintenance  
 Backflow Prevention Structure  No Registration    
 Beach Grading/Raking No Registration    
 Catch Basin Cleaning No Registration    
 Coastal Remedial Activities Required by Order  $700.00             1 + 1                
 Coastal Restoration No Registration 
 DEEP Boat Launch Infrastructures No Registration 
 DOT Infrastructures No Registration 
 Marina and Mooring Field Reconfiguration  $700.00             1 + 1 
 Minor Seawall Repair No Registration 
 Placement of Cultch No Registration 

 Reconstruction of Legally Existing 
Structure/Obstruction/Encroachment 

$300.00             1 + 1 

 Removal of Derelict Structures No Registration 
 Residential Flood Hazard Mitigation  $100.00             1 + 1 
 Temporary Access of Construction Vehicles/Equipment No Registration 
 Programmatic General Permit              1 + 1 
 Emergency/Temporary Authorization               
 Other, (please specify):                               

Note: Carry subtotals over to Part III, page 2 of this form. Subtotal   0 0  

 See fee schedule on registration/application.   Contact the specific permit program for this information. 
 (Contact numbers are provided in the instructions) 
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Part IV: General Permit Registrations and Requests for Other Authorizations (continued) 

 General Permits and Other Authorizations Initial  
Fees 

No. of 
Permits 

Applied For 
Total Initial Fee 

Original + 
Required 
Copies 

 WASTE MANAGEMENT     

 Addition of Grass Clippings at Registered Leaf Composting 
Facilities $500.00             1 + 0 

 Beneficial Use Determination              1 + 0 
 Collection and Storage of Post Consumer Paint $0             1 + 0 
 Connecticut Solid Waste Demonstration Project $1000.00             1 + 0 

 Construct and Operate a Commercial Facility for the Management of 
Recyclable Materials and Certain Solid Wastes (Commercial GP) Initial/Mod Fee    

 Asbestos Containing Materials $1,250.00/$ 625             1 + 0 
 Ash Residue $1,250.00/$ 625             1 + 0 
 Clean Wood: Tier III $500.00/$250             1 + 0 
 Clean Wood: Tier II $250.00/$125             1 + 0 
 Construction and Demolition Waste: Tier III  $1,250.00/$625             1 + 0 
 Construction and Demolition Waste: Tier II $500.00/$250             1 + 0 
 Non-RCRA Hazardous Waste/Compatible Solid Wastes $1,250.00/$625             1 + 0 
 Recyclables $500.00/$250             1 + 0 
 Universal Wastes/Compatible Solid Wastes $1,250.00/$625             1 + 0 

 Contaminated Soil and/or Staging Management (Staging/Transfer)     
 
 
 
 

New Registrations 
New Approval of Registrations 
Renewal of Registrations  
Renewal of Approval of Registrations 

$250.00 
$1500.00 
$250.00 
$750.00 

      
      
      
      

      
      
      
      

1 + 0 
1 + 0 
1 + 0 
1 + 0 

 Disassembling Used Electronics $2000.00             1 + 0 
 Leaf Composting Facility $0             1 + 1 
 Municipal Transfer Station $800.00             1 + 1 

 One Day Collection of Certain Wastes and Household Hazardous 
Waste  $1000.00             1 + 0 

 Sheet Leaf Composting Notification $0              
 Special Waste Authorization     

 

Landfill or RRF Disposal 
Asbestos Disposal 
homeowner 

$660.00 
$300.00 

$0 

      
      
      

      
      
      

1 + 0 

 Storage and Processing of Asphalt Roofing Shingle Waste  $2500.00             1 + 0 
 Storage and Processing of Scrap Tires for Beneficial Use $1250.00             1 + 0 
 Emergency/Temporary Authorization               
 Other, (please specify):                               

 REMEDIATION     

 In Situ Groundwater Remediation:  Enhance Aerobic Biodegradation              1 + 2 

 In Situ Groundwater Remediation:  Chemical Oxidation $500.00             1 + 0 

 Emergency/Temporary Authorization               

Note: Carry subtotals over to Part III, page 2 of this form. Subtotal 0 0  

See fee schedule on registration/application.    Contact the specific permit program for this information. 
 (Contact numbers are provided in the instructions) 

 
Affirmative Action, Equal Employment Opportunity and Americans with Disabilities 

The Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity 
Employer that is committed to complying with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 
Please contact us at (860) 418-5910 or deep.accommodations@ct.gov if you: have a disability and need a 
communication aid or service; have limited proficiency in English and may need information in another language; 
or if you wish to file an ADA or Title VI discrimination complaint. 

mailto:deep.accommodations@ct.gov
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Permit Application for Construction and 
Operation of a Solid Waste Facility 
 
 
 

Use the “Instructions” document (DEP-SW-INST-100) to assist you in completing this form.   Print or type unless 
otherwise noted. Your submittal to DEP must include:  Permit Application Transmittal Form (DEP-APP-001); 
Completed Application Form (this form, DEP-SW-APP-100); all required supporting documents; and Fee. 
 
Part I:  Application and Permit Type 

In the table below, check only one box in the left column to identify the type of solid waste facility for which you 
are applying for a permit. Complete one permit application for each solid waste facility requiring a permit. 

√ Solid Waste Facility Types 
(Check the type of permit you are applying for) 

Initial Fee 
DEP Use Only 

Application No. Permit No. 

Solid Waste Disposal Area/Landfill 
 Municipal Solid Waste  $37,750.00   

 Residue or other Solid Waste $26,500.00   

 Closure Plan - Active Site $610.00   

 Closure Plan - Inactive Site $4,000.00   

 Closure Plan – Unpermitted Site $3,000.00   
Volume Reduction Plant 

 Resources Recovery Facility $138,250.00   

 Intermediate Processing Center $14,500.00   

 Composting <100 Tons/day  
Source Separated Organic Material $7,750.00   

 Composting >100 tons/day 
Source Separated Organic Material $10,000.00   

 Construction and Demolition Waste  
<100 tons/day $7,750.00   

 Construction and Demolition Waste  
>100 tons/day $14,500.00   

 Land Clearing/Clean Wood Processing $10,000.00   

 Sludge Processing $7,750.00  
 
 

 Other (i.e., Shredder, Baler, Compactor, etc.) 
<100 tons/day (Please specify type) 
      

$10,000.00 
  

 Other (i.e., Shredder, Baler, Compactor, etc.) 
>100 tons/day (Please specify type) 
      

$14,500.00 
  

 Renewal - Resources Recovery Facility $1,400.00   

 Renewal - Composting, 
Source Separated Organic Material $330.00 

 
  

 Renewal - All Others $660.00   

 



 
Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance  
DEP-SW-APP-100 2 of 13 Rev. 09/16/10 

Part I:  Application and Permit Type (continued) 

 Solid Waste Facility Types 
(Check the type of permit you are applying for) 

Initial Fee 
DEP Use Only 

Application No. Permit No. 

Transfer Stations 

 <75 tons/day $7,750.00   

 >75 and <150 tons/day $10,000.00   

 >150 tons/day $11,500.00   

 Renewal $660.00   
Biomedical Waste Treatment Facility 

 New Application $19,000.00   

 Renewal $660.00   
Minor Permit Amendments 

 Solid Waste Disposal Area/Landfill  $1,375.00   
 All Others (Please specify type of facility) 

      $940.00 

  

Permit Modifications 
 Regulatory Requirement Modification 

A modification to an existing permit to authorize a 
change to satisfy new statute, regulation, permit 
or order. 

(Please specify type of facility 

      

25% of the 
standard 

application fee, 
maximum of 
$11,500.00 

  

 Permittee Initiated Modification 
A modification to an existing permit to authorize a 
change in the approved or existing design, 
capacity, process or operation of the facility. 

(Please specify type of facility) 

      

50% of the 
standard 

application fee, 
maximum of 
$30,250.00 

 
 

  

 Landfill Closure Plan Modification $940.00   

Existing Permit Information 

If this application is for a renewal, minor amendment or modification of an existing permit or the facility was 
previously licensed by a general permit or an emergency or temporary authorization, provide: 

Permit or Authorization Number(s) Expiration Date Solid Waste Facility Type 
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Part II: Fee Information 

The initial fee, as indicated on pages 1 and 2 of this application, is the total permit application fee due for a 
new permit or for a modification of an existing permit to construct, unless otherwise specified in the general 
statutes or in regulations adopted pursuant thereto. The initial fee for the permit type you are applying for is to 
be submitted with the application.  The application will not be processed without the initial fee. 
 
The fee for municipalities is 50% of the listed rates on pages 1 and 2 of this application (see section 22a-6(b)  
CGS). 

Part III:  Applicant Information 

1. Applicant:  Complete the information on the Applicant as indicated on the Permit Application Transmittal 
Form (DEP-APP-001): 

Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 

Mailing Address: 7 Hurlbutt Road 

City/Town: Gales Ferry State: CT Zip Code:   06335 

Business Phone:   860-381-5558 ext. 201 Fax:         

Contact Person: David W. Aldridge Title: Executive Director 
Email address:  daldridge@scrrra.org 

 
Property Interest:  Check the appropriate boxes that represents the Applicant's interest in property at 
which the proposed activity is to be located: 

  site owner   option holder   lessee 

  easement holder   operator   other (specify)        

 Check here if there are co-applicants.  If so, label and attach additional sheet(s) with the required 
information as requested above. 

 
2. Primary contact for this application if not contact person named in (1) above (e.g., environmental 

consultant, engineer, etc.): 

Firm Name: SCS Engineers 

Mailing Address: 4 Executive Blvd., Suite 303 

City/Town: Suffern State: NY Zip Code:   10901 

Business Phone:   845-357-1052 ext.       Fax:         

Contact Person: Greg McCarron Title: Project Director 
Email address: gmccarron@scsengineers.com 
 

3. List attorney or other representative, if applicable:
 

Firm Name: Halloran & Sage 

Mailing Address: One Goodwin Square, 225 Asylum Street 
City/Town: Hartford State: CT Zip Code:   06103 
Business Phone:  860-297-4684 ext.       cell:      Fax:        

Attorney Name: Richard L. Barger 
Email address: barger@halloransage.com 
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Part III:  Applicant Information (continued) 

4. Facility or Equipment Operator, if not  the applicant:: 

Firm Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:       ext.       Fax:        

Name of Facility Foreman or Lead (on Site):       Title:       
On-Site Phone:       
Operator Type (check one): 

  Individual   Private company   Federal   State   Municipal 

 

5. Owner of the property on which the Facility will be located: 

Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 

Mailing Address: 7 Hurlbutt Road 

City/Town: Preston State: CT Zip Code:   06335 
Business Phone:  860-381-5558 ext. 201 Fax:        

Contact Person: David W. Aldridge Title: Executive Director 
Email address: daldridge@scrrra.org 
 

6. Connecticut Licensed Professional Engineer (P.E.): 

The applicant must retain the services of a qualified P.E. to prepare and certify the necessary engineering 
drawings including the operation and management plan for the facility. 
 
Name: Greg McCarron 

Mailing Address: SCS Engineers 4 Executive Blvd., Suite 303 

City/Town: Suffern State: NY Zip Code:   10901 
Business Phone:  845-357-1052 ext.       Fax:        
Email address: gmccarron@scsengineers.com 
Connecticut PE Registration Number: 0037055 
 

7. List any engineer(s) or other consultant(s) employed or retained to assist in preparing this submittal.  

Firm Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Title:       
Email address:       
Service Provided:       

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 
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Part IV:  Site Information 

1. FACILITY NAME AND LOCATION 

 Name of Facility( if applicable): SCRRRA Compost Facility 
 Street Address or  Location Description: 132 Route 12 

City/Town: Preston State: CT Zip Code:   06365 
Latitude and longitude of the exact location of the proposed activity in degrees, minutes, and seconds: 

Latitude: 41°28'27.0"N Longitude: 72°04'03.8"W 
 
Method of determination (check one):   GPS   USGS Map 

  Other (please specify):  Google Maps 

If a USGS Map was used, provide the quadrangle name:  Uncasville 
 

2. INDIAN LANDS:  Is or will the Facility be located on federally recognized Indian lands?    Yes     No 
 
3. COASTAL AREA: Is the proposed activity located within the coastal boundary as delineated on DEP 

approved coastal boundary maps?   Yes   No 

If yes, and this application is for a new facility or modification for an existing facility, you must submit a 
Coastal Consistency Review Form (DEP-APP-004) with your application as “Attachment D”.  

 
4. ENDANGERED OR THREATENED SPECIES:  Is the project site located within an area identified as a 

habitat for endangered, threatened or special concern species as identified on the "State and Federal 
Listed Species and Natural Communities Map"?      Yes   No Date of Map:   2023 

If yes, complete and submit a Connecticut Natural Diversity Data Base (CT NDDB) Review Request Form 
(DEP-APP-007) to the address specified on the form. Please note NDDB review generally takes 4 to 6 
weeks and may require additional documentation from the applicant. DEP strongly recommends 
that applicants complete this process before submitting the subject application. 
When submitting this application form, include copies of any correspondence to and from the NDDB, 
including copies of the completed CT NDDB Review Request Form, as Attachment E. 

For more information visit the DEP website at www.ct.gov/dep/endangeredspecies (Review/Data 
Requests) 
or call the NDDB at 860-424-3011. 
 

5. AQUIFER PROTECTION AREAS:  Is the site located within a town required to establish Aquifer 
Protection Areas, as defined in section 22a-354a through 354bb of the General Statutes (CGS)? 

   Yes   No  

 If yes, is the site within an area identified on a Level A or Level B map?   Yes   No 

To view the applicable list of towns and maps visit the DEP website at www.ct.gov/dep/aquiferprotection 

To speak with someone about the Aquifer Protection Areas, call 860-424-3020. 
 

6. CONSERVATION OR PRESERVATION RESTRICTION:  Is the property subject to a conservation or 
preservation restriction?   Yes   No 
If Yes, proof of written notice of this application to the holder of such restriction or a letter from the holder 
of such restriction verifying that this application is in compliance with the terms of the restriction, must be 
submitted as Attachment F.   

http://www.ct.gov/dep/endangeredspecies
http://www.ct.gov/dep/aquiferprotection
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Part IV:  Site Information (continued)

7. ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE COMMUNITY:  Does the site include an applicable facility which is located 
within an Environmental Justice Community, as defined in the Environmental Justice Public Participation 
Guidelines (Guidelines) www.ct.gov/dep/environmentaljustice?   Yes   No 

If yes and this application is for a new or expanded permit, you must prepare an Environmental Justice 
Public Participation Plan (DEP-EJ-PLAN-001) in accordance with the Guidelines and submit such plan to: 

Environmental Justice Program 
Office of the Commissioner 
Department of Environmental Protection 
79 Elm Street 
Hartford, CT 06106-5127 

prior to submitting this application. Once you have received written approval for your Environmental 
Justice Public Participation Plan from the DEP, submit this completed application with a copy of the Plan 
approval as Attachment G. 
 

8. WETLAND AREA:  Is the site located in a wetland area?   Yes   No 
 
9a. WATER CLASSIFICATION: Ground water classification of the site: GA 
9b. SURFACE WATER BODIES:  Identify surface water bodies which may be impacted: (Attach additional 

sheets if necessary) 

Name: Thames River Surface Water Classification: SB 
Name:       Surface Water Classification:       
Name:       Surface Water Classification:       
Name:       Surface Water Classification:       
 

http://www.ct.gov/dep/environmentaljustice
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Part V:  Facility Information 

1. DISPOSAL AREA (Landfill):  Complete this item if this application is for the construction and operation 
of a proposed new landfill, or the renewal or modification of an existing landfill permit. 

 LANDFILL TYPE (Check one):   Municipal Solid Waste   Residue or other Solid Waste 

a. New Landfill 
(i) Proposed Site Capacity (cubic yards (cy):       

(ii) Estimated Operating Life (years):       

(iii) Acreage of Property (acres):       

(iv) Proposed Acreage for Waste Disposal (acres):       
 

b. Existing Landfill (Permit Modification) 
(i) Current Permitted Site Capacity (cy):       
(ii) Remaining Permitted Site Capacity (cy):       

(iii) Proposed Increase in Site Capacity (cy):       

(iv) Current Operating Life: (as noted in previous permit application) (years):       

(v) Remaining Operating Life (years):       

(vi) Proposed Increase in Operating Life (years):        

(vii) Acreage of Property (acres):       

(viii) Current Permitted Acreage Remaining for Waste Disposal (acres):       

(ix) Proposed Increase in Acreage for Waste Disposal (acres):       

2. SOLID WASTE FACILITY: Complete this item if this application is for the construction and operation of a 
proposed new facility, or the renewal or modification of an existing facility permit. 

 a. FACILITY TYPE (Check one): 

   Volume Reduction Plant (VRP)   Transfer Station   Biomedical Waste Facility 

 If you checked (VRP) indicate which type of VRP:   

  Resource Recovery Facility   Intermediate Processing Center 

  Composting (source separated organic material)    Construction and Demolition Waste 

  Land Clearing/Clean Wood Processing   Sludge Processing 

  Other (specify):        

 

Note: Proposed solid waste facility’s that are designed to use complicated processing equipment systems 
or new technologies, may be required to conduct equipment shakedown and performance testing.  
After the issuance of the proposed facility’s Permit to Construct and the completion and approval of 
the facility’s construction, DEP will issue a Temporary Permit to Operate (TPO) in order to complete 
the necessary equipment and performance testing.  DEP will develop the final Permit to Operate 
based upon the P.E. certified test report(s). 
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Part V:  Facility Information (continued)  

2b. Complete this item if this application is for the construction and operation of a proposed new 
facility, or the renewal or modification of an existing facility permit. 

 
Proposed New 

Facility 

Existing Facility 

Current Permit *Proposed Permit 
Modification 

(i) Processing Capacity (tons per day) 55             

(ii) Storage Capacity (cubic yards) 
(cy) 15,000             

(iii) Acreage of Property (acres) 33.7             

(iv) Acreage Used by Facility (acres) 7.5             

(v) Operation (days/hours) 5/8             

(vi) Processing Equipment:: In the 
rows across and below, list the 
types, sizes, number and design 
parameters of principle fixed 
equipment and rolling stock used. 
(i.e., chippers, loaders, etc.) 

One (1) front-end 
loader             

One (1) trommel screen                   

One (1) aeration blower                   

One (1) stacking conveyor                   

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 

(vii) * Proposed Permit Modification Type(s) (check all that apply): 

   Equipment   Facility Design   Operations 

   Other (please specify):        
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Part V:  Facility Information (continued)  

Facility Type (check one):    Landfill   VRP   Transfer Station   Biomedical Waste Facility 

3. SOLID WASTE STORAGE VOLUMES: List the maximum on-site storage and storage method for each 
type of unprocessed and processed material.  Storage of most waste materials require use of covers, 
secondary containment, impervious surfaces, and other measures as needed to prevent pollution.     

Type of Solid Waste Maximum Volume of On-Site 
Storage 

Storage Method 
*waste must be stored under cover 

*Antifreeze Liquid (gallons) (gl)             

Appliances with CFC (Freon) (units)             

*Asbestos Containing Material (cy)             

*Batteries, Lead-Acid (vehicle) (units)             

*Biomedical Waste (cy)             

*Capacitators, Flourescent Lght Ballasts 
(only from residential sources) (gl)             

*Cardboard (cy)             

*Casting Sand (cy)             

*Coal Fly Ash (cy)             

*Construction and Demolition Waste (cy)             

*Contaminated Dredge Spoils (cy)             

*Contaminated Soils (cy)             

*Covered Electronic Devices (kg) or (cy)             

*Food/Beverage Containers and Plastic 
Containers (cy)             

*Industrial (e.g., slag, sludge) (cy)             

*Metal, Scrap (cy)             

*Mixed Municipal Solid Waste (cy)             

*Oil Filters (cy)             

*Oil, Used (gl)             

Oversized MSW (furniture, mattresses, 
rugs and carpets) (cy)             
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Part V:  Facility Information (continued) 

Facility Type (check one):    Landfill   VRP   Transfer Station   Biomedical Waste Facility 

Type of Solid Waste Maximum Volume of On-Site 
Storage 

Storage Method 
*waste must be stored under cover 

*Paints and Stains (gl)             

*Paper (cy)             

Propane Tanks with Valves (units)             

*Residue (i.e., ash generated from 
the combustion process at a 
Resource recovery facility) (cy) 

            

*Scrap Tires (crumb rubber) (cy)             

*Scrap Tires (shreds) (cy)             

*Scrap Tires (whole) (cy)             

*Sludge Ash (cy)             

*Sludge (drinking water treatment 
plant; e.g., alum)             

*Sludge (wastewater treatment 
plant) (cy)             

Swap Shop:  Household Items             

Textiles and Shoes             

Wood, Clean – processed (wood 
chips) (cy) 3,000       

Wood, Clean – unprocessed (land 
clearing debris, brush, pallets) (cy)             

*Wood, Treated (painted, 
creosoted, etc.) (cy)             

Yard Waste (leaves and grass 
clippings) (cy)             

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 
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Part V:  Facility Information (continued) 

Facility Type (check one):    Landfill   VRP   Transfer Station   Biomedical Waste Facility 

Type of Solid Waste Maximum Volume of On-Site 
Storage 

Storage Method 
*waste must be stored under cover 

Universal Waste 

Note:  the combined weight of all 
universal waste stored on-site shall 
not exceed 5000 kg 

  

*Electronics, Used (kg)             

*Mercury Containing Lamps (kg)             

*Mercury Containing 
Thermometers, Thermostats 
(kg) 

            

*Batteries, Mixed (kg)             

Other material(s) (kg/lbs/cy/gl/units)             

Food Waste, cy 100       

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 
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Part VI:  Supporting Documents 

Be sure to read the instructions (DEP-SW-INST-100) for information on completing the following attachments. 
Check the appropriate box for each attachment being submitted to verify that all applicable attachments have 
been submitted.  When submitting any supporting documents:  

(1) label each document with its respective attachment letter (e.g., Attachment A, etc.);  
(2) include the applicant’s  name as entered on Part I of the Permit Application Transmittal Form.  

 Attachment A: Executive Summary  

 
 Attachment B: Applicant Compliance Information (DEP-APP-002) 

 
 Attachment C: An 8-1/2" x 11" copy of the relevant portion or an original of a United States Geological 

Survey (USGS) Topographic Quadrangle Map (scale: 1:24,000) with the regulated 
activity or project site outlined or pinpointed, as appropriate. (Not required for 
applications to construct and operate a solid waste disposal area (landfill).) 

 
 Attachment D: Coastal Consistency Review Form (DEP-APP-004)  

 
 Attachment E: CT NDDB Information 

 
 Attachment F: Conservation or Preservation Restriction Information, if applicable. 

 
 Attachment G: Copy of the Written Environmental Justice Public Participation Plan Approval Letter, if 

applicable. (Also, a final report documenting the implementation of the Environmental 
Justice Public Participation Plan is to be prepared and submitted before the Department 
issues a Notice of Tentative Determination.) 

 
 Attachment H: Background Information (DEP-SW-APP-101) 

 
 Attachment I: Statement of Consistency with Solid Waste Management Plan (DEP-SW-APP-102) 

 
 Attachment J: Business Information (DEP-SW-APP-103) 

 
 Attachment K: Facility Plan (i.e. transfer stations; volume reduction plants “resource recovery 

facility, composting, construction and demolition waste, land clearing/clean 
wood, sludge processing, intermediate processing center”; biomedical waste 
treatment facility)  

 
 Engineering drawings such as area map/site plan/architectural and mechanical 

drawings; cross sections and specifications; mass balance diagrams; etc. 
 

 Operation and Management Plan 
 

 Attachment L: Determination of Need Information (DEP-SW-APP-104) (Required only for applications 
to construct and operate ash residue and mixed municipal solid waste landfills, 
construction or expansion of resources recovery facilities and mixed municipal solid 
waste composting facilities.) 

 
 Attachment M: Checklist for Solid Waste Disposal Areas (Landfills) (DEP-SW/WD-APP-110)  

 
 Attachment N: Certification Regarding Activities Previously Licensed by DEP  (DEP-SW-APP-105) 





ATTACHMENT A – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Table of Contents of the Application Package:  

1. The Permit Application Transmittal Form;  
2. The Permit Application for Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility;  
3. Supporting documents, including: 

 
• Executive Summary – Attachment A – 2 pages. 
• Applicant Compliance Information Form - Attachment B – 2 pages. 
• United States Geological Survey (USGS) Map - Attachment C – 1 page. 
• Coastal Consistency Review Form - Attachment D – 5 pages. 
• CT NDDB Information - Attachment E – 2 pages. 
• Background Information - Attachment H – 7 pages. 
• Statement of Consistency with the Solid Waste Management Plan - Attachment I – 4 

pages. 
• Business Information - Attachment J – 2 pages, plus Attachments 1-6. 
• Facility Plan - Attachment K – 26 pages, including engineering drawings and an 

operations and maintenance plan. 

Project Description 
SCRRRA plans to construct and operate a new compost facility, at the proposed site, to compost 
food scraps (targeted feedstock) and wood chips, using aerated static pile (ASP) technology.  
Drawings and calculations are provided with the application. 

The site address is 132 Route 12, Preston and is identified as Lot 132, Block 12.  The lot is owned 
by SCRRRA and is 33.67 acres in total.  A large portion of the lot is leased to Covanta for a waste-to-
energy facility.  The compost facility is located south of Brewster Road and will occupy about 7.5 
acres.   

The proposed facility will be the first and only large-scale aerobic food waste composting facility in 
southeastern Connecticut, fulfilling an infrastructure need in a historically underserved region.  With 
this facility, SCRRRA will provide the infrastructure to create a sustainable, environmentally friendly 
system for diverting organics from the waste stream, to be turned into a high-quality soil amendment 
for farmers and gardeners.  Creation of this facility will not only save money for the SCRRRA member 
towns, in the face of rising waste management costs, but will also greatly benefit the environment in 
many ways, including reducing greenhouse gas emissions produced by trucks and sequestering 
carbon in the natural composting process. 

The overarching goal of this facility is to provide our region with the large-scale infrastructure 
necessary to divert organics from the waste stream and process them into nutrient rich compost for 
the local community.  The SCRRRA facility will:  

• Establish compost infrastructure that will facilitate diversion of food waste from the 
waste stream,  

• Establish large-scale capacity for organics recycling,  
• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions created by incineration and trucking of ash out of 

the region and trucking of purchased soil amendments into the region,  



• Sequester carbon in the natural process of composting,  
• Provide a local source of soil amendment/fertilizer alternative, some of which will be 

provided free to environmental justice communities for their community gardens,  
• Reduce the amount of waste being sent to incinerators and landfills,  
• Educate our communities about organics recycling and compost; and  
• Save our town’s money by lowering waste disposal costs. 
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Applicant Compliance Information 
 

 

Applicant Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 

Mailing Address: 7 Hurlbutt Road 

City/Town: Preston State: CT Zip Code: 06335 

Business Phone: 860-381-5558 ext.:       

Contact Person: David W. Aldridge Phone: 860-381-5558 ext. 201 

*E-mail: daldridge@scrrra.org 

If you answer yes to any of the questions below, you must complete the Table of Enforcement Actions on 
the reverse side of this sheet as directed in the instructions for your permit application. 

 
A. During the five years immediately preceding submission of this application, has the applicant been 

convicted in any jurisdiction of a criminal violation of any environmental law? 

 Yes  No 
 
B. During the five years immediately preceding submission of this application, has a civil penalty been 

imposed upon the applicant in any state, including Connecticut, or federal judicial proceeding for any 
violation of an environmental law? 

 Yes  No 
 
C. During the five years immediately preceding submission of this application, has a civil penalty exceeding 

five thousand dollars been imposed on the applicant in any state, including Connecticut, or federal 
administrative proceeding for any violation of an environmental law? 

 Yes  No 
 
D. During the five years immediately preceding submission of this application, has any state, including 

Connecticut, or federal court issued any order or entered any judgement to the applicant concerning a 
violation of any environmental law? 

 Yes  No 
 
E. During the five years immediately preceding submission of this application, has any state, including 

Connecticut, or federal administrative agency issued any order to the applicant concerning a violation of 
any environmental law? 

 Yes  No 

DEEP ONLY 
App. No.  _____________________________ 
Co./Ind. No.  ___________________________ 
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Table of Enforcement Actions 
 

(1) 
Type of Action 

(2a) 
Date 

Commenced 

(2b) 
Date 

Terminated 
(3) 

Jurisdiction 
(4) 

Case/Docket/ 
Order No. 

(5) 
Description of Violation 

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

                                    

  Check the box if additional sheets are attached. Copies of this form may be duplicated for additional space.  



0996gpm
Callout
Project Location
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Coastal Consistency Review Form 
 
Please complete this form in accordance with the instructions (DEEP-
INST-004).  Print or type unless otherwise noted. 
 
Part I:  Project Information 

1. Applicant Name:  Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery 
Authority 

Mailing Address:  7 Hurlbutt Road 

City/Town: Preston State:  CT Zip Code:  06335 

Business Phone:  860-381-5558 ext.:       Fax:        

Contact Person: David W. Aldridge Phone:  860-381-5558 ext. 201 

E-mail:  daldridge@scrrra.org 

2. Preparer Name:  SCS Engineers 

Mailing Address:  4 Executive Blvd., Suite 303 

City/Town: Suffern State:  NY Zip Code:  10901 

Business Phone:  845-357-1052 ext.:       Fax:        

Contact Person: Greg McCarron Phone:  845-357-1052 ext.       

E-mail:  gmccarron@scsengineers.com 

3. Street Address or Description of Location of the Project Site:  

32 Route 12 
 
 

City or Town: Preston 
 
4. Brief Project Description: 

Construction and operation of a composting facility. 

5. Is the project located within the coastal boundary as defined in CGS section 22a-94(b)? 
 Yes  No 

If you answered Yes to this question, complete the entire form. 

If you answered No to this question, and your project is located in a coastal area, skip Parts II through V 
and complete Parts VI, VII and VIII. 

DEEP USE ONLY 
 

Application No.: 

Analyst Assigned: 

Date Received (LWRD): 
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Part I:  Project Information (continued) 

Has an endangered or threatened species review for this proposed activity been prepared or 
submitted as part of another DEEP license application?     Yes   No 

If Yes, proceed to Part II; if No, complete the question below. 

6. ENDANGERED OR THREATENED SPECIES:  According to the most current "State and Federal Listed 
Species and Natural Communities Map", is the activity which is the subject of this application located 
within an area identified as a habitat for endangered, threatened or special concern species?     

  Yes   No Date of Map:   2023 

If yes, complete and submit a Request for NDDB State Listed Species Review Form (DEEP-APP-007) to 
the address specified on the form, prior to submitting this application. Please note NDDB review 
generally takes 4 to 6 weeks and may require additional documentation from the applicant. A copy 
of the completed Request for NDDB State Listed Species Review Form and the CT NDDB response 
must be submitted with this completed application. 
For more information visit the DEEP website at www.ct.gov/deep/nddbrequest or call the NDDB at 860-
424-3011. 

 

Part II:  Identification of Applicable Coastal Use and Activity Policies and Standards 
Identify all statutory goals and policies in or referenced by Section 22a-92 of the Coastal Management Act 
applicable to the proposed activities by checking the applicable boxes in the following table. 

  

 General Development* - CGS Sections 22a-92(a)(1), 22a-92(a)(2), 22a-92(a)(9), 22a-92(a)(9) 

 Water-Dependent Uses - CGS Sections 22a-92(a)(3), 22a-92(b)(1)(A) 

 Ports and Harbors - CGS Section 22a-92(b)(1)(C) 

 Coastal Structures and Filling - CGS Section 22a-92(b)(1)(D) 

 Dredging and Navigation - CGS Sections 22a-92(c)(1)(C), 22a-92(c)(1)(D) 

 Boating - CGS Section 22a-92(b)(1)(G) 

 Fisheries - CGS Section 22a-92(c)(1)(I) 

 Coastal Recreation And Access - CGS Sections 22a-92(a)(6), 22a-92(C)(1)(j), 22a-92(c)(1)(K) 

 Sewer and Water Lines - CGS Section 22a-92(b)(1)(B) 

 Fuel, Chemicals And Hazardous Materials - CGS Sections 22a-92(b)(1)(C), 22a-92(b)(1)(E), 22a-92(c)(1)(A) 

 Transportation - CGS Sections 22a-92(b)(10)(F), 22a-92(c)(1)(F), 22a-92(c)(1)(G), 22a-92(c)(1)(H) 

 Solid Waste - CGS Section 22a-92(a)(2) 

 Dams, Dikes and Reservoirs - CGS Section 22a-92(a)(2) 

 Cultural Resources - CGS Section 22a-92(b)(1)(J) 

 Open Space and Agricultural Lands - CGS Section 22a-92(a)(2) 

 
* applicable to all proposed activities 

 

https://portal.ct.gov/DEEP/Permits-and-Licenses/Common-Forms#NDDB
http://www.ct.gov/deep/nddbrequest
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Part III:  Consistency With Applicable Statutory Coastal Use and Activity Goals and 
Policies 

Explain how the proposed activity is consistent with the applicable coastal activities goals and policies 
identified in Part II and describe any mitigation necessary to offset adverse impacts. 

The site will prepare a Stormwater Pollution Control 
Plan/Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, including construction 
soil erosion and sediment control as well as post-construction 
measures. Water that comes into contact with the feedstocks and 
compost pile will be collected, stored, and recycled in the compost 
piles.  

 
Part IV:  Identification of Applicable Coastal Resources and Coastal Resource Policies 
Identify the coastal resources and associated statutory policies that apply to your project by checking the 
applicable boxes in the following table. 

 
 
Coastal Resources 

 
 

on-site 

 
adjacent 
to work 

site 

 
off-site but 
potentially 

affected by the 
project 

 
General Resources* - CGS Sections 22a-93(7), 22a-92(a)(2) 

 
X 

 
X 

 
X 

 
Beaches & Dunes - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(C), 22a-92-(b)(2)(C), 
22a-92(c)(1)(K) 

   

 
Bluffs & Escarpments - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(A), 22a-92(b)(2)(A)    
 
Coastal Hazard Area - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(H), 22a-92(a)(2), 
22a-92(b)(2)(F), 22a-92(b)(2)(J), 22a-92(c)(2)(B), 22a-92(a)(5) 

   

 
Coastal Waters & Estuarine Embayments - CGS Sections 
22a-93(5),  22a-93(7)(K), 22a-93(7)(L), 22a-93(7)(G), 22a-92(a)(2), 22a-
92(c)(2)(A) 

   

 
Developed Shorefront - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(I), 22a-92(b)(2)(G)    
 
Freshwater Wetlands and Watercourses -  
CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(F), 22a-92(a)(2) 

   

 
Intertidal Flats - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(D), 22a-92(b)(2)(D), 
22a-92(c)(1)(K) 

   

 
Islands - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(J), 22a-92(b)(2)(H)    
 
Rocky Shorefront - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(B), 22a-92(b)(2)(B)    
 
Shellfish Concentration Areas - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(N), 
22a-92(c)(1)(I) 

   

 
Shorelands - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(M), 22a-92(b)(2)(I)    
 
Tidal Wetlands - CGS Sections 22a-93(7)(E), 22a-92(a)(2), 
22a-92(b)(2)(E), 22a-92(c)(1)(B) 

   

* applicable to all proposed activities
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Part V:  Consistency with Applicable Statutory Coastal Resource Goals and Policies 

Explain how the proposed activity is consistent with the applicable statutory coastal resource goals and 
policies identified in Part IV and describe any mitigation necessary to offset adverse impacts. 

Stormwater will be directed into a new stormwater pond and reused 
in the process to the extent possible.  Any excess stormwater will 
be directed to the existing site stormwater system (i.e., large 
infiltration basin to the north).  Contact water from the ASP 
process will be contained and collected in a sump.  Contact water 
will be pumped from the sump to a small above-ground tank and 
recycled back into the process. The site is elevated about 40 feet 
 above the coastal area and the Thames River. 

Part VI:  Identification of Potential Adverse Impacts 
Identify the adverse impact categories that apply to the proposed activity.  Check the applicable box if the 
proposed activity has the potential to generate any adverse impacts defined in the Coastal Management Act and 
referred to in the following table.  If the category is applicable to the proposed activity, you may describe in Part 
VII project design features which may eliminate or minimize the potential for identified adverse impacts. 

 
Potential Resource Impacts 

 
Applicable 

 
Not Applicable 

 
Characteristics & Functions of Resources - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(H)   
 
Coastal Flooding - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(E)   
 
Coastal Waters Circulation Patterns - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(B)   
 
Drainage Patterns - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(D)   
 
Patterns of Shoreline Erosion and Accretion - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(C)   
 
Visual Quality - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(F)   
 
Water Quality - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(A)   
 
Wildlife, Finfish, Shellfish Habitat - CGS Section 22a-93(15)(G)   

 

 
Potential Impacts on Water Dependent Uses 

 
Applicable 

 
Not Applicable 

 
Locating a non-water-dependent use on a site suited to or planned for a 
water-dependent use - CGS Section 22a-93(17) 

  

 
Replacing an existing water-dependent use with a non-water-dependent 
use - CGS Section 22a-93(17) 

  

 
Siting a non-water-dependent use which reduces or eliminates public 
access to marine or tidal waters - CGS Section 22a-93(17) 
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Part VII:  Consistency with Statutory Adverse Impact Policies 

Explain how all potential adverse impacts identified, as applicable, in Part VI have been avoided, eliminated 
or minimized. 

NA 

 
Part VIII:  Remaining Adverse Impacts 

Identify any adverse impacts which remain after incorporating all measures to eliminate or minimize such 
adverse impacts, and explain why no feasible and prudent alternatives exist that would further avoid or 
reduce such impacts. 

NA 

If this completed form is required as part of another DEEP license application, submit this completed 
form as instructed on the relevant application. 
 
If this completed form is not required as part of another DEEP license application, submit this 
completed form to: 
 

COASTAL PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
79 ELM STREET 
HARTFORD, CT 06106-5127  



  

79 Elm Street                      An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 

Hartford, CT 06106-5127                                               
860.424.3000 

portal.ct.gov/DEEP 

 
March 28, 2024 

Dave Aldridge 
Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource Recovery Authority 
7 Hurlbutt Rd 
Gales Ferry, CT 06335 
Daldridge@scrrra.org 

 

NDDB DETERMINATION NUMBER: 202206742 renewal 

Project: Construct/operate a commercial food waste composting facility, SCRRRA, 132 Military Hwy (Rte 12), 
Preston, CT 

Expiration: June 30, 2025 

I have reviewed Natural Diversity Data Base (NDDB) maps and files regarding this project. According to our 
records, there are State-listed species (RCSA Sec. 26-306) documented nearby the proposed project areas.   

Big sand tiger beetle (Cicindela formosa generosa)- State Special Concern 

The pine barrens tiger beetle occupies sand plain habitat with open patches of xeric (dry), loose shifting sands, 
without water that are sparsely vegetated, such as pine barrens. 

 

This area has the unique potential to be restored and managed to support Critical Sandplain Habitat.   
 
Sand plains are one of New England’s rarest ecosystems. These are areas of dry, sandy soil left by glacial 
outwash, sand plains support sparse vegetation and bare ground. At first glance, a sand plain looks like a 
scruffy wasteland. Sand plains have been subjected to mining, development, and fragmentation, resulting in 
a loss of up to 95% of this habitat type. But these unusual environments are home to many rare plants and 
insects.  Sand plains are important because they can support complex insect-dominated communities that 
have been overlooked in many conservation efforts.  Experts have suggested that the continued development 
on sand plains in the region could mean the loss of potentially more than 150 species of sand barren 
specialists from Connecticut. 
 
We recommend you identify, restore, and protect suitable habitat for this state species in your project area.  
You can benefit this species by seeking help from an invertebrate biologist or plant ecologist to create a 
management plan to enhance habitat where opportunities exist.   Keep the following recommendations in 
mind as you manage your habitat: 

• Minimize ground impact to sensitive habitat, and do not import other types of permanent fill. 
• If sensitive habitats are disturbed, it is best to allow them to revegetate naturally or propagate only 

locally collected seed.  Avoid commercially available seed mixes.  They include plant species which are 
not considered native to Connecticut. Even mixes marketed as ‘New England’ or ‘Northeast’ mixes 
include high percentages of species not native to the Connecticut or the region. Additionally, 
commercially available seed mixes include plants that are listed as invasive in CT or which include 
non-local genotypes.   

• Minimize the use of pesticides and herbicides in general and consider alternatives.  Take precautions 
that species are not impacted by chemical use including using spot treatment techniques. 

https://www.facebook.com/CTDEEP/
https://twitter.com/CTDEEPNews
https://www.instagram.com/ct.deep/
https://www.youtube.com/ctdeepvideos
https://www.linkedin.com/company/ctdeep
mailto:Daldridge@scrrra.org


 
 

  

 

Please contact NDDB and Wildlfie Diversity Biologist, Laura Saucier (laura.saucier@ct.gov) if you would like to 
consult with us more to coordinate on sandplain restoration efforts. 

 

Natural Diversity Data Base information includes all information regarding critical biological resources 
available to us at the time of the request. This information is a compilation of data collected over the years by 
the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection’s Bureau of Natural Resources and cooperating units 
of DEEP, independent conservation groups, and the scientific community. This information is not necessarily 
the result of comprehensive or site-specific field investigations. Consultations with the NDDB should not be 
substituted for on-site surveys required for environmental assessments. Current research projects and new 
contributors continue to identify additional populations of species and locations of habitats of concern, as well 
as, enhance existing data. Such new information is incorporated in the NDDB as it becomes available. 

Please contact me if you have any questions (shannon.kearney@ct.gov). Thank you for consulting with the 
Natural Diversity Data Base and continuing to work with us to protect State-listed species. 

Sincerely, 

/s/ Shannon B. Kearney 
Wildlife Biologist 

 

mailto:laura.saucier@ct.gov
mailto:shannon.kearney@ct.gov
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Solid Waste Facilities 
 

Attachment H:  Background Information - Applicant/Owner/Operator 
 
Please complete this form in accordance with the Instructions for Completing a Permit Application for 
Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility (DEP-SW-INST-100). This form must be submitted with the 
Permit Application for Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility (DEP-SW-APP-100). Print legibly or 
type. 
 
This form must be completed by the applicant, owner and operator. If the applicant, owner and operator are 3 
different entities, this form must be completed by each entity, in accordance with section 22a-209-4(b)(1) of the 
Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies (RCSA). Attach additional sheets if needed.  
 
Applicant Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 
(As indicated on the Permit Application Transmittal Form) 

Part I:  General 

1. Information presented in this attachment applies to (check one): 

  Applicant   Owner   Operator 
 

2. Identify the solid waste facility type: Volume Reduction Plant 
 

3. Is a surety specifically required by statute or regulation for the proposed project?   Yes   No 

Are you prepared to post a bond or other surety related to any permits, certificates or approvals granted 
to you through this application?   Yes   No 

 
Part II:  Proprietorship/Individual/Municipality 
Fill out this section if the applicant/owner/operator is a proprietorship, individual or municipality. 

1. Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 

Mailing Address: 7 Hurlbutt Road 

City/Town: Gales Ferry State: CT Zip Code:   06335 
Business Phone:  860-381-5558 ext.       Fax:        
 

2. Have you owned, operated or otherwise been associated with any other solid waste facilities? 

  Yes   No 

If yes, list the name of the facility and your position and responsibilities: 

Facility Name: HHW Collection Events 

Position: Coordinater 
Responsibilities: 9 annual events in member towns 

Facility Name: Preston WTE 

Position: Original municipal partner 
Responsibilities: Original waste supply 
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Part III:  Partnerships 
Fill out this section if the applicant/owner/operator is a partnership. 

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 

1. Indicate whether this is a general or limited partnership:       
 

2.  Provide the following information for each partner. For limited partnerships, please identify the general 
partner: 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       

 

3.  Have any of the partners involved in this project owned, operated or otherwise been associated with any 
other solid waste facility?   Yes   No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Partner Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       

Partner Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
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Part IV:  Corporations 
Fill out this section if the applicant/owner/operator is a corporation. 

  Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 

1. Corporation Name:       

2. List all parent and subsidiary corporations: 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
 

3.  List all corporate officers: 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 

4. List all directors: 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       
City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        
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Part IV:  Corporations (continued) 

5.  List all stockholders holding more than 20% of the corporate stock issued: 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
 

6. Have any of the parties involved in this project owned, operated or otherwise been associated with any 
other solid waste facility?   Yes   No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
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Part V:  Limited Liability Company 
Fill out this section if the applicant/owner/operator is a limited liability company. 

 Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 

1. List each member. 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
 

2. List any manager(s) who, through the articles of organization, are vested the management of the 
business, property and affairs of the limited liability company. 
 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
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Part V:  Limited Liability Company (continued) 

2. (continued) List any manager(s) who, through the articles of organization, are vested the management of 
the business, property and affairs of the limited liability company. 

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

Contact Person:       Phone Number:       
Proportion of Ownership Interest (%):       
 

3. Have any of the parties involved in this project owned, operated or otherwise been associated with any 
other solid waste facility?   Yes   No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
 
Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
 
Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
 
 
Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       



 

 
Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance 
DEP-SW-APP-101 7 of 7 Rev. 09/16/09 

Part VI:  Voluntary Association 
Fill out this section if the applicant/owner/operator is a voluntary association. 

1. Identify each member of the association. 

Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 
Name:       

Mailing Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
Business Phone:        ext.       Fax:        

 

2. Have any of the parties involved in this project been associated with any other solid waste facility? 

  Yes   No 

If yes, provide the following information: 

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       

Name:       

Name of Other Facility:       

Position in Other Facility:       

Responsibilities:       
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Solid Waste Facilities 
 
 
Attachment I:  Statement of Consistency with the Solid Waste Management Plan 
 
Please complete the form in accordance with the Instructions for Completing the Permit Application for 
Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility (DEP-SW-INST-100). This form must be submitted with the 
Permit Application for Construction and Operation of a Solid Waste Facility (DEP-SW-APP-100). If additional 
space is required, please attach supplementary pages. Print legibly or type. 
 
The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) reserves the right to request any other information it deems 
pertinent. 
 
Applicant Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 
(As indicated on the Permit Application Transmittal Form) 
 
Identify the solid waste facility type: Volume Reduction Plant 
 
Part I:  Source of Waste 
Identify the source(s) (the specific town(s) to be served) of the waste to be transferred/ processed/disposed of 
and whether the waste is residential, commercial, etc. Include estimated volumes and/or tonnages from each 
municipality/customer. 

Source (Municipality/Customer) Waste 
(Residential, Commercial, etc.) Volume/Tonnage 

SCRRRA member towns residential,commercial up to 55 tons per day 

                  

                  

                  

                  

 
Part II:  Waste Types 
Describe each waste type and the quantity that will be handled at the facility. Describe how each waste type will 
be handled on-site (e.g., compaction, mechanically processed, hand separated, composted, incinerated, etc.). 

Waste Type Quantity Process(es) 

SSO up to 5,500 tons per year compost 

Ground Wood up to 8,500 tons per year compost 
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Part III:  Waste Management 
Identify each type of waste, how it is currently managed, and identify its long-term management plan (e.g., 
reused, recycled, composted, energy recovery, landfilled). If during processing a residue is generated, identify its 
quantity and/or percentage (e.g., tonnage or volume of residue generated and/or percentage of total waste 
incoming). 

Waste Type Current Management Long-Term 
Management 

Residue 
Quantity/Percentage 

SSO WTE composted 2 

Ground wood recycled composted 1 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 
Part IV:  Waste Disposal 
List each waste, residue and/or recyclable material and identify the final disposal facility/facilities or market(s) 
(e.g., list the specific facilities currently used or expected to be used in the future). Verify that the Connecticut 
facilities are currently permitted by DEP and the out-of state facilities are permitted by their state environmental 
regulatory agency and identify the permit type. 

Wastes/Residues/Recyclables  Final Disposal Facility Facility Permit Type  

Pre-process waste Lisbon WTE CT DEEP 

Post-process residue Lisbon WTE CT DEEP 
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Part V:  Contract/Agreements with Disposal Sites and/or Markets 
Identify the duration (e.g., spot market, 4 months, 5 years, etc.) of the contract/agreement between the proposed 
facility and the facilities or markets to which the waste will be finally transported. (Include signed copies of 
contracts or letters of agreement from the potential disposal sites and/or markets and attach them to this sheet.) 
Demonstrate that these facilities have available long-term capacity to accept each waste, residue or recyclable 
from this proposed facility. 

Facility Name: Lisbon WTE 

Contract Duration: Expires December 2030 

Long Term Capacity Demonstration for each waste/residue/recyclable: 

de minimus amounts of pre-process waste and post-process residue 

Facility Name:       

Contract Duration:       

Long Term Capacity Demonstration for each waste/residue/recyclable: 

      

Facility Name:       

Contract Duration:       

Long Term Capacity Demonstration for each waste/residue/recyclable: 

      

Facility Name:       

Contract Duration:       

Long Term Capacity Demonstration for each waste/residue/recyclable: 
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Part VI:  Other Solid Waste Facilities 
Are there any similar solid waste facilities currently operating in the area(s) to be served by this proposed facility? 

  Yes   No 

If yes, provide their names and addresses below. 

Facility Name:       

Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         

 
Facility Name:       

Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         
 
Facility Name:       

Address:       

City/Town:       State:    Zip Code:         

 
Part VII:  Statement of Consistency 
In accordance with section 22a-209-4(b) (1) RCSA, the application package must include a statement by the 
applicant which explains how the proposal relates to and is consistent with the Solid Waste Management Plan 
(SWMP). Include a comparison of the facility's proposed long term waste management plan to specific goals 
discussed in the SWMP.   Check here if additional sheets are necessary, and label and attach them to this sheet. 

The proposed facility is consistent with the state-wide SWMP.  The facility will be the first and only 
large-scale aerobic food waste composting facility in southeastern Connecticut, fulfilling an 
infrastructure need in a historically underserved region.  With this facility, SCRRRA will provide the 
infrastructure to create a sustainable, environmentally friendly system for diverting organics from the 
waste stream, to be turned into a high-quality soil amendment for farmers and gardeners.  Creation of 
this facility will not only save money for the SCRRRA member towns, in the face of rising waste 
management costs, but will also greatly benefit the environment in many ways, including reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions produced by trucks and sequestering carbon in the natural composting 
process. 
The overarching goal of this facility is to provide our region with the large-scale infrastructure 
necessary to divert organics from the waste stream and process them into nutrient rich compost for 
the local community.  The SCRRRA facility will:  
• Establish compost infrastructure that will facilitate diversion of food waste from the waste 
stream,  
• Establish large-scale capacity for organics recycling,  
• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions created by incineration and trucking of ash out of the 
region and trucking of purchased soil amendments into the region,  
• Sequester carbon in the natural process of composting,  
• Provide a local source of soil amendment/fertilizer alternative, some of which will be provided 
free to environmental justice communities for their community gardens,  
• Reduce the amount of waste being sent to incinerators and landfills,  
• Educate our communities about organics recycling and compost; and  
• Save our town’s money by lowering waste disposal costs. 
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Solid Waste Facilities 
 

Attachment J:  Business Information 
All permit applications, or license transfer requests, for a solid waste facility, must complete this form and attach 
all of the listed required documentation. 

Part I: General Information 

1. Applicant Name: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Res. Recovery Auth. 
2. Facility Name: SCRRRA Compost Facility 

3. Identify the solid waste facility type: Volume Reduction Plant 
4. Is a surety specifically required by statute or regulation for the proposed project?  Yes  No 

5. Are you prepared to post a bond or other surety related to any permits, certificates or approvals granted 

to you through this application?  Yes  No 

 
 

Part II: Required Documentation 
Check each box by each of the listed requirements as verification that all documentation has been submitted. 
Label each attachment as listed below and include the applicant's name on each document. 

Financial Stability Information: 
  Attachment 1:  A detailed statement from a Certified Public Accountant which demonstrates the financial 

capacity of the applicant to develop and operate the project in a manner consistent with 
Connecticut environmental laws and standards. 

  Attachment 2:  With respect to the costs of financing, design, construction and start-up of the proposed 
facility, provide the following information. 

Note: for license transfer requests, if the facility is fully constructed, and already operating, 
provide the date operations began and skip to Attachment 3.  Date Operations Began 

 Estimated cost and identification of the source of funds for each facility; 
 

 Identification and discussion of the proposed method of financing costs which will not be 
paid from the applicant's own resources; 

 
 For costs to be paid from the applicant's own resources, demonstration that such 

resources are available (which may include third party assurances); 
 

 Has the applicant, or its affiliates, ever implemented a project of comparable magnitude? 
If so, explain. 

 
 If the proposed facility involves one million dollars or more in total capital cost, include a 

statement from an independent third party, certifying as to the reasonableness of such 
information. 

 

Part II: Required Documentation continued on next page 
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Part II: Required Documentation, continued 

Financial Stability Information, continued: 
  Attachment 3: With respect to the on-going operation of the facility, provide the following information: 

 
 An estimate of the cost of operating and maintaining the facility, and a discussion of the 

source of revenues to pay such costs; 
 

 A discussion of the financial capacity of the applicant to properly operate the facility, and 
the proposed method of addressing potential, unexpected costs associated with 
environmental compliance, breakdowns, malfunctions and related events; 

 
 If other parties will be responsible for the operation of the facility, demonstrate the ability 

of such parties to meet the financial capacity to do so. 
 

Land Ownership Documents: 
  Attachment 4:  In accordance with section 22a-209-4(b)(1) RCSA, signed copies of any lease, deed or other 

agreements regarding the ownership, control, or use of the facility by the applicant. Such 
documents include but are not limited to land deeds (e.g., warranty deed; certified deed; 
lease agreement; etc.). 

 

Agreements Between Parties and Service Agreements and Contracts: 
  Attachment 5:  Copies of all contracts and agreements (e.g., bridge agreements; agreements between the 

applicant and owner, operator, municipality(s), regional authority, markets, disposal facility(s), 
other processing facilities, etc.) 

 
(Note: All contracts required by section 22a-213 CGS and section 22a-209-5 RCSA involving 
a municipality must be approved by DEP.) 

 

Organization Chart:  
  Attachment 6:  An organization chart, which illustrates the relationship between all parties involved in the 

ownership and management of the facility. 
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Board of Directors 
Southeastern Connecticut Regional 
Resources Recovery Authority 

7 Hurlbutt Road 
Gales Feny, Connecticut 06335 

We are pleased to present the Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery 
Authority's ("the Authority 11

) Annual Comprehensive Financial Report prepared for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2023. 

The accuracy, completeness and fairness of this report are the responsibility of the Authority's 
management. We believe this report, as presented, is accurate iµ all material respects and that it 
presents fairly the financial position of the Authority and the results of its operations. All 
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority's financial 
affairs have been included. 

The report is presented in three sections: 

• The Introduct01y Section contains this transmittal letter, which provides a description of 
Authority operations, pertinent financial inf01mation and an outline of major initiatives 
accomplished in fiscal year 2023 and compared to fiscal year 2022. The Introductory 
Section also contains a list of Authority Board members and officials and an 
organizational cha.1.i. 

• The Financial Section contains the independent auditors' report, management's 
discussion and analysis ("MD&A"), the financial statements and related notes, and 
required supplementa.1.y inf01mation. 

• The Statistical Section contains unaudited data on selected financial and operating data 
on a multi-year basis. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

The Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority ("SCRRRA") is 
comprised of twelve member municipalities in Southeastern Connecticut and was created in 
1984 by joint resolution of those municipalities. The Authority is responsible for implementing 
solid waste recovery systems, recycling, and disposal services. Revenues generated by Authority 
operations, primarily disposal fees and investments, provide for the support of the Authority and 

7 Hurlbutt RD, Gales Ferry, CT 06335 
P: (860) 381-5558 F: (860)885-0191 

www.scrrra.org 
Printed on recycled. paper 
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its operations on a self-sustaining basis. In 1987 the Authority entered into a Bridge and 
Management Agreement with the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority ("CRRA"); 
(CRRA and SCRRRA were here and after to be sometimes referred to as the Paiiies) to construct 
and operate a waste to energy ("WTE") facility in Preston Connecticut. In canying out this 
mission the Paiiies utilized private industry to construct, maintain and operate the WTE facility. 
The WTE facility construction was financed by bonds facilitated by CRRA and secured by 
service agreements with the member municipalities and suppo1ied by revenues from the sale of 
electricity generated by the facility. In addition, the bonds were secured by a special capital 
reserve fund (backed by the State of Connecticut). The bonds used to finance construction of the 
WTE facility were paid in full on November 15, 2015. CRRA owned the facility until Februaiy 
17, 2017, when the title was transferred to the operator, Covanta Holding Corporation. The 
forementioned Bridge and Management agreement between CRRA and SCRRRA was 
te1minated effective July 12, 2017. Title to the land remains with SCRRRA who receives lease 
payments from Covanta. The Authority has contracts with the Member Municipalities that direct 
all solid waste generated within their boundaries to SCRRRA authorized facilities. These 
contracts have expiration dates of December 31, 203 0. 

The Authority owned the Preston WTE facility through February 17, 2017 and continues to 
manage the closed ash landfill in Montville, Connecticut. SCRRRA provides single stream 
recycling with a private vendor for its member towns. The Authority provides additional waste 
management services to the towns of the southeastern portion of the state including household 
hazardous waste collections, recycling contracts for commodities processed through town 
transfer stations, and ongoing recycling education. The Authority owns and operates a large 
wood grinder providing wood reduction and removal services to both member and non-member 
towns also in the southeastern part of the state. 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

The Authority provides solid waste disposal services to twelve Connecticut municipalities in the 
southeastern portion of the state through service contract arrangements. The primaiy vendors for 
waste processing services are a mass burn WTE facility in Lisbon for disposal and a Materials 
Recove1y Facility (MRF) in Willimantic CT which processes consumer recyclables. 

On Januaiy 1, 2021, SCRRRA entered into a ten-yeai· waste disposal agreement with 
Wheelabrator Technologies (now known as WIN Waste Innovations), the operator of the Lisbon, 
Connecticut WTE facility with an expiration date of December 31, 2030. 

On October 1, 2019, SCRRRA entered into a 5 year recycled materials processing agreement 
with Willimantic Wastepaper Co. for processing consumer recyclable products from its 12 
member municipalities with an expiration date of September 30, 2024. 

OTHER OPERATIONS 

The Authority provides recycling services to the 12 member municipality transfer stations for the 
following commodities that are collected there: used motor oil and antifreeze, freon, fluorescent 
bulbs, batteries, and tires. The Authority also coordinates several state-mandated programs for 
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the recycling of paint, mattresses, and consumer electronics. The Authority also owns and 
operates a horizontal wood grinder which is used to chip wood and brush collected at the transfer 
stations into a more manageable and useful mulch. 

In addition to the transfer station suppmi, the Authority provides 9 household hazardous waste 
collection events at no cost to residents. These events also offer free paper shredding. 

The Authority is also responsible for the environmental monitoring of a closed ash landfill 
located in Montville, CT. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The Authority posted a decrease in the change in net position of $1,741,478 in fiscal year 2023 
compared to a decrease in the change in net position of $11,425,127 in fiscal year 2022. 

In general, the Authority's service fees have been significantly reduced and stabilized since fiscal 
year 1995, enabling the Authority to deliver below market service fees to its members (see 
Exhibit 1 in the Statistical Section). 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Service charges are established by the Board of Directors of the Southeastern Connecticut 
Regional Resources Recovery Authority. 

The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting, where revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Additional info1mation regarding significant 
accounting policies can be found in the "Notes to the Financial Statements" in the Financial 
Section of this repmi. 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls 
designed to ensure that the assets of the Authority are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of the financial 
statements in confo1mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
that these goals are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and 
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Financial Results 

The 2023 fiscal year financial operations showed an operating loss of $3,408,890 compared to an 
operating loss of $4,901,571 in 2022. The decrease in the change in net position for fiscal year 
2023 of $1,741,478 represents an increase of 85% or $9,683,649 from fiscal year 2022. Please 
refer to Summary of Operations and Change in Net Assets in the MD&A in the Financial Section 
of this repmi for additional discussion and analysis. 
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Total operating 1·evenues for fiscal year 2023 were $8,339,247, an increase of 5% or $370,172 as 
compared to fiscal year 2022. 

Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2023 were $11,748,137, a decl'ease of 9% or $1,122,509 
as compared to fiscal year 2022. In prior years under the original Bridge Agreement, operating 
expenses wel'e offset by proceeds earned from energy generation. Unde1· the terms of the new 
service agreement with the operator of the WTE facility, energy generation revenue is retained 
by the facility opel'ator. Please refer to the Summaty of Expenses in the MD&A in the Financial 
Section of this rep01t for addition~! discussion and analysis on the Authority's expenses. 

-~itshManagcm en~ 

During the year, cash was invested on a short-term basis. The Authority's investments are 
managed by Fiducient Advisoi·s LLC. The primary short-term investment vehicles are mutual 
funds hel~ by Schwab which had balances of $42,590,628 as of June 30, 2023 and $43,885,719 
as of June 3 0, 2022. The arumalized average yield for the Schwab mutual funds was 4.29% for 
the fiscal year 2023 and 2.95% for the fiscal yeal" 2022. The Authority also invested in the Short~ 
Te1m Investment Fund (STIF) operated by the Office of the Treasurer which had balances of 
$2,408 as of June 30, 2023 and $2,316 as of June 30, 2022. The amrnalized average yield for the 
STIF was 3.87% for fiscal year 2023 and .17% for fiscal year 2022. SCRRRA's investment 
policy does not include provisions for custodial credit risk, as SCRRRA does not invest in 
securities that are held by counte1:parties. 

Risk'Management 

The Authority purchased commercial insura11ce for its direct ownership property and liability 
needs. The facility operator is obligated under the service agreement to provide property and 
liability insurance for the plant and its operations. The Authority has secured insurance coverage 
for a variety of environmental exposures related to the operation and control of the landfill. The 
Autho1'ity engages in an on~going evaluation of its risk exposUl'es to prevent losses where 
possible and minimize the financial impact of those risks that must be undertaken. 

Ji1djpe1ldeut Audit. 

The Authority contracts an annual audit by an independent ceiiified public accountant. The 
accounting firm of Simionej Macca & La1tow LLP was selected in November 2022 to perfo1m 
the audit for the year ended June 30, 2023. The auditors' repo1t on the financial statements and 
l'equired supplementa1y informatton is included in the Financial Section of this report. 

, / ' . . • . ' 
:ifo·t1tsp· .. .· .ili: -~;sijb.mitte:d~) . ' . 

. . · .• - -I . . ... , .· .'._·.~ .. , .... , 
David W. Aldridge · 
Executive Pfr~Qtpr-~-· --.:-
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Simione Macca & LarrowLLP 
~ 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVISORS 

"On Balance, We Offer You More ." 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Connecticut Regional 
Resources Recovery Authority 

Gales Ferry, Connecticut 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund of the Southeastern 
Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority ("SCRRRA"), a component unit of the 
State of Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise SCRRRA's basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of each major fund of the Southeastern Connecticut Regional 
Resources Recove1y Authority as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are fuiiher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SCRRRA and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

85 Wolcott Hill Rd • Wethersfield, CT 06109 
Phone: (860) 529-5600 4 Fax: (860) 529-5605 

www.smlcpas.com 
Toll-free: (800) 493-5605 

900 Northrop Rd, Ste 2F • Wallingford, CT 06492 
Phone: (203) 281-0540 4 Fax: (203) 287-6788 
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Responsibilities of Management f 01· the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SCRRRA's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any cunently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1rnr, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenide of internal control. Misstatements are · 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks . 
. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the SCRRRA's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions, or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SCRRRA's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementa,y Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 5-9 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied ce1iain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the info1mation and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infmmation because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
infmmation comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic 
financial statements and our auditor's repo1i thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other infmmation, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other 
infmmation and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an unconected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repo1i dated 
February 28, 2024, on our consideration of SCRRRA's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with ce1iain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that repo1i is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial rep01iing and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of SCRRRA's internal control over 
financial repo1iing or on compliance. That report is an integral pati of an audit perf01med in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering SCRRRA's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Wethersfield, Connecticut 
Februaiy 28, 2024 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority ("SCRRRA") is made up 
of twelve towns and was created in 1984 by a joint resolution of those municipalities. SCRRRA 
is responsible for implementing solid waste disposal, recycling, and resources recovery systems, 
facilities, and services. In 1987, SCRRRA entered into a Bridge and Management Agreement 
with Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority ("CRRA"); (CRRA and SCRRRA here and 
after sometimes referred to as the "Parties") to construct and operate a waste to energy ("WTE") 
facility in Preston, Connecticut. Revenues generated by SCRRRA's operations, primarily solid 
waste disposal fees and energy revenues, historically provided for the support of SCRRRA and 
its operations on a self-sustaining basis. In canying out this mission the Paiiies utilized private 
indust1y to construct and operate a solid waste disposal and resources recove1y facility. 
SCRRRA contracts with its member municipalities to provide waste management services and 
charges fees for their services. The member towns have agreed to deliver all their solid waste to 
SCRRRA facilities. 

CRRA owned the Preston WTE facility through Februaiy 17, 2017, when the title to the facility 
was transferred to the private vendor operating the WTE facility pursuant to the terms of the 
contract. Title to the land under the WTE facility was retained by SCRRRA. SCRRRA's post­
bond revenue is now dependent on a combination of service fee charges for solid waste disposal 
and income derived from investments from past energy sales revenues. In Januaiy of 2020 
SCRRRA entered into a new ten-year contract for waste disposal with Wheelabrator 
Technologies (subsequently named WIN Im1ovations), a WTE operator with a location in 
Lisbon, Connecticut. SCRRRA also owns an inactive ash landfill in Montville, Connecticut. 
SCRRRA provides additional waste management services to its member municipalities including 
household hazai·dous waste collections, transfer station recycling services and ongoing recycling 
education, all at no cost to the municipalities. SCRRRA owns and operates a horizontal wood 
grinder providing wood reduction and removal services to both member and non-member towns 
in the southeastern paii of the state. 

During the yeai· ended June 30, 2019, SCRRRA entered into a five-year agreement with 
Willimantic Waste that will provide curbside mixed recycling for member towns at no cost. 

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of SCRRRA's activities and 
financial performance introduce the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2023 as compared to June 30, 2022. Following the MD&A are the basic financial 
statements of SCRRRA together with the notes thereto, which are essential to a full 
understanding of the data contained in the financial statements. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY 

• Total fund net positions of SCRRRA were $43,777,520 as of June 30, 2023, as compared 
to $45,518,998 as of June 30, 2022 and are summarized as follows : 

(In Thousands) 

2023 2022 

ASSETS: 
Current unrestricted assets $ 43,032 $ 44,684 

Capital assets: 

Depreciable, net 763 957 

Nondepreciable 1,688 1,688 

Lease receivable 966 1,033 

Restricted non-current investments 1,767 1,886 

Total Assets $ 48,216 $ 50,248 

LIABILITIES: 
Cmrent liabilities $ 1,773 $ 1,869 

Long-term liabilities 2,666 2,860 

Total Liabilities 4,439 4,729 

NET POSITION: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,451 2,645 

Restricted for landfill post-closure reserve 1,767 1,886 

Unrestricted, board designated 39,559 40,988 

Total Net Position 43 ,777 45,519 

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 48,216 $ 50,248 

• SCRRRA was required by State and Federal laws and regulations to maintain a reserve 
fund to finance closure and post-closure care. SCRRRA had a reserve of $1,767,398 that 
is restricted for landfill post-closure care at June 30, 2023 . 

• The remainder of SCRRRA's net position is considered umestricted and may be used to 
meet SCRRRA's ongoing obligations to members and creditors. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The following is an overview of significant changes within the Statement of Net Position during 
the past fiscal year: 

6 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued) 

Assets 

Cunent unrestricted assets decreased by $1,653,281 over 2022, mainly due to the decrease in 
investments and prepaid expenses and other assets. 

Liabilities 

Cunent liabilities decreased by $96,115 primarily due to a decrease in accounts payables. 

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of SCRRRA's financial position. In 2023, 
the change in net position was a loss of $1,741,478 as a result of an operating loss of 
$3,408,890, an unrealized loss on investments of $350,304, investment income and dividends of 
$1,898,964, and the change in post-closure care costs of $118,752. In 2022, the change in net 
position was a loss of $11,425,127 as a result of an operating loss of $4,901,571, a net 
unrealized loss in investments of $8,222,803, investment income and dividends of $1,581,359 
and the change in post-closure care costs of $117,888. 

Operating revenues in the amount of $8,339,247 increased by $370,172 or 5% as compared with 
fiscal year 2022. Operating expenses in the amount of $11,748,137 decreased by $1,122,509 or 
9% as compared to fiscal year 2022. Nonoperating income was $1,667,412 in fiscal year 2023 
compared to a nonoperating loss of $6,523,556 in fiscal year 2022. This change in nonoperating 
income resulted from the decrease in unrealized loss on investments compared with that 
sustained in fiscal 2022. 

Changes in Fund Net Position 

Changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Deficiency before depreciation and 

other nonoperating expense 

Depreciation 

Loss before other nonoperating revenues 

Other nonoperating revenues 

Change in net position 

Total net position, beginning of year 

Total net position, end of year 

$ 

$ 

7 

(In Thousands) 

2023 2022 

8,339 $ 7,969 

11,555 12,673 

(3,216) (4,704) 

193 198 

(3,409) (4,902) 

1,667 (6,523) 

(1,742) (11,425) 

45,519 56,944 

43,777 $ 45,519 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

SCRRRA's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2023 totaled $2,451,214. This investment 
includes land, leasehold improvements, facilities, furniture, and equipment. This amount 
represents a decrease of $193,454 which resulted from current year depreciation of capital assets. 

(In Thousands) 

2023 2022 
Depreciable assets: 

Leasehold improvements $ 181 $ 181 
Facilities and equipment 1,616 1,616 
Vehicles 175 175 

1,972 1,972 
Accumulated depreciation 1,209 1,015 
Total depreciable assets, net 763 957 

Nondepreciable assets: 

Land 1,688 1,688 

Total capital assets $ 2,451 $ 2,645 

Additional info1mation on SCRRRA's capital assets can be found in Note 10 on page 21 of this 
report. 

BUDGETING PROCESS 

Annual appropriated operating budgets are adopted for the Authority by the Board of Directors. 
The Executive Director submits a detailed operating budget to the Executive Committee of the 
SCRRRA Board. Upon their recommendation, the Executive Director moves the draft budget to 
the full Board for approval and establishment of the service fee for the fiscal year. 

Once approved, the Executive Director prepares a review and proposed adjustments to the 
Reserve Fund Accounts and presents them to the Executive Committee. Upon their 
recommendation, the Executive Director then moves the Reserve Fund package to the full Board. 
Upon approval the Executive Committee is free to authorize transfers of reserve funds as is 
required by the approved budget. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of SCRRRA's finances for all 
those with an interest in SCRRRA's finances. Questions concerning any of the inf01mation 
provided in this rep01i or requests for additional information should be addressed to the 
Executive Director, 7 Hurlbutt Road, Gales Feny, Connecticut 06335. 

9 



ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 
Current portion oflease receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

Total Current Assets 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Capital assets: 
Depreciable, net 

Nondepreciable 

Lease receivable 

Landfill post-closure reserve 

Total Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other payables 

Accrued benefits 

Current portion of post-closure 

care costs 

Total Current Liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Post-closure care costs 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Total Liabilities and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets 

Restricted for landfill post-closure reserve 
Unrestricted, board designated 

Total Net Position 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND NET POSITION 

SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 

RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2023 

Solid 
Operating Waste 

Fund Fund 

$ 1,213,397 $ 
6,973,120 27,555,441 

732,731 
73,825 

115,313 18,402 

8,301,830 28,380,399 

30,942 

1,688,409 

966,254 

1,767,398 

30,942 4,422,061 

$ 8,332,772 $ 32,802,460 

$ 1,507,867 $ 

111,821 

119,295 

1,619,688 119,295 

1,648,103 

1,648,103 

1,018,062 

1,619,688 2,785,460 

30,942 1,688,409 

1,767,398 
6,682,142 26,561,193 

6,713,084 30,017,000 

$ 8,332,772 $ 32,802,460 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Recycling 
Fund 

3,447,145 
52,117 

3,499,262 

3,499,262 

16,078 

16,078 

16,078 

3,483,184 

3,483,184 

3,499,262 

Organics 
Fund Total 

$ $ 1,213,397 
2,849,932 40,825,638 

784,848 
73,825 

133,715 

2,849,932 43,031,423 

731 ,863 762,805 

1,688,409 

966,254 

1,767,398 

731,863 5,184,866 

$ 3,581,795 $ 48,216,289 

$ $ 1,507,867 

17,543 145,442 

119,295 

17,543 1,772,604 

1,648,103 

1,648,103 

1,018,062 

17,543 4,438,769 

731 ,863 2,451,214 

1,767,398 
2,832,389 39,558,908 

3,564,252 43,777,520 

$ 3,581,795 $ 48,216,289 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Solid waste charges $ 
Recycling and other revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Municipal solid waste and disposal costs 
Salaries 
Household hazardous waste collection 
Professional fees and contract services 
Transportation subsidy 
Fringe benefits 
Depreciation 
Landfill expenditures 
Fuel 
Insurance 
Office supplies and expenses 
Trash disposal 
Repairs and maintenance 
Publicity 
Rent 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating loss 

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES) 
Unrealized loss on investments 
Investment income and dividends 
Change in post-closure care costs 

Total Nonoperating Income (Expenses) 

Transfers In/(Out) 

Change in net position 

TOTAL NET POSITION, beginning 

TOTAL NET POSITION, ending $ 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Solid 
Operating Waste 

Fund Fund 

$ 7,836,806 
7,280 

7,844,086 

9,467,863 
360,171 

170,290 
250,000 

132,200 
10,026 

123,753 

55,164 
59,890 

21 ,000 
15,082 

947,576 9,717,863 

{947,576) (1,873,777) 

(350,304) 
1,898,964 

118,752 

1,548,660 118,752 

(35,910,234) 29,244,509 

(35,309,150) 27,489,484 

42,022,234 2,527,516 

6,713,084 $ 30,017,000 

See notes to financial statements. 
11 

Recycling Organics 
Fund Fund 

$ $ 
495,161 

495,161 

6,309 
87,628 107,351 

302,035 
100,350 

31,666 36,429 
183,428 

73,613 
13,906 

517 4,015 
55,133 

41,456 
36,766 

2,096 

515,841 566,857 

(20,680) (566,857) 

3,431,944 3,233,781 

3,411,264 2,666,924 

71,920 897,328 

$ 3,483,184 $ 3,564,252 

Total 

$ 7,836,806 
502,441 

8,339,247 

9,474,172 
555,150 
302,035 
270,640 
250,000 
200,295 
193,454 
123,753 
73,613 
69,070 
64,422 
55,133 
41 ,456 
36,766 
21,000 
17,178 

11,748, 137 

(3,408,890) 

(350,304) 
1,898,964 

118,752 

1,667,412 

(1 ,741,478) 

45,518,998 

$ 43,777,520 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from fees from customers for services 
Cash received from solid waste charges 
Cash paid to employees for services 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment return 

Net Cash Provided by 

Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash inflow/(outflow) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 

Financing Activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in investments 
Decrease (increase) in accounts and other receivables 
Increase in lease receivable 
Decrease in prepaid expenses 
Decrease in landfill post-closure reserve 
Increase in accounts payable 

and other payables 
Increase in accrued benefits 

Increase in inflows 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 

Operating Activities 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Solid 
Operating Waste 

Fund Fund 

$ $ 
7,924,883 

(467,996) 
34,494,674 (37,169,392) 

34,026,678 (29,244,509) 

1,548,660 

1,548,660 

(35,910,234) 29,244,509 

(35,910,234) 29,244,509 

(334,896) 

1,548,293 

$ 1,213,397 $ 

$ (947,576) $ (1 ,873,777) 

10,026 

35,027,277 (27,554,227) 
80,797 
64,785 

32,964 (5,889) 
118,752 

(120,388) 
24,375 

(74,950) 

$ 34,026,678 $ (29,244,509) 

See notes to financial statements. 
12 

Recycling Organics 

Fund Fund Total 

$ 530,993 $ $ 530,993 
7,924,883 

(119,484) (144,235) (731,715) 
(3 ,843,453) (3,089,546) (9,607,717) 

(3,431,944) (3,233,781) (1,883,556) 

1,548,660 

1,548,660 

3,431,944 3,233,781 

3,431,944 3,233,781 

(334,896) 

1,548,293 

$ $ $ 1,213,397 

$ (20,680) $ (566,857) $ (3,408,890) 

183,428 193,454 

(3,446,906) (2,849,897) 1,176,247 
35,832 116,629 

64,785 
27,075 

118,752 

(120,388) 
(190) (455) 23,730 

(74,950) 

$ (3,431 ,944) $ (3,233,781) $ (1 ,883,556) 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of SCRRRA conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the 
significant accounting policies: 

Reporting Entity - The Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 
(1 1SCRRRA11

) was organized for the purpose of developing and implementing a long-term 
solution to problems in regional resources recovery and the disposal of municipal solid waste in 
Southeastern Connecticut. The by-laws of SCRRRA were adopted on January 16, 1985. 
SCRRRA is made up of member municipalities who have elected to paiiicipate in SCRRRA. 

SCRRRA entered into a Bridge and Management Agreement with the Connecticut Resources 
Recove1y Authority (11 CRRA") as of December 1, 1987. There are currently twelve towns 
paiiicipating in the Agreement. Under the Bridge and Management Agreement, CRRA was 
required to cause a resource recovery facility (the 11 Facility 11

) to be constructed and operated for a 
twenty-five year period, and SCRRRA was required to provide the waste from the municipalities 
executing municipal service agreements to the Facility and to pay service fees to cover the costs 
of constructing and operating the Facility. In turn, the municipalities under the municipal service 
agreements were obligated to supply SCRRRA with waste and to reimburse SCRRRA for all 
service fee payments. On June 6, 2014, Governor Malloy signed Public 
Act 14-94, which established the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority ("MIRA") as the 
successor authority to the CRRA. On July 28, 2016, the MIRA board of directors passed a 
resolution to terminate the Bridge and Management agreement. On July 12, 2017, an 
indemnification agreement was entered into between SCRRRA and MIRA. SCRRRA has 
entered into municipal service contracts for the disposal of solid waste through December 31, 
2030. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - SCRRRA maintains a proprietary fund which 
contains enterprise fund types. SCRRRA's operations and balances are accounted for using a 
sepai·ate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, 
and expenses. 

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs of providing 
goods or services on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primai·ily through user chai·ges. 

SCRRRA's financial statements ai·e repo1ied using an economic resource measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when incmTed. 

SCRRRA distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the disposal 
of solid waste. The principal operating revenues of SCRRRA are user fees from the member 
towns. Operating expenses include the cost of disposal of solid waste, salai·ies and fringe 
benefits, insurance, rent, utilities, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are rep01ied as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 20, 
SCRRRA applies all GASB pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Statements, Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research 
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with GASB 
pronouncements. 

SCRRRA's major funds consist of the Operating, Solid Waste, Recycling, and Organics Funds 
as described below: 

Opemting Fund - The administrative functions of SCRRRA are accounted for in the 
Operating Fund. All unrestricted resources, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund, are accounted for in this fund. 

Solid Waste Fund (an Ente,prise Fund) - The Authority provides services in connection 
with the disposal of solid waste for its participating towns. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services in connection with the disposal of solid waste. The 
principal operating revenues of SCRRRA are user fees from the member towns. 

Recycling Fund (an Enterprise Fund) - The Authority provides single stream recycling 
through a private vendor for its member towns. SCRRRA also provides electronics recycling, 
town transfer station suppo1i, and household hazardous waste collections at various times and 
locations throughout the region. 

Organics Fund (an Ente1prise Fund) - SCRRRA owns and operates a horizontal wood 
grinder. The wood grinder is used to chip brush at town transfer stations into more 
manageable and usable wood chips. SCRRRA also hauls chips at the request of member 
towns. 

Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, SCRRRA considers all highly 
liquid investments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2023. 

Accounts Receivable - SCRRRA canies its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, SCRRRA evaluates its accounts receivable and 
establishes an allowance for doubtful aQcounts, when deemed necessaiy, based on its history of 
past write-offs and collections, and cunent credit conditions. Management considered all 
accounts receivable to be collectible and, therefore, there was no allowance for doubtful accounts 
as of June 30, 2023. 

Investments - In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement 
and Application. This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related 
to fair value measurements. This statement provides guidance for applying fair value to 
certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Investments are stated at fair value. SCRRRA invests in the State Treasurer's Short-Term 
Investment Fund (STIF), which is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office. 
The fair value of SCRRRA's position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool 
shares. Beginning in fiscal 2016, the Authority also invested in mutual funds operated by Charles 
Schwab. 

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. Investment income 
includes all interest, dividends, and net realized gains and losses. The cost of securities sold is 
based on the specific identification method. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets include property, plant, vehicles, and equipment. Capital assets 
are defined by SCRRRA as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000, and an 
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not 
capitalized. 

Capital Assets of the Authority are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: · 

Buildings, structures and improvements 
Equipment 

10 years 
3-10 years 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Accrued benefits - A maximum of thirty earned vacation days may be accumulated by 
employees until te1mination of their employment, at which time they are paid for accumulated 
unused vacation time. Accrued benefits are accrued at crnrent salary rates. Accumulated vacation 
and sick leave earned and not paid as of June 30, 2023 were valued at $145,442, and classified as 
a component of cunent liabilities on the Statement of Net Position. 

I11te1fund Transactions - Following is a description of the three basic types of interfund 
transactions and the related accounting policies: 

Transactions to reimburse a fund for expenditures made by it for the benefit of another 
fund - these transactions are recorded as expenditures in the disbursing fund and as a 
reduction of expenditures in the receiving fund. 

Transactions to shift revenues or contributions from the fund budgeted to receive them to 
the fund budgeted to expend them - these transactions are recorded as operating transfers 
in and out. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Transactions to record equity contributions between funds - the receiving fund records 
such transactions as an addition to net position. The disbursing fund records the 
transaction as a reduction of net position. 

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the related note payable. Restricted net position is limited to outside third party 
restrictions and represents the net position that has been legally identified for the specific 
purpose of the landfill post-closure obligations. Unrestricted net position can be divided into 
designated and undesignated portions. Designated net position would be for SCRRRA's self­
imposed limitations on the use of otherwise unrestricted net position. As of June 30, 2023 all of 
the unrestricted net position was undesignated. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conf01mity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Budgeta,y Information - Annual appropriated operating budgets are adopted for the Authority 
by the Board of Directors. The Executive Director submits a detailed operating budget to the 
Executive Committee of the SCRRRA Board. Upon review and approval by the Executive 
Committee, the budget is published and presented to the SCRRRA Board for acceptance and 
approval. 

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 3 requires governmental 
organizations to categorize their cash deposits and investments into three levels of risk. Categmy 
1 includes amounts issued or collateralized with securities held by SCRRRA or by its agent in 
SCRRRA's name. Category 2 includes amounts which are collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institution's tmst depaitment or agent in the name of SCRRRA. Categ01y 3 
includes amounts which are uninsured and uncollateralized including any bank balance that is 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department 
or agent, but not in the name of SCRRRA. 

Cash Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, SCRRRA will 
not be able to recover its deposits. SCRRRA's investment policy does not have a deposit policy 
for custodial credit risk. 

For purpose of this disclosure, cash deposits include bank deposits. As of June 30, 2023, the 
canying amount of SCRRRA's unrestricted cash deposits totaled $1,213,397. As of June 30, 
2023 the bank balance totaled $1,174,643, of which $250,000 was insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (Category 1) as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards 

16 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Board Statement No. 3. All of the Authority's deposits were in qualified public institutions as 
defined by State statute. Under this statute, any bank holding public deposits must at all times 
maintain, segregated from other assets, eligible collateral in an amount equal to a certain 
percentage of its public deposits. This percentage was 100%, and as a result, the remaining 
$924,643 was collateralized at June 30, 2023. 

Investments - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
SCRRRA will not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside paiiy. SCRRRA's investment policy does not include 
provisions for custodial credit risk, as SCRRRA does not invest in securities that are held by 
counterparties. In accordance with GASB No. 40, none of SCRRRA's investments require 
custodial credit risk disclosures. SCRRRA has no formal investment policy that would limit its 
investment choices due to credit risk other than State statutes governing investments in 
obligations of any state or political subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or 
political subdivision. 

SCRRRA does not have a f01mal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates. 

In general, State of Connecticut Statutes allow SCRRRA to invest in obligations of the United 
States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other 
interests in any custodial anangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment 
company or investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any State or political subdivision 
rated within the top two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in 
obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating 
categories of any nationally recognized rating service. 

Investments are required to be categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by 
. the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered and held by 

SCRRRA or its agent in SCRRRA's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in 
SCRRRA's name. Categ01y 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which 
securities are held by the counterpaiiy, or by its trust department or agent but not in SCRRRA's 
name. SCRRRA had no investments subject to categorization as of June 30, 2023. 

At June 30, 2023, SCRRRA, through its investment in Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF), held 
investments in adjustable rate, asset backed corporate, Federal agency and other government 
bonds whose interest rate varies directly with short-term money market indices and are reset 
daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly and semi-annually. STIF accounts are operated by the State of 
Connecticut's Treasurer's Office. 

The adjustable rate, asset backed corporate and Federal agency securities are rated AAA by at 
least two nationally recognized credit rating agencies. The adjustable rate securities' exposure to 
credit and legal risks are the same as the fixed rate securities of the same issuer. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

At June 30, 2023, SCRRRA's investments consisted of the following: 

Type of Investment 
Charles Schwab Mutual Funds 
Short-Term Investment Fund 
Short-Term Investment Fund 

Fund Type 
Operating 
Operating 
Enterprise 

Fair Value 
$42,590,628 

$2,123 
$285 

Risk Category 
3 
* 
* 

*Not applicable, since SCRRRA does not own identifiable securities, but invests as a 
shareholder of the investment pool. 

The Authority categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three 
levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Authority does not have any 
investments that are measured using Level 2 and 3 inputs. 

The following table sets fmth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Authority's investments 
at fair value as of June 30, 2023. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Mutual funds - bonds $ 30,466,904 $ $ $ 30,466,904 
Mutual funds - equities 12,123,694 12,123,694 
Mutual funds - money market 30 30 
STIF 2,408 2,408 

Total Investments at Fair Value $ 42,593,036 $ $ $ 42,593,036 

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023 consists of the following: 

Solid 
Operating Waste Recycling Organics 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 
Due from Member Towns $ $ $ 52,117 $ $ 52,117 
Accounts receivable other 64,377 64,377 
Household hazardous waste 668,354 668,354 

732,731 52,117 784,848 
Less allowance for 

doubtful accounts 

Total Accounts Receivable $ $ 732,731 $ 52,117 $ $ 784,848 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 4 - LANDFILL POST-CLOSURE COSTS 

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the following changes occuned in long-te1m liabilities: 

Redeemed/ 
Balance at Issued/ Matured/ Balance at Cunent Long-te1m 

Description July O 1, 2022 Additions Paid June 30, 2023 Pmiion Pmiion 

Closure and 
post-closure 

care costs $ 1,886,150 $ $ (118,752) $ 1,767,398 $ 119,295 $ 1,648,103 

Total $ 1,886,150 $ $ (118,752) $ 1,767,398 $ 119,295 $ 1,648,103 

NOTE 5 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 

SCRRRA contributes to a SEP/IRA plan for its employees. The Board of Directors determines 
the contribution rate, which was 8.5% of the gross wages of eligible employees for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. All employees are eligible to paiiicipate after six months of employment 
with SCRRRA and are 100% vested upon eligibility. Employer contributions made during the 
year ended June 30, 2023 totaled $44,309. SCRRRA's total covered payroll for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 was $522,941. 

NOTE 6 - LEASE COMMITMENTS 

SCRRRA has an agreement with the Mohegan Tribe of Indians of Connecticut for the lease of 
the Montville Ash Landfill and surrounding area for a period of 99 years that provides the 
Mohegan' s with the option to buy the land for $1 at any time during the life of the lease. At the 
inception of the lease the Mohegan Tribe paid CRRA, for the benefit of SCRRRA, basic rent of 
$2,000,000 which is non-refundable, plus $2,000,000 to fund a Landfill Closure Reserve Fund, 
which is non-refundable and was used for the maintenance and monitoring of the landfill. 

SCRRRA closed and capped the landfill and performed all other activities required under the 
landfill permits and other legal obligations. The Mohegan Tribe reimbursed SCRRRA for ce1iain 
capping and closing costs related to the landfill. The landfill closure has been completed and 
approved by the Depaiiment of Environmental Protection. 

During August 2013, SCRRRA relocated its administrative office to Gales Fen-y, subject to a 
non-cancelable operating lease expiring on February 28, 2017. In January 2017, this lease was 
modified to a month-to-month basis. Operating expenses for this lease are the responsibility of 
the lessor and lessee, as defined in the rental agreements. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 6-LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

During 2022, SCRRRA implemented the requirements of GASB Number 87 pe1iaining to leases. 
The pronouncement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 
previously classified as operating leases and recognition of inflows and outflows of resources in 
accordance with the terms of the contract. These related assets and liabilities are accounted for at 
the present value of future monthly lease payments over the term of the lease discounted at the 
incremental rate at the time the contract is entered into. SCRRRA adopted this pronouncement 
effective July 1, 2021 with no material differences attributable to beginning fund balance, and 
therefore, no restatement was made of the beginning fund balance. 

Under GASB 87, SCRRRA's month-to-month office lease in Gales Ferry is considered to be a 
short-term lease and is not subject to the requirements of GASB 87. 

In February 2022, SCRRRA entered into a lease as the lessor with Covanta Southeastern 
Connecticut Company for use of the land on which Covanta's facility is built. The lease requires 
monthly payments of $7,292 through February 2027. The lease includes the option for 4 
additional renewals, each with 5-year terms. As of June 30, 2023, SCRRRA is reasonably ce1iain 
Covanta will extend the lease for at least 2 more te1ms, through 203 7. The future payments have 
been discounted to present value using a blend of the 10- and 20-year treasury rates to 
approximate a 15 year rate of 2.11 %. The amount of the lease receivable and the defened inflow 
of resources related to the future payments expected to be received are $1,040,079 and 
$1,018,062, respectively, as of June 30, 2023. 

The deferred inflow of resources reflects the present value of these lease payments at lease 
inception am01iized over the 15-year term of the lease on a straight-line basis. The lease 
receivable reflects the declining principal balance of the present value of the lease receivable. 

NOTE 7 - WASTE TO ENERGY FACILITY 

The waste-to-energy facility, which was completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, 
was funded with bonds issued by CRRA, a political subdivision of the State of Connecticut. 
Once the bonds were paid, ownership of the facility was transfened to the operator, Covanta, 
with SCRRRA retaining ownership of the land. 

The bonds used to finance the construction of the waste-to-energy facility were paid in full 
on November 15, 2015. Title to the facility was transferred to Covanta, the operator, on 
December 15, 2015. On February 17, 2017, SCRRRA entered into a new service agreement with 
the operator with an expiration date of December 31, 2020. 

On Januaiy 1, 2021, SCRRRA entered into a IO-year waste disposal agreement with 
Wheelabrator Technologies, the operator of the Lisbon, Connecticut waste-to-energy facility 
with an expiration date of December 31, 203 0. 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 8 - LANDFILL CLOSURE OBLIGATION 

State and Federal laws and regulations required SCRRRA to place a final cover on its Montville 
landfill site when the cell reached final grade and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the site for thirty years after final closure. SCRRRA closed the landfill in 2001 and 
received certification from the State of Connecticut, Department of Environmental Protection. 

Therefore, there is no remaining capacity or useful life. SCRRRA was required by State and 
Federal laws and regulations to maintain a reserve fund to finance closure and post-closure care. 
In February 2005, SCRRRA was granted approval by the State of Connecticut, Department of 
Environmental Protection to use the "local government financial test" by municipalities and state 
quasi-public authorities as the financial assurance mechanism for post-closure care at its solid 
waste landfill. As a result of this ruling, SCRRRA is cmTently using the "local government 
financial test" as the instrument for post-closure care financial assurance. SCRRRA was in 
compliance with these requirements at June 30, 2023, and in addition to satisfying such 
requirements, SCRRRA had investments in the amount of $1,767,398 that were held as an 
additional reserve at June 30, 2023. 

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

SCRRRA is exposed to various risks and loss related to t01is; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. SCRRRA purchases 
commercial insurance for all of its risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 10 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 consisted of the following: 

Balance at Balance at 
Description July O 1, 2022 Additions Disposals June 30, 2023 

Depreciable assets: 
Leasehold improvements $ 180,694 $ $ $ 180,694 
Facilities and equipment 1,617,203 1,617,203 
Vehicles 173 971 173,971 

1,971,868 1,971,868 
Less: Accumulated 

depreciation 1,015,609 193,454 1,209,063 

Total Depreciable Assets, net $ 956,259 $ (193,454) $ $ 762,805 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 10 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

The capital assets as of June 30, 2023 listed by fund are as follows: 

Solid 

Operating Waste Recycling Organics 

Description Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Depreciable assets: 
Leasehold improvements $ 180,694 $ $ $ $ 180,694 
Facilities and equipment 78,304 1,538,899 1,617,203 
Vehicles 173,971 173,971 

258,998 1,712,870 1,971,868 
Less: Accumulated 

depreciation 228,056 981 ,007 1,209,063 

Total Depreciable Assets, net $ 30,942 $ $ $ 731,863 $ 762,805 

Solid 

Operating Waste Recycling Organics 

Descri:12tion Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

N ondepreciable assets: 

Land $ $ 1,688,409 $ $ $ 1,688,409 

The carrying cost of fixed assets related to the Montville Ash Landfill leased to the Mohegan 
Tribe of Indians has been reduced to reflect the option purchase price of $1. 

NOTE 11 - UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Unrestricted net position consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023: 

Unrestricted Net Position: 
Board Designated Reserves: 

Service fee stabilization 
Capital projects 
Organics operations 
Household hazardous waste 

Transp01iation subsidy 
Recycling 
Working capital reserve 

Total Unrestricted Net Position 
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$ 24,811 ,193 
5,882,142 

2,832,389 
1,975,617 
1,750,000 
1,507,567 

800,000 

$ 39,558,908 



SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 12 - SINGLE STREAM RECYCLING AGREEMENT 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, SCRRRA entered into an agreement with a private vendor, 
Willimantic Waste Paper Co., Inc. ("WWP") in order to establish a program for single stream 
recycling for its member towns. In 2015, the agreement automatically renewed for an additional 
five-year period through October 31, 2019. On October 1, 2019 SCRRRA renewed for an 
additional five-year period through September 30, 2024. The vendor has agreed to provide single 
stream recycling services to each of the Member towns. Each town that chooses to participate in 
the single stream recycling program is offered a separate agreement with WWP. 
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Simione Macca & LarrowLLP 
~ 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVI SORS 

"On Balance, We Offer You More." 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTSPERFORMEDINACCORDANCEWITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Southeastern Connecticut Regional 
Resources Recovery Authority 

Gales Feny, Connecticut 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of each major fund of the Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery 
Authority ("SCRRRA") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise SCRRRA's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SCRRRA's 
internal control over financial repmiing (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of SCRRRA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of SCRRRA's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nmmal course of perfmming their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and conect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
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not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SCRRRA's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this repo1i is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This repo1i is an integral pali of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

~i~ Yrt~t lar~~ LLP 

Wethersfield, Connecticut 
February 28, 2024 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

EXHIBIT 1- SERVICE FEES 
(Unaudited) 

FISCAL YEAR PRICE PER TON 

1992 $ 62.00 

1993 $ 79.00 

1994 $ 98.00 
1995 $ 87.00 

1996 $ 86.00 

1997 $ 84.00 

1998 $ 79.00 

1999 1/2 $ 75.50 

1999 1/2 $ 62.00 

2000 $ 59.00 
2001 $ 58.00 
2002 $ 57.00 

2003 $ 57.00 
2004 $ 60.00 
2005 $ 60.00 
2006 $ 60.00 

2007 $ 60.00 
2008 $ 60.00 
2009 $ 60.00 
2010 $ 60.00 
2011 $ 60.00 
2012 $ 60.00 
2013 $ 60.00 
2014 $ 58.00 
2015 $ 58.00 
2016 $ 58.00 
2017 $ 58.00 
2018 $ 58.00 
2019 $ 58.00 
2020 $ 58.00 
2021 $ 58.00 
2022 $ 58.00 
2023 $ 59.25 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

EXHIBIT 2 - TONNAGE DATA REPORT BY TOWN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

Municipal Single 
Solid Stream 
Waste Recycling 

Town of East Lyme 9,636 1,871 
Town of Griswold 4,708 29 
Town of Groton 24,763 1,204 
Town of Ledyard 6,004 1,265 
Town of Montville 13,712 1,635 
City of New London 18,915 1,013 
Town of North Stonington 4,075 325 
City of Norwich 23,603 3,209 
Town of Preston 2,180 183 
Town of Sprague 1,144 73 
Town of Stonington 11 ,531 3,706 
Town of Waterford 11,501 1,974 
Other 281 

Total tonnage 132,053 16,487 
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SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL 
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

EXHIBIT 3 - OPERATIONAL BENEFIT TO TOWNS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

Number of 
Savings 
Benefit 

Re~orting Period (July 2022 - June 2023) Units/Weight to Towns 
Alkaline Batteries (Pounds) 13,246 $ 9,935 
Tires (Units) 10,043 28,711 
Fluorescent Bulbs (Pounds) 22,366 8,843 
Electronic Waste (Tons) 300 97,659 
Freon (Units) 8,443 50,658 
Oil & Antifreeze (Gallons) 31,080 27,034 
Oil Filters, Oily Debris (55 Gal Drums) 22 1,650 
Wood Grinder Service (Hours) 552 431,338 
Chip Hauling 180 81,000 
Propane Tanks 844 
Mattresses (Units) 16,883 99,779 
Household Hazardous Collections (Cars) 3,920 236,995 
Disposal Fees - Trash 132,053 1,424,855 
Disposal Fees - Recycling 16,487 
Transp01iation Subsidy 250,000 

Total $ 2,748,457 
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ATTACHMENT J – BUSINESS INFORMATION 

ATTACHMENTS 2 AND 3 
Attachment 2: Costs of financing, design, construction and start-up 

1. The estimated cost for design, construction and start-up is $5 million.  SCRRRA will pay for 
these costs using its reserve funds (see Attachment 1). 

2. SCRRRA has undertaken and implemented solid waste management facility projects in the 
past, of comparable magnitude.  Development of the Preston waste-to-energy facility was a 
multi-million-dollar development.  Similarly, operation and closure of the Montville ash landfill 
was a multi-million-dollar facility. 

3. SCS certifies that the $5 million estimate is reasonable for this facility. 

  Attachment 3: Costs for operation of the facility 

1. The estimated annual cost for operating and maintaining the facility is $220,000, which 
includes labor, fuel, utilities, equipment maintenance, insurance, regulatory compliance, 
disposal of rejects, and wood grinding. 

2. SCRRRA expects to earn annual revenues of about $260,000 in the first year, with revenues 
escalating in future years.  Revenues will include tipping fees and finished compost sales. 

3. As noted, SCRRRA expects that revenues will exceed expenses.  Excess revenues will be 
placed into an existing reserve fund, managed by SCRRRA.  Unexpected costs will be paid 
from SCRRRA’s reserve funds (see Attachment 1). 
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SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of the 28th day of March, 2019, by and 

between THE SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL RESOURCES RECOVERY 

AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as “SCRRRA”), a body politic and corporate, constituting 

a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the State of Connecticut (hereinafter referred 

to as “SCRRRA”), and WHEELABRATOR LISBON INC., a corporation organized under the 

laws of the State of Delaware (hereinafter referred to as “Wheelabrator”).  Capitalized terms not 

otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.01 below. 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS Wheelabrator has agreed to operate a mass burn resource recovery facility 

for disposing of Acceptable Waste (defined below), which facility is located in Lisbon, 

Connecticut (together with all additions, replacements, appurtenant structures, improvements and 

equipment in connection therewith, the “Facility”) and owned by EASTERN CONNECTICUT 

RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY, a public authority under the laws of the State of 

Connecticut (hereinafter referred to as “ECRRA”) pursuant to a ten (10) year Operation and 

Maintenance Agreement between Wheelabrator and ECRRA dated as of March 28, 2019 (the 

“O&M Agreement”) that obligates Wheelabrator to perform the obligations set forth therein.  

WHEREAS, ECCRA has negotiated an arrangement with SCRRRA for the delivery of 

Acceptable Waste to the Facility during the term of the O&M Agreement and has requested 

Wheelabrator to enter into this Agreement in furtherance of such arrangement, with ECRRA’s 

acknowledgement of such arrangement and approval of the terms of this Agreement being set 

forth on Exhibit A;    

WHEREAS the obligations of Wheelabrator under the O&M Agreement and the 

obligations of the Wheelabrator under this Agreement are guaranteed by Granite Acquisition, 

Inc., the indirect parent of Wheelabrator. 

WHEREAS SCRRRA and Wheelabrator wish to provide for disposal of Acceptable 

Waste delivered by SCRRRA to the Facility. 

WHEREAS SCRRRA and Wheelabrator intend that this Agreement provide for the 

delivery and acceptance of Acceptable Waste at the Facility commencing on January 1, 2021 (the 

“Service Commencement Date”) and continue until the tenth anniversary of the Service 

Commencement Date, subject to earlier termination in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement . 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 

herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01 Specific Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, except as otherwise 
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expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms listed in this 

Section 1.01 shall have the following meanings: 

“Acceptable Waste” means household unwanted or discarded materials of the kind 

normally collected or disposed of, or caused to be collected or disposed of, by or on behalf of 

SCRRRA and a SCRRRA Community through private or municipal collection and commercial, 

governmental, institutional and light industrial waste, but not including in any case SHW or 

OBW. 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any person, any other person controlling, controlled by, 

or under common control with, such person. 

“Agreement” means this Solid Waste Disposal Agreement between SCRRRA and 

Wheelabrator, as amended from time to time. 

“Alternate Processing Facility” has the meaning specified in Section 2.09. 

 “Annual Settlement Statement” means the statement Wheelabrator must deliver to 

SCRRRA following the end of each Contract Year pursuant to Section 3.05. 

“Authorized Hauler” means any hauler designated by SCRRRA or a SCRRRA 

Community by contract, license, permit or otherwise to deliver Acceptable Waste by or on behalf 

of SCRRRA or a SCRRRA Community to the Facility. 

“Authorized Representative” means (a) in the case of SCRRRA, the Executive Director, 

or (b) in the case of Wheelabrator, the President or any Vice-President, and, when used with 

reference to the performance of any act, the discharge of any duty or the execution or any 

certificate or other document, any officer, employee, partner or other person specifically 

authorized in writing by one of the persons designated above to perform such act, discharge such 

duty or execute such certificate or other document. 

“Base Tipping Fee” has the meaning given in Section 3.02. 

“Billing Period” has the meaning given in Section 3.04(a). 

“Capital Cost” means with respect to any capital expenditure that is recorded on the 

balance sheet as an asset, as defined by GAAP, the purchase price and delivery costs, and out-of-

pocket (including any internal staff costs directly related to the required work but excluding 

corporate overhead expenses of Wheelabrator) and design, engineering, permitting, installation, 

construction and financing costs, net of insurance proceeds actually received by Wheelabrator on 

account of a Change in Law or Force Majeure Event as applicable. 

“Change in Law” means any of the following events or conditions having or which may 

reasonably be expected to have an effect on the Facility or either party’s ability to perform its 

obligations or exercise its rights under this Agreement: 

(a) the adoption, promulgation, issuance, modification or written change in 

administrative or judicial interpretation after the Execution Date of any federal, state or local law, 
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regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance, unless such law, regulation, rule, requirement, 

ruling or ordinance was on or prior to the Execution Date duly adopted, promulgated, issued or 

otherwise officially modified or changed in interpretation, in each case in final form, to become 

effective without any further action by any federal, state or local governmental body, 

administrative agency or governmental official having jurisdiction; 

(b) the order and/or judgment of any federal, state or local court, administrative 

agency or governmental officer or body, after the Execution Date, if such order and/or judgment 

is not also the result of willful or negligent action or lack of reasonable diligence of the party 

affected thereby, provided that the contesting in good faith or the failure to contest any such 

order and/or judgment shall not constitute or be construed as a willful or negligent action or a 

lack of reasonable diligence of the party affected thereby; or 

(c) the denial of an application for or suspension, termination, interruption, 

imposition of a new condition in connection with the renewal or failure of renewal after the 

Execution Date of any permit, license, consent, authorization or approval essential to the 

performance of this Agreement, if it is not also the result of willful or negligent action or a lack 

of reasonable diligence of the party affected thereby, provided that the contesting in good faith or 

the failure to contest any such suspension, termination, interruption or failure of renewal shall 

not be construed as willful or negligent action or a lack of reasonable diligence of the party 

affected thereby.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any statute, law, regulation, rule or amendment that increases the 

revenue received by Wheelabrator for the sale of Connecticut Class II renewable energy 

certificates shall not constitute a Change in Law unless as a result thereof the market value of 

Connecticut Class II renewable energy certificates increases above two and one-half cents per 

kilowatt hour, in which event only the net revenue received by Wheelabrator from the sale of 

renewable energy credits in excess of two and one-half cents per kilowatt hour and resulting 

from such statute, law, regulation, rule or amendment shall be credited to SCRRRA in the 

amount of the SCRRRA Share of Change in Law Costs in accordance with Section 3.03(b)(iv). 

“Change in Law Costs” means (i) the net increase or decrease in operation and 

maintenance costs of the Facility required by a Change in Law, (ii) the net increase or decrease in 

revenue generated by the Facility caused by a Change in Law, (iii) the Capital Cost of an asset or 

project required by a Change in Law and (iv) Discriminatory Taxes imposed as a result of a 

Change in Law. 

“Civil Disturbance” means an act of the public enemy, war, terrorism, blockade, 

insurrection, riot, general arrest or restraint of government and people, nuclear incident, civil 

disobedience or similar occurrence. 

“Cost Substantiation” means delivery to SCRRRA of a certificate signed by the 

Authorized Representative of Wheelabrator, setting forth the amount of cost and the reason why 

such cost is properly chargeable to SCRRRA and stating the actual cost or, to the extent it 

involves a third-party, that such cost is an arm’s length and competitive price for the service or 

materials supplied including reasonable documentation of the basis for such certification. 
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“Consumer Price Index” or “CPI” means the consumer price index (Series Id:  

CWURA101SAOLE, Not Seasonally Adjusted) for the New York- Northern New Jersey, Long 

Island, NY-NJ-CT-PA, All items less energy for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, as 

published by the United States Department of Labor Statistics (Base Period 1982-1984 = 100), or 

a mutually agreeable alternative index if such index is no longer published or the method of 

computation hereof is substantially modified. 

“Contract Year” means each 12-month period under this Agreement commencing on July 

1 of each year provided that the first Contract Year shall begin on January 1, 2021 and end on 

June 30, 2021 and the last Contract Year shall begin on July 1, 2030 and end on December 31, 

2030.  A "full Contract Year" is any Contract Year consisting of 12 months.  Obligations 

hereunder with respect to delivery or acceptance of specified amounts of Waste which are stated 

to be applicable to a full Contract Year shall be proportionately reduced in any other Contract 

Year.  

“CPIB” means CPI published as of January 1, 2021. 

“CPIX” means CPI as of January 1 in the computation year. 

“Direct Control” means, with respect to Acceptable Waste required to be delivered to the 

Facility pursuant to this Agreement, all (1) municipal waste that is collected by a SCRRRA 

Community either directly by municipal employees, or under a license or permit issued to a third 

party, or a contract with a third party, to perform such functions on behalf of a SCRRRA 

Community, or (2) municipal waste or commercial waste collected through deliveries to a 

transfer station owned, operated, or used by SCRRRA or a SCRRRA Community.  

“Discriminatory Taxes” means any taxes, assessments or fees imposed by the federal, 

state or local government or any special taxing district or authority, that in any such case are 

imposed on or primarily affect Wheelabrator, the Facility, its operation or the solid waste 

industry or renewable energy industry and that are not generally applicable throughout the entire 

tax base, including any non-municipal franchise tax. 

“Disposal Fees” means the amounts Wheelabrator is entitled to receive from SCRRRA 

under Article III. 

“Disposal Fee Adjustments” shall mean the adjustments set forth or referred to in Section 

3.01. 

“Excess Waste” has the meaning given in Section 2.02(b). 

“Execution Date” means the date hereof. 

“Facility” has the meaning given to it in the Recitals. 

 “Force Majeure Costs” means (i) the net increase in operation and maintenance costs of 

the Facility required by a Force Majeure Event, (ii) the net decrease in revenues generated by the 

Facility caused by a Force Majeure Event and (iii) the Capital Cost of an asset or project required 

by a Force Majeure Event. 
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“Force Majeure Event” means: 

(a) a Civil Disturbance; 

(b) a Non-Operator Strike; 

(c) an act of God, landslide, lightning, hurricane, tornado, very high wind, blizzard, 

ice storm, drought, or flood (but not including weather conditions for the geographic area of the 

Facility that should have been reasonably anticipated); or 

(d) any other event or circumstance, including fire or explosion, which prevents 

either party from performing its obligations under this Agreement, which event or circumstance 

was not anticipated as of the Execution Date by and is not within the reasonable control of, and 

without fault or negligence of, the party claiming a Force Majeure Event with respect to such 

event or circumstance, and which by the exercise of due diligence the party claiming a Force 

Majeure Event is unable to overcome, avoid or mitigate ; provided, that a Force Majeure Event 

shall not include: (i) a lack of funds or other adverse financial event; (ii) economic hardship 

resulting from the performance of or compliance with any of the covenants or obligations 

contained in this Agreement, (iii) changes in market conditions, (iv) equipment failure unless 

caused by a Force Majeure Event, or (v) strikes, labor conditions or lockouts that do not 

constitute a Non-Operator Strike. 

“Force Majeure Termination”  has the meaning given in Section 7.03. 

“Force Majeure Termination Avoidance Amount” has the meaning given in Section 7.03. 

“Force Majeure Termination Threshold”  has the meaning given in Section 7.03. 

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles. 

“Guarantor” means Granite Acquisition, Inc.  A copy of the Guaranty Agreement is 

attached hereto as Schedule 4.03. 

“Hazardous Residue” means Residue which according to federal, State or local rules or 

regulations from time to time in effect requires special handling in its collection, treatment or 

disposal, including that regulated under 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6925 and regulations thereunder 

adopted by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, pursuant to the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 90 Stat. 2806, 42 U.S.C. § 6901. 

“Hazardous Waste” means pathological, biological, cesspool or other human wastes, 

human and animal remains, radioactive, toxic and other hazardous wastes, or hazardous 

substances, which according to federal, State or local rules or regulations from time to time in 

effect require special handling in their collection, treatment or disposal, including those regulated 

under 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6925 and regulations thereunder adopted by the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 

1976, 90 Stat. 2806, 42 U.S.C. § 6901, such as cleaning fluids, crankcase oils, cutting oils, 

paints, acids, caustics, poisons, drugs, fine powdery earth used to filter cleaning fluid and refuse 

of similar nature, and including hazardous substances regulated under 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601-9675 
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and regulations thereunder adopted by the United States Environmental Protection Agency 

pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 

1980, 42  U.S.C. §§ 9601.  

“Landfill” means one or more landfill disposal facilities utilized by Wheelabrator that are 

legally available for the disposal of Unprocessed Waste, SHW, Residue and OBW. 

“Legal Holidays” means New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 

Thanksgiving and Christmas. 

“MFN Rate” has the meaning given in Section 3.03(c). 

“MSWMSA” means collectively the Municipal Solid Waste Management Services 

Agreements between SCRRRA and each of the SCRRRA Communities dated as of November 

17, 1985, as may be amended from time to time. 

“Municipal Obligations” has the meaning given in Section 4.01. 

“Non-Operator Strike” means a strike, lockout, or similar industrial or labor action not 

directed solely at Wheelabrator, an Affiliate of Wheelabrator, a Subcontractor, or at the operation 

or maintenance of the Facility.  If Wheelabrator is able and willing to accept and process 

Acceptable Waste at the Facility, a refusal by drivers delivering any Acceptable Waste (and not 

employed by Wheelabrator, another Affiliate of Wheelabrator, or a Subcontractor), to cross 

picket lines at the Facility shall constitute a Non-Operator Strike, whether or not the existence of 

such picket lines also would constitute a Non-Operator Strike. 

“Oversized Bulky Waste” or “OBW” means white goods and other unwanted or 

discarded materials delivered by or on behalf of SCRRRA which  

(a) are of the kinds normally collected or disposed of, or caused to be collected or 

disposed of, by or on behalf of SCRRRA or a SCRRRA Community through private or 

municipal collection,  

(b) in the judgment of Wheelabrator, reasonably exercised, cannot be processed in the 

Facility because of size or non-combustibility,  

(c) would not constitute SHW under clause (a), (b) or (d) of the definition of such 

term,  

(d) may be disposed of in a Landfill holding a permit issued by the Connecticut 

Department of Energy and Environmental Protection under Section 22a-209-1 and  regulations 

issued pursuant thereto or any successor provision, and  

(e) are not too large to be deposited and stored at the Facility, or transported to a 

Landfill. 

“O&M Agreement” has the meaning given in the Recitals. 
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“Recycling” means solid waste segregation and recycling or reuse programs mandated or 

approved by the State, any SCRRRA Community or any interlocal agency. 

“Residue” means that material remaining after incineration of Waste at the Facility, 

including ash, fly ash, water and non-combustible portions of Waste. 

“SCRRRA Capacity” means up to one hundred forty-five thousand (145,000) Tons in a 

Contract Year. 

“SCRRRA Community” (and together the “SCRRRA Communities”) means the Cities 

and Towns listed on Schedule 1. 

“SCRRRA Share” means the proportional share of costs for which SCRRRA may be 

responsible under the provisions of this Agreement, calculated by multiplying the total amount of 

costs by a fraction, the numerator of which is the average of the total amount of Acceptable 

Waste delivered or obligated to be delivered by SCRRRA to the Facility in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement during each of the three (3) Contract Years preceding the calculation of 

SCRRRA Share or, if less than three Contract Years since the Service Commencement Date, then 

the total amount of Acceptable Waste delivered or obligated to be delivered by SCRRRA to the 

Facility in accordance with the terms of this Agreement during the Contract Year immediately 

preceding the calculation of SCRRRA Share and the denominator of which is 180,000.  For 

billing purposes in the first Contract Year, the “Approximate SCRRRA Share” shall be Seventy-

five Percent (75%) subject to correction and reconciliation in the Annual Settlement Statement.  

“Service Commencement Date” means January 1, 2021. 

“Special Handling Waste” or “SHW” means (a) Hazardous Waste; (b) dirt, concrete and 

other nonburnable construction material and demolition debris; (c) large items of machinery and 

equipment, such as motor vehicles and major components. thereof (transmissions, rear ends, 

springs, fenders), agricultural equipment, trailers and marine vessels, and any other item of waste 

exceeding six feet in any one of its dimensions or being in whole or in part of a solid mass, the 

solid mass portion of which has dimensions such that a sphere with a diameter of eight inches 

could be contained within such solid mass portion, including, in the context of deliveries to the 

Facility, OBW; and (d) explosives, ordnance materials, oil, sludges, highly inflammable 

substances, hazardous chemicals, tires and other materials the acceptance of which, in the 

judgment of Wheelabrator, reasonably exercised, is likely to cause damage to or adversely affect 

the operation of the Facility, constitute a threat to health or safety, or violate or cause the 

violation of any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or judicial or administrative 

decision or order. 

“Spot Waste” means any Waste delivered to the Facility without a contract or under a 

contract having a term of one year or less; provided that a contract for Waste delivered to the 

Facility with an initial term of one year or less but containing provisions for one or more renewal 

terms at either party’s sole option which, if exercised, and when combined with the initial term, 

results in a contract with a total term of at least one year plus one day, shall not be a contract for 

Spot Waste.   
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“State” means the State of Connecticut. 

“Subcontractor” means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity contracting 

directly with Wheelabrator or any Affiliate of Wheelabrator to perform or provide any part of the 

work, materials, supplies or equipment required of Wheelabrator under the O&M Agreement. 

“System” shall mean the Facility and any other equipment, structure, site or sites for the  

collection of Acceptable Waste generated by SCRRRA and/or a SCRRRA Community prior to its 

ultimate delivery to the Facility for disposal, subject to the provisions of this Agreement.  

“Taxes” means all taxes (real or personal), impositions, fees, assessments or other 

charges, direct or indirect. 

“Term” has the meaning given in Section 7.01. 

“Tipping Fee” has the meaning given in Section 3.02. 

“Ton” means 2,000 pounds. 

 “Unprocessed Waste” means Acceptable Waste which Wheelabrator cannot process or 

store at the Facility and that is therefore diverted from the Facility to an Alternate Processing 

Facility or Landfill for ultimate disposal. 

“Useful Life” means with respect to any asset shall be determined in a manner consistent 

with GAAP, but if GAAP provides a range of values for the Useful Life of an asset, each party 

reserves the right to claim, as applicable, a value within range, and the parties shall endeavor in 

good faith to agree on the appropriate value for the asset’s useful life. 

“Waste” means Acceptable Waste, OBW, SHW or any other material delivered to the 

Facility for processing or disposal, whether or not permitted to be so delivered by the terms of 

this Agreement. 

Section 1.02 General Definitions and Construction.  As used in this Agreement, except 

as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires: 

(a) the terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this 

Article, and include the plural as well as the singular; 

(b) all accounting terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings assigned to 

them in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of 

America;  

(c) the words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” and words of similar import refer to 

this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision;  

(d) the words “include” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the words 

“without limitation”; 
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(e) all references in this Agreement to “party” or “parties” are to Wheelabrator and    

SCRRRA, except (i) where the reference clearly specifies a person other than SCRRRA or 

Wheelabrator and (ii) that references to “third party” are to be construed as meaning a person 

other than SCRRRA or Wheelabrator or their Affiliates; and 

(f) all references to a “person” or “persons” are to be construed as including, as 

applicable in the context, individuals, firms, partnerships, corporations, governments, 

governmental bodies, authorities, agencies, unincorporated bodies of partnerships or real person 

associations, and any organization having legal capacity. 

ARTICLE II 

DELIVERY OF ACCEPTABLE WASTE TO  

AND OPERATION OF THE FACILITY 

Section 2.01 Commitment to Deliver Acceptable Waste.   

(a) Delivery of Acceptable Waste.  During the Term of this Agreement and to the 

fullest extent authorized by applicable statutes and case law, SCRRRA shall, and to the fullest 

extent authorized by the MSWMSA shall ensure that each SCRRRA Community shall, deliver or 

cause to be delivered to the Facility, all Acceptable Waste generated within each SCRRRA 

Community, including all Acceptable Waste over which it has Direct Control, in accordance with 

the terms of this Agreement.  To the fullest extent authorized by applicable statute and case law, 

SCRRRA shall not, and to the fullest extent authorized by the MSWMSA shall ensure that each 

SCRRRA Community shall not, deliver, or cause or allow to be delivered, any Acceptable Waste 

generated within any SCRRRA Community to any facility other than the Facility.  Further, 

SCRRRA shall not, and to the fullest extent authorized by the MSWMSA  shall ensure that each 

SCRRRA Community shall not, enter into any other contract or other arrangement pursuant to 

which it agrees to deliver, or cause or allow to be delivered, any Acceptable Waste generated 

within any SCRRRA Community to any facility other than the Facility, unless such Acceptable 

Waste exceeds the amount of 145,000 tons in any Contract Year, but subject to the rights of 

Wheelabrator with regard to Excess Waste as provided in Section 2.02(b).  No SCRRRA 

Community shall have any commitment to deliver any minimum amount of Acceptable Waste.  

Except as provided in Section 2.02(b) with respect to Excess Waste, Wheelabrator may, but shall 

not be obligated to, accept Acceptable Waste from SCRRRA in excess of the SCRRRA Capacity. 

(b) MSWMSAs.  The parties acknowledge that SCRRRA is a party to the MSWMSA 

with the SCRRRA Communities, which contracts are in full force and effect. SCRRRA shall 

comply with its obligations under the MSWMSA in all material respects.  SCRRRA shall enforce 

such contracts and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, require the SCRRRA 

Communities, to the fullest extent authorized by applicable statute and case law, to (i) deliver all 

of the Acceptable Waste generated in their municipality to the System, as directed by SCRRRA, 

for ultimate disposal at the Facility subject to the provisions of this Agreement and (ii) pay the 

Net Cost of Operation (as defined in the MSWMSA).   

(c) Liquidated Damages for Failure to Deliver.  If SCRRRA or a SCRRRA 

Community intentionally breaches its obligation set forth above by causing or allowing 

Acceptable Waste generated in the SCRRRA Community to be delivered to third parties for 

disposal, including without limitation, by granting consents or waivers under, amending or not 
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enforcing, such underlying contracts, then for each such Ton delivered elsewhere, subject to the 

limits set forth above, SCRRRA shall pay to Wheelabrator $42, as liquidated damages. The 

parties agree that the actual harm to Wheelabrator of such intentional breach by SCRRRA is 

difficult to determine and that the liquidated damages so agreed are a reasonable approximation 

of such harm and not a penalty. 

(d) Schedule of Deliveries. Deliveries by SCRRRA of Acceptable Waste will be 

made on a regular basis throughout the entire calendar year pursuant to an agreed upon delivery 

schedule. SCRRRA will provide an estimated monthly delivery schedule for the next calendar 

year to Wheelabrator no later than December 1st each year commencing December 1, 2020 for 

approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. SCRRRA shall update the delivery 

schedule as necessary and provide Wheelabrator with a copy thereof within ten (10) days after 

the end of each calendar quarter. 

(e) Impact of Recycling Programs. Wheelabrator and SCRRRA agree that no 

provision of this Agreement is intended either to discourage or prohibit Recycling.   

Section 2.02 Commitment to Accept Acceptable Waste up to SCRRRA Capacity; 

Excess Waste.   

(a) Wheelabrator will accept, and process and/or dispose of, in accordance with the 

terms hereof, on and after the Service Commencement Date, all Acceptable Waste, up to 

maximum amounts set forth on Schedule 2, delivered to the Facility pursuant to the terms of this 

Agreement.   

(b) If Acceptable Waste in excess of the SCRRRA Capacity (“Excess Waste”) is 

generated within the SCRRRA Communities, SCRRRA shall notify Wheelabrator.  If SCRRRA 

wishes to deliver the Excess Waste to the Facility and gives Wheelabrator at least ten (10) days’ 

notice prior to the date of delivery, Wheelabrator shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 

accept and process Excess Waste at the Facility to the extent that the Facility has available 

capacity including without limitation using commercially reasonable efforts to not accept Spot 

Waste or other non-SCRRRA waste that in each case Wheelabrator has the right to not accept 

without penalty or incurring cost, if the acceptance of such Spot Waste or non-SCRRRA waste 

would prevent Wheelabrator from processing such Excess Waste. If Wheelabrator wishes 

SCRRRA to deliver the Excess Waste to the Facility, Wheelabrator shall notify SCRRRA of the 

amount of Excess Waste and the date or dates for delivery of the Excess Waste, and SCRRRA 

shall deliver the Excess Waste to the Facility in accordance with such notice from Wheelabrator.  

The per Ton tipping fee for the processing of Tons of Excess Waste pursuant to this Section 

2.02(b) shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties. 

(c) Notwithstanding any contrary provision contained in this Agreement, 

Wheelabrator shall not be hereby obligated to accept at the Facility from or at the direction of 

SCRRRA any Acceptable Waste that originates outside the boundaries of any of the SCRRRA 

Communities. SCRRRA shall deliver to Wheelabrator each year copies of the reports each 

SCRRRA Community submitted or filed with SCRRRA or the State that list the number of tons 

of Waste generated within the boundaries of such SCRRRA Community. 

(d) Notwithstanding any contrary provisions contained in this Agreement, 
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Wheelabrator shall not be obligated hereby to accept any Waste which, in its judgment 

reasonably exercised, would result in the violation of any Applicable Law, including the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, or would adversely affect the operation of the 

Facility, provided that Wheelabrator shall be obligated to take alternative action consistent with 

the terms hereof to permit the performance by Wheelabrator of its obligations hereunder in a 

manner which would avoid any such violation. 

Section 2.03 Additional Acceptable Waste.  Wheelabrator shall not at any time solicit or 

accept Acceptable Waste generated within any SCRRRA Community other than from the 

SCRRRA Community or Authorized Hauler of such SCRRRA Community. 

Section 2.04 Operation of Facility. 

(a) Wheelabrator shall operate and maintain the Facility in such manner as to ensure 

that the Facility is able on a continuous basis to receive and process Acceptable Waste. 

(b) Wheelabrator shall maintain the Facility in good condition, including necessary 

repairs and replacement, consistent with good solid waste handling and good steam and electrical 

generating plant practices. Wheelabrator will maintain the safety of the Facility at a level 

consistent with Applicable Law and good boiler, engineering and electrical generating plant and 

good solid waste disposal practices.  Wheelabrator shall provide, at its expense, all necessary 

labor, materials, and equipment for the proper operation and maintenance of the Facility, and 

shall comply with the insurance requirements set forth on Schedule 2.04(b). 

(c) As a condition to Wheelabrator accepting any Acceptable Waste from SCRRRA, 

SCRRRA shall comply, and shall cause all Authorized Haulers delivering Acceptable Waste to 

the Facility on behalf of a SCRRRA Community to comply, with (i) the Facility rules set forth on 

Schedule 2.04(c)(i), and (ii) the insurance requirements set forth on Schedule 2.04(c)(ii).  

Wheelabrator may modify the Facility rules from time to time upon notice to SCRRRA. 

(d) Acceptable Waste delivered by or on behalf of SCRRRA or a SCRRRA 

Community, including Acceptable Waste generated within the SCRRRA Communities and 

delivered to the Facility by any commercial hauler, shall only be delivered by Authorized 

Haulers.  Each Authorized Hauler shall execute the Hauler Declaration substantially in the form 

attached as Schedule 3. SCRRRA shall cause each Authorized Hauler to enter into a contract 

with SCRRRA, or shall include an obligation in each license, permit, or other document by 

which SCRRRA designates any hauler as an Authorized Hauler, that provides that all Acceptable 

Waste collected by such hauler within each SCRRRA Community shall be delivered by such 

Authorized Hauler to the portion of the System designated by SCRRRA or a SCRRRA 

Community and which Acceptable Waste will ultimately be delivered  to the Facility for 

disposal, subject to the provisions herein.  

(e) In the event of Undue Delay, Wheelabrator shall pay SCRRRA $100.00 per 

incident, as liquidated damages. “Undue Delay” means, failure of Wheelabrator to Turn (defined 

below) any truck delivering Acceptable Waste within seventy-five (75) minutes.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Wheelabrator shall not be required to pay any liquidated 

damages for Undue Delays which occur on any day in which SCRRRA delivers Acceptable 
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Waste in excess of the daily limitation set forth on Schedule 2 hereof. “Turn” means completing 

the following operations at the Facility: permitting the truck to enter the front gate, weighing the 

loaded truck, providing access to the tipping floor and permitting the truck to discharge its waste 

load and proceed to cross the outbound weigh scale (or the exit gate if tare weights are being 

used).  

Section 2.05 Receiving and Operating Hours.  Wheelabrator will keep the Facility open 

for the receiving of Acceptable Waste from 7:00 a.m. until at least 5:00 p.m. Monday through 

Friday, and from 7:00 a.m. until at least noon Saturdays, excluding, in each case, Legal Holidays.   

Section 2.06 Weighing Records.   

(a) Wheelabrator will operate and maintain motor truck scales at the Facility, 

calibrated to the accuracy required by the State for public weighing facilities, to weigh all 

vehicles delivering Acceptable Waste or removing Acceptable Waste or other materials.  

SCRRRA shall, and to the fullest extent authorized by the MSWMSA shall ensure that each 

SCRRRA Community shall, cause each Authorized Hauler’s vehicle delivering Acceptable 

Waste pursuant to this Agreement to display a decal with a permit number referencing a permit 

issued by the SCRRRA Community authorizing the delivery of Acceptable Waste to the Facility, 

and other identification (including the name of each SCRRRA Community or other entity whose 

Waste is being delivered) and tare weight permanently indicated and conspicuously displayed in 

a location designated by Wheelabrator.  Wheelabrator will not accept the delivery of Acceptable 

Waste being delivered to the Facility in a vehicle that does not display a decal referencing a valid 

permit issued by the SCRRRA Community.  Each vehicle delivering Acceptable Waste or 

removing Acceptable Waste or other materials will be weighed before entering (and, at 

SCRRRA’s election or when SCRRRA shall reasonably request, after leaving) the Facility, with 

the time, truck identification and gross weight (for loaded vehicles) or tare weight (for unloaded 

vehicles) to be entered on a weight record.  The scale records will be used as a basis for 

calculating fees, charges and credits under this Agreement. SCRRRRA may, at its own expense, 

have a representative present at the scales operated by Wheelabrator whenever they are operated 

in order to verify scale accuracy, vehicle identity and permit validity. 

(b) If all weighing facilities at the Facility are incapacitated or otherwise out of 

service, then Wheelabrator in consultation with and with the consent of SCRRRA will estimate 

in good faith the quantity of Acceptable Waste and other materials delivered on the basis of truck 

volumes and estimated data obtained through historical information.  These estimates will be the 

basis for records during the scale outage and shall take the place of actual weighing records 

during the scale outage. 

(c) If at any time testing of the weighing facilities indicates that the scales did not 

meet the accuracy requirements of the State, SCRRRA and Wheelabrator will negotiate in good 

faith an adjustment to the scale records actually recorded during or for any period in question.  In 

addition, at the request of SCRRRA, Wheelabrator, at Wheelabrator’s cost and expense, shall 

cause such scales to be recalibrated to meet the accuracy requirements of the State.   

(d) Wheelabrator will maintain daily records of: (1) total Acceptable Waste and OBW 

tonnage delivered to the Facility; and (2) all Acceptable Waste and OBW delivered to the Facility 
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by each SCRRRA Community.  Copies of all such records (which shall be in such form, 

including electronic form, in the case of records referred to in clause (2) of the preceding 

sentence, as SCRRRA may reasonably request for the purpose of invoicing the SCRRRA 

Communities and others and for statistical purposes) will be provided to SCRRRA within five 

(5) days after the end of each month, including reasonably detailed monthly summary 

information as to all Acceptable Waste delivered to the Facility (including the identity of each 

person delivering such Acceptable Waste).  Copies of all daily records and weight tickets (or 

their substantial equivalent) will be maintained electronically by Wheelabrator for a period of at 

least two (2) years. 

Section 2.07 Residue Disposal.  Wheelabrator shall cause all Residue to be delivered to 

a Landfill in a timely manner and at its expense. 

Section 2.08 Special Handling Waste.   

(a) SCRRRA is prohibited from delivering or causing to be delivered SHW to the 

Facility.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended, however, to constitute a guarantee by SCRRRA 

of the composition of any Waste delivered to the Facility or to make SCRRRA responsible 

(except as expressly provided in Section 2.08(c) below) for the results of any delivery of any 

SHW.  SCRRRA will use its commercially reasonable efforts and to the fullest extent authorized 

by the MSWMSA, shall ensure that each SCRRRA Community uses its commercially reasonable 

efforts, to take all necessary or appropriate action to ensure that no part of the Facility shall 

become classified as a hazardous or toxic materials storage or processing facility. 

(b) Each of SCRRRA and Wheelabrator will also use commercially reasonable efforts 

to, and Wheelabrator may, deny admission to the Facility of any vehicle carrying SHW or other 

Waste which may leak, spill or allow Waste to be blown or scattered before unloading at any part 

of the Facility.  Wheelabrator will cause any SHW which is discovered in the Facility to be 

promptly removed and delivered to a disposal site within or outside the State acceptable to 

Wheelabrator and the cost of handling, transporting and disposal of such SHW shall paid by a 

SCRRRA pursuant to Section 2.08(c).   

(c) Any cost incurred by Wheelabrator in handling, transporting or disposing of such 

SHW shall be the responsibility of the Authorized Hauler delivering such SHW.  If such 

Authorized Hauler fails to reimburse Wheelabrator for such costs, SCRRRA will pay or 

reimburse Wheelabrator for all fines and penalties incurred by Wheelabrator, and all costs 

reasonably incurred by Wheelabrator in connection with the handling, transport and disposal of 

any SHW delivered to the Facility by or on behalf of SCRRRA and not processed at the Facility. 

(d) Title to all Acceptable Waste shall pass to Wheelabrator upon delivery thereof to 

the tip floor of the Facility.  At no time after title passes to Wheelabrator shall title to Acceptable 

Waste revert back to SCRRRA or any SCRRRA Community or be deemed to reside with 

SCRRRA.  At no time shall title to SHW be deemed to pass to or reside with Wheelabrator. 

Section 2.09 Alternate Processing Facility 

(a) To the extent Wheelabrator determines that it may be unable to accept Acceptable 
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Waste at the Facility, Wheelabrator may redirect such Acceptable Waste to any location or 

facility which is authorized under applicable law to accept and dispose of Waste, other than a 

Landfill (an “Alternate Processing Facility”) selected by Wheelabrator; provided that if such 

Alternate Processing Facility is not reasonably available Wheelabrator may redirect such 

Acceptable Waste to a Landfill that is selected by Wheelabrator; and, provided further, that,  if 

such inability to accept Acceptable Waste is caused by a Change in Law or a Force Majeure 

Event, (i) such Alternate Processing Facility or Landfill shall be consented to by SCRRRA, 

which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and (ii) the price for disposal of 

Acceptable Waste at such Alternate Processing Facility or Landfill  shall be mutually acceptable 

to SCRRRA and Wheelabrator.   

(b) SCRRRA may, in its discretion with notice to Wheelabrator, elect alternate 

arrangements (“Alternate Arrangements”), for the disposal of Acceptable Waste resulting from, 

and for the duration of, a Change in Law or any Force Majeure Event.   

(c) Additional costs incurred by Wheelabrator in connection with its redirection of 

Acceptable Waste not caused by a Change in Law or a Force Majeure Event shall be paid by 

Wheelabrator, and SCRRRA and each SCRRRA Community shall pay Wheelabrator the 

Disposal Fees for all Acceptable Waste delivered by each such SCRRRA Community and so 

diverted, with no adjustments for any such additional costs.  For all Acceptable Waste which is 

redirected from the Facility by Wheelabrator as the result of a Change in Law or a Force Majeure 

Event and with respect to which SCRRRA has not elected Alternate Arrangements, SCRRRA 

and each SCRRRA Community shall pay Wheelabrator the Disposal Fees plus the incremental 

costs, if any, incurred by Wheelabrator in connection with the transportation and disposal of each 

such SCRRRA Community’s diverted Acceptable Waste as demonstrated by Wheelabrator to the 

reasonable satisfaction of SCRRRA.  

ARTICLE III 

PAYMENTS 

Section 3.01 Disposal Fees.   

(a) In consideration for its services and expenditures hereunder, and in addition to 

any other payments to be made to Wheelabrator under this Agreement (but without duplication), 

Wheelabrator shall be entitled to receive from SCRRRA, and SCRRRA shall pay, the Disposal 

Fees and other payments determined as set forth in this Article III (“Disposal Fee(s)”).  For each 

Contract Year, the Disposal Fee shall equal the Tipping Fee for that Contract Year multiplied by 

the number of Tons of Acceptable Waste delivered by or on behalf of SCRRRA and accepted by 

Wheelabrator at the Facility or otherwise disposed of by or at the direction of Wheelabrator for 

that Contract Year plus or minus the net amount of any adjustments applicable to SCRRRA 

hereunder (“Disposal Fee Adjustments”).  

(b) The actual Disposal Fees and Disposal Fee Adjustments shall be calculated each 

month with an annual settlement in arrears for each Contract Year in connection with the Annual 

Settlement Statement and settlement adjustments provided for in Section 3.05.  

Section 3.02 Tipping Fee.  
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(a) Base Tipping Fee. Except as otherwise provided herein, SCRRRA shall pay 

Wheelabrator a base tipping fee of $68 per Ton of Acceptable Waste delivered by or on behalf of 

SCRRRA hereunder (the “Base Tipping Fee”), as adjusted pursuant to this Section 3.02 (the 

“Tipping Fee” or “TF”)). 

(b) CPI Adjustment. Commencing January 1, 2022, the TF shall be adjusted on 

January 1st for each Contract Year for the duration of the term of this Agreement in accordance 

with the following formula: 

TF = BTF x [1 + (CPIx – CPIB)] 

            CPIB 

BTF = the Tipping Fee described in Section 3.02(a) above, as adjusted pursuant to 

this Section 3.02(b). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing in no event shall the CPI adjustment and the annual increase in 

the Tipping Fee be less than two percent (2%) or more than three percent (3%). 

Section 3.03 Disposal Fee Adjustments.   

(a) The Disposal Fee shall be adjusted to include: 

(i) Amounts payable by or to be credited to SCRRRA under Sections 2.01(c), 

2.02(b), 2.08(c), 2.09, 3.03(b) and 3.03(c); and 

(ii) Amounts payable by or to be credited to SCRRRA hereunder including 

credits for Undue Delay. 

(b) The Disposal Fee shall include all Change in Law Costs.  Change in Law Costs 

shall be determined as provided below. 

(i) Within 180 days after the occurrence of a Change in Law affecting the 

Facility or Wheelabrator, (x) Wheelabrator shall determine whether, and to what extent, 

the Change in Law is reasonably expected to increase or decrease Wheelabrator’s costs or 

revenues or reduce the ability of the Facility during the Term to accept or process 

Acceptable Waste and the estimated Change in Law Costs and (y) Wheelabrator shall 

provide written notice thereof to SCRRRA. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.03, 

Wheelabrator shall diligently perform the necessary repairs or reconstruction or install 

the new additions or equipment at the Facility. 

(ii) SCRRRA shall bear a proportionate share of the Change in Law Costs, 

which proportionate share is defined as the SCRRRA Share, subject to Cost 

Substantiation and subject to the limitations below.  Wheelabrator shall bear all Change 

in Law Costs not borne by SCRRRA pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence.  In 

no event shall SCRRRA be responsible for Change in Law Costs after the expiration of 

the Term. 

(iii) If any Change in Law Costs result in increased costs or decreased revenue 
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to Wheelabrator, Wheelabrator shall bill SCRRRA and SCRRRA shall pay as provided in 

Section 3.01(a) above the SCRRRA Share (or in the first Contract Year, the Approximate 

SCRRRA Share) of Change in Law Costs incurred by Wheelabrator in each Billing 

Period, commencing with the first Billing Period after the Billing Period in which any 

such Change in Law Costs are incurred by Wheelabrator and continuing when and for so 

long as such cost increases or revenue decreases are incurred by Wheelabrator. The actual 

SCRRRA Share shall be determined and reconciled in the Annual Settlement Statement. 

The Capital Cost in each Billing Period shall be an amount equal to (x) the Capital Cost 

amortized on straight-line basis over the Useful Life of the asset or project required by 

the Change in Law divided by (y) 12.    

(iv) If any Change in Law Costs result in decreased costs or increased revenue 

to Wheelabrator, the SCRRRA Share (or in the first Contract Year, the Approximate 

SCRRRA Share) of the Change in Law Costs shall be credited on the bill to SCRRRA in 

each Billing Period after the Billing Period in which any such Change in Law Costs are 

incurred by Wheelbrator and continuing when and for so long as such cost decreases or 

revenue increases are incurred by Wheelabrator. The actual SCRRRA Share shall be 

determined and reconciled in the Annual Settlement Statement. 

(c) If in any Contract Year the Facility accepts Acceptable Waste from a municipality 

or governmental entity, other than the Town of Lisbon, Connecticut, at a weighted average rate 

over the Contract Year that is below the Disposal Fee in such Contract Year (the “MFN Rate”) 

then Wheelabrator shall credit SCRRA the “MFN Amount”.  The MFN Amount is equal to the 

product of (i)  the amount by which the Disposal Fee exceeds the MFN Rate for that Contract 

Year, multiplied by (ii) the number of Tons of Acceptable Waste accepted by the Facility in that 

Contract Year from the municipality or governmental entity (“MFN Tons”)  at the MFN Rate.  

Within 60 days after the end of each Contract Year Wheelabrator shall (a) certify that there were 

no MFN Tons processed at the Facility during such Billing Period or (b) credit on the next 

statement the applicable MFN Amount to SCRRRA or if the credit exceeds the amount due on 

such statement, such excess shall be applied on subsequent statements until it is fully applied. 

Section 3.04 Monthly Statements. 

(a) Not more than five (5) days following the end of each calendar month during a 

Contract Year (a “Billing Period”), Wheelabrator shall provide to SCRRRA a statement of the 

Disposal Fees payable by SCRRRA for such calendar month. Each such monthly statement shall 

provide for the payment of (x) the Tipping Fee for such calendar month multiplied by the actual 

number of Tons of Acceptable Waste delivered to the Facility and accepted by Wheelabrator by 

on behalf of SCRRRA during such month, and (y) Disposal Fee Adjustments payable by 

SCRRRA on a monthly basis, if any. 

(b) Each Disposal Fee Adjustment that is to be made on a monthly basis shall take 

effect and be reflected in monthly statements as soon as the estimated amount of such Disposal 

Fee Adjustment can be calculated pursuant to the applicable provision of this Article III. 

(c) Within 30 days after receipt of a statement from Wheelabrator, SCRRRA shall 

pay Wheelabrator the net non-disputed amount due shown on such statement.  If any portion of 
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such amount shall not be paid within sixty (60) days after receipt of such statement, 

Wheelabrator may assess a monthly late fee of 1.5% of any unpaid amount of an invoice 

accruing from the due date of the invoice or such late fee allowable under applicable law or 

regulations. 

Section 3.05 Annual Settlement; Corrections; Survival. 

(a) Within 90 days after the end of each Contract Year, Wheelabrator shall deliver to 

SCRRRA an Annual Settlement Statement.  The Annual Settlement Statement shall show the 

computation of the Disposal Fees (including all Disposal Fee Adjustments, and the SCRRRA 

Share of any Change In Law Costs or Force Majeure Termination Avoidance Amounts) for such 

Contract Year and a reconciliation of such amounts and costs so computed with the amounts and 

costs paid by SCRRRA pursuant to the monthly statements during such Contract Year, including 

all adjustments required to reflect any discrepancies between any estimated amounts used in the 

computation of the Disposal Fee Adjustments provided for in such monthly statements and the 

actual amounts as determined following such Contract Year. 

(b) In the event that SCRRRA has overpaid Wheelabrator, then Wheelabrator shall 

within 45 days of delivery of the Annual Settlement Statement refund the overpayment to 

SCRRRA.  In the event that SCRRRA has underpaid Wheelabrator, then SCRRRA within 45 

days of receipt of the Annual Settlement Statement shall pay to Wheelabrator the additional 

amount due.   

(c) If, after the delivery of the Annual Settlement Statement for any Contract Year, 

Wheelabrator or SCRRRA becomes aware that the Disposal Fees for such Contract Year should 

be or have been increased or decreased (whether as a result of an error or as a result of the 

making of a payment or incurrence of a cost after the delivery of such Annual Settlement 

Statement that would properly be attributed to such Contract Year), (i) SCRRRA will pay to 

Wheelabrator an amount equal to the amount by which the Disposal Fees for such Contract Year 

should be or have been increased, or (ii) Wheelabrator will pay to SCRRRA an amount equal to 

the amount by which the Disposal Fees for such Contract Year should be or have been decreased, 

provided that any correction of the Disposal Fees pursuant to this paragraph shall be made within 

one calendar year following the end of said Contract Year, unless such correction relates to an 

amount that has been the subject of a dispute between Wheelabrator and SCRRRA.  The party 

becoming aware that the Disposal Fees should be adjusted shall render to the other party a 

statement setting forth the amount payable and information which reasonably supports the 

determination of such amount.  Payments by the party receiving such statement shall be made 

within 45 days after receipt of such statement.  Payments by the party delivering such statement 

shall accompany such statement.  All payment obligations of SCRRRA or Wheelabrator under 

this Agreement shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 

FURTHER AGREEMENTS 

Section 4.01 Rights to Enforce Obligations.   

Wheelabrator shall have the right (but not the obligation) to enforce the obligations of the 
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SCRRRA Communities under the MSWMSA  (the “Municipal Obligations”), if and to the extent 

SCRRRA fails to do so and such failure continues for 30 days after written notice thereof from 

Wheelabrator.  SCRRRA hereby assigns to Wheelabrator full rights to enforce the Municipal 

Obligations to the extent provided in the preceding sentence and to the extent permitted by law.  

In the event that Wheelabrator has rights to enforce the Municipal Obligations, it may do so as 

though it were originally named in the MSWMSA in the place of SCRRRA; and SCRRRA 

hereby names Wheelabrator its attorney-in-fact to enforce the Municipal Obligations to the 

extent provided herein and shall reasonably cooperate with Wheelabrator in enforcing the 

Municipal Obligations, including, without limitation, participating in any action or claim as a 

necessary party.   SCRRRA shall not terminate any MSWMSA without the prior written consent 

of Wheelabrator, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. SCRRRA shall not amend 

any MSWMSA in such a way that would (a) alter the obligations of the SCRRRA Communities 

to deliver Acceptable Waste to the System, as directed by SCRRRA, for ultimate disposal at the 

Facility, subject to the provisions herein, or pay Service Payments (defined in the MSWMSA) or 

the Net Cost of Operation (including without limitation Sections 503, 504, 505 and 506 of the 

MSWMSA) or (b) reduce the term of the MSWMSA, without the prior written consent of 

Wheelabrator, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

Section 4.02 Licenses, Approvals and Permits.  Each party will provide and maintain all 

licenses, approvals and permits necessary for the performance by it of its obligations under this 

Agreement.   

Section 4.03 Corporate Guaranty 

(a) Simultaneous with the execution of this Agreement, Wheelabrator shall provide a 

guaranty from the Guarantor in the form set forth in Schedule 4.03 hereto (the “Guaranty”). 

Wheelabrator shall have the right to replace Guarantor with a substitute guarantor under the 

Guaranty provided it has a tangible net worth of at least $50,000,000, as reasonably 

demonstrated by the proposed guarantor. 

(b) The Guarantor shall at each quarterly reporting period have and maintain total 

stockholders’ equity  of not less than $50,000,000, as determined by its unaudited balance sheets 

prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of 

America. In the event Guarantor’s total stockholders’ equity  fall below $50,000,000 during a 

quarterly reporting period, it shall have forty-five (45) days to demonstrate that its total 

stockholder’ equity  has returned to $50,000,000. If Guarantor is unable to demonstrate its total 

stockholders’ equity is at least $50,000,000, Guarantor shall supplement the Guaranty with a 

letter of credit in the amount of $5,000,000 to secure the obligations of Wheelabrator under this 

Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, prior to SCRRRA drawing on the above referenced 

letter of credit, it shall be a requirement that SCRRRA has made a demand against the Guaranty 

and the Guarantor has failed to pay the amount in issue in the time period prescribed therein. If, 

after the substitution of the Guaranty with a letter of credit, Guarantor can demonstrate that its 

total stockholders’ equity has returned to at least $50,000,000 for a quarterly reporting period, 

SCRRRA shall return the letter of credit. 

Section 4.04 Obligations of the Parties.   
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(a) So long as SCRRRA is in compliance with its waste delivery and payment 

obligations under this Agreement, Wheelabrator’s obligation under this Agreement shall not be 

affected by any set-off, counterclaim or recoupment which Wheelabrator may have against 

SCRRRA for any reason whatsoever. 

(b) So long as Wheelabrator is in compliance with its waste acceptance obligations 

under this Agreement, SCRRRA’s obligation under this Agreement, including the obligations to 

make payments expressly provided for by the terms of this Agreement, shall not be affected by 

set-off, counterclaim or recoupment which SCRRRA may have against Wheelabrator or any 

other entity for any reason whatsoever. 

(c) Neither party’s obligations under this Agreement shall be affected by any defense 

(other than the defense of noncompliance with the waste delivery or acceptance or payment 

obligations) which such party may have against the other party until after the final resolution of 

any dispute over such defense (provided that such resolution may have retroactive effects). 

(d) Each party waives, to the extent permitted by applicable law, any and all rights 

which it may now have or which at any time hereafter may be conferred upon it, by statute or 

otherwise, to terminate, cancel or rescind this Agreement, except for any such rights conferred 

upon it by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Nothing in this Section 4.04 shall 

constitute or be asserted to be a waiver by each party of any rights, remedies or defenses 

available to it under the express terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Section 4.05 Host Community Benefits.  Wheelabrator shall be solely responsible for 

all host community benefits payable to the Town of Lisbon, whether in the form of taxes, 

impositions, charges, fees, tariffs, in-kind benefits or otherwise, and which shall not be 

considered Change in Law Costs. 

Section 4.06 SCRRRA Budgeting.  At least 210 days prior to the commencement of a 

Contract Year Wheelabrator shall provide to SCRRRA (a) an estimate of the aggregate Disposal 

Fees, including all Disposal Fee Adjustments and (b) the Tipping Fee to be paid by SCRRRA in 

the following Contract Year.  SCRRRA shall, not less than 180 days prior to commencement of 

each Contract Year, send to Wheelabrator a copy of the  budget it develops for the SCRRRA 

Communities for the next succeeding Contract Year, which shall include the aggregate Disposal 

Fees, including all Disposal Fee Adjustments, and the Tipping Fee to be paid by SCRRRA based 

on the estimates provided to SCRRRA by Wheelabrator.    

ARTICLE V 

CHANGE IN LAW AND FORCE MAJEURE EVENTS 

Section 5.01 Performance Excused. The failure or delay of performance of either party 

hereunder shall be excused if such party is reasonably precluded from performance by the 

occurrence of a Change in Law or a Force Majeure Event.  Such excuse of performance shall be 

only to the minimum extent reasonably forced on such party by such event and such party shall 

continue to perform all other responsibilities hereunder, including the responsibilities provided in 

Section 2.09 with regard to the redirection of Acceptable Waste to an Alternate Processing 

Facility or Landfill. Such failure or delay shall be excused at any time during which performance 
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is reasonably prevented by such Change in Law or Force Majeure Event, and during such period 

thereafter as may be reasonably necessary for the party to correct the adverse effect of such 

Change in Law or Force Majeure Event.   

Section 5.02 Limitations.  

(a) The provisions of this Article V shall not relieve a party affected by a Change in 

Law or Force Majeure Event from using commercially reasonable efforts to overcome or remove 

a Change in Law or Force Majeure Event.  The party relying on a Change in Law or Force 

Majeure Event shall provide prompt notice of the Change in Law or Force Majeure Event to the 

other party and shall attempt to remedy with all reasonable dispatch the cause or causes 

constituting a Change in Law or Force Majeure Event; provided, however, the settlement of 

strikes, lock-outs, work slowdowns, and other similar industrial or labor actions, or legal actions 

or administrative proceedings, shall be entirely in the discretion of the party relying on a Change 

in Law or Force Majeure Event and such party shall not be required to make settlement of 

strikes, lockouts, work slow-downs and other similar industrial or labor actions or legal actions 

or administrative proceedings when such settlement is unfavorable, in the judgment of such 

party.   

(b) Without limiting the foregoing provisions of this Article V but to eliminate doubt, 

no Disposal Fee Adjustments shall be made by reason of a Change in Law or Force Majeure 

Event other than as provided and with respect to Section 2.09 and Article III herein, and neither 

party shall be excused with respect to any accrued payment obligations existing as of the date of 

any Change in Law or Force Majeure Event, by reason thereof; provided, however, that no 

provision of this Article V is intended to limit the right of Wheelabrator or SCRRRA to exercise 

remedies provided by applicable law or this Agreement upon the occurrence of a SCRRRA event 

of breach or default or a Wheelabrator  event of breach or default (as the case may be) under this 

Agreement. Following the occurrence of any Change in Law or Force Majeure Event as to which 

Wheelabrator has provided notice to SCRRRA, Wheelabrator may from time to time provide 

notice to SCRRRA of the Force Majeure Costs or Change in Law Costs  related to the applicable 

Change in Law or Force Majeure Event, together with Cost Substantiation, and such notices shall 

constitute presumptive evidence of Change in Law Costs or Force Majeure Costs for purposes of 

determining the Force Majeure Termination Threshold; provided, however, that any failure of 

Wheelabrator to provide SCRRRA such notices shall not affect the right of the Wheelabrator to 

Force Majeure Termination as provided in Section 7.03.  

ARTICLE VI 

INDEMNIFICATION 

6.01. Indemnification by Wheelabrator. 

Wheelabrator agrees, to the maximum extent allowable by law, to indemnify, hold 

harmless, and defend SCRRRA and the SCRRRA Communities and each of their respective 

members, directors, employees, officers and agents, (each a “SCRRRA Indemnified Party”) from 

and against any and all damages, penalties, costs, claims, demands, suits, causes of action and 

expenses (including attorneys’ fees) which may be imposed upon or incurred by a SCRRRA 

Indemnified Party as a result of (a) personal injury (including death) or property damage to any 
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party, including to the person or property of employees of SCRRRA or the applicable SCRRRA 

Community, arising out of or resulting from any negligent or willful act or omissions of 

Wheelabrator or its employees, agents or contractors; provided, however, the obligations of this 

Section shall not extend to any such matters to the extent arising from the negligence or willful 

misconduct of a SCRRRA Indemnified Party; (b) breach or violation by Wheelabrator of any 

federal, state, or local environmental laws or regulations in the performance of its obligations 

under this Agreement; or (c) any act or omission of Wheelabrator under this Agreement or under 

the O&M Agreement that may result in any liability for an SCRRRA Indemnified Party under 

any federal, state, or local environmental laws or regulations, including, without limitation, any 

liability arising from the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 

Liability Act, as amended, and any similar state laws.  The obligations of this provision shall 

survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

6.02. Indemnification by SCRRRA.  

SCRRRA agrees, to the maximum extent allowable by law, to indemnify, hold harmless, 

and defend Wheelabrator and its Affiliates and each of their respective members, directors, 

employees, officers and agents, (each a “Wheelabrator Indemnified Party”) from and against any 

and all damages, penalties, costs, claims, demands, suits, causes of action and expenses 

(including attorneys’ fees) which may be imposed upon or incurred by a Wheelabrator 

Indemnified Party as a result of (a) personal injury (including death) or property damage to any 

party, including to the person or property of employees of Wheelabrator, arising out of or 

resulting from any negligent or willful act or omissions of SCRRRA or its employees, agents or 

contractors; provided, however, the obligations of this section shall not extend to any such 

matters to the extent arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of a Wheelabrator 

Indemnified Party; (b) breach or violation by SCRRRA or any Authorized Hauler of any of its 

obligations, covenants, or undertakings herein; (c) breach or violation by SCRRRA or any 

Authorized Hauler by any federal, state, or local environmental laws or regulations in the 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement; or (d) any act or omission of SCRRRA or 

any Authorized Hauler under this Agreement that may result in any liability for a Wheelabrator 

Indemnified Party under any federal, state, or local environmental laws or regulations, including, 

without limitation, any liability arising from the federal Comprehensive Environmental 

Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended, and any similar state laws.  The 

obligations of this provision shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 7.01 Term and Conditions Precedent.   

(a)  This Agreement will be binding upon the parties upon the Execution Date but 

shall not become effective until the Service Commencement Date other than any obligations that 

by their express terms require performance prior to the Service Commencement Date.  The term 

of this Agreement shall commence on the Service Commencement Date and expire on December 

31, 2030 (the “Term”).   

(b)  Notwithstanding Section 7.01(a) hereof the obligations of Wheelabrator under this 
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Agreement are subject to the satisfaction or waiver by Wheelabrator of each of the following 

conditions: 

 (i) SCRRRA shall have delivered to Wheelabrator an acknowledgment by each of the 

SCRRRA Communities of the rights of Wheelabrator set forth in Section 4.01, in such form as 

reasonably requested by Wheelabrator. 

(ii) SCRRRA shall have delivered to Wheelabrator an amendment to the MSWMSA  for 

each SCRRRA Community, in a form reasonably acceptable to Wheelabrator, to (v) extend the 

term of each MSWMSAs to be equal to the Term, (w) designate the Facility as the Facility (as 

defined in the MSWMSA) under each MSWMSA, (x) confirm the obligation of each SCRRRA 

Community to deliver all Acceptable Waste generated in each respective municipality to the 

System as directed by SCRRRA and which Acceptable Waste will ultimately be delivered to the 

Facility for disposal, subject to the provision herein,  (y) confirm that  the Facility is part of the 

System (as defined in the MSWMSA) and (z) provide for such other matters as Wheelabrator 

may reasonably request to confirm and secure the obligations of SCRRRA under this Agreement.  

(iii) SCRRRA shall have delivered to Wheelabrator an ordinance adopted by each 

SCRRRA Community, in a form reasonably acceptable to Wheelabrator, that requires that all 

Acceptable Waste generated in each SCRRRA Community  be delivered to the System, as 

directed by SCRRRA or a SCRRRA Community for ultimate delivery to the Facility for 

disposal, subject to the provisions herein. 

(iv) Wheelabrator and the Town of Lisbon shall have entered into a host community 

agreement, in a form satisfactory to Wheelabrator. 

(v) SCRRRA shall have delivered to Wheelabrator on the Service Commencement Date a 

certificate from (x) SCRRRA certifying that the representations and warranties set forth in 

Section 7.15 are true and correct as of the Service Commencement Date and (y) each of the 

SCRRRA Communities that the representation and warranty in Section 7.15(f) with respect to 

each such SCRRRA Community is true and correct as of the Service Commencement Date, in 

such form as reasonably requested by Wheelabrator.  

(c)  Notwithstanding Section 7.01(a) hereof the obligations of SCRRRA under this 

Agreement are subject to the satisfaction or waiver by SCRRRA of the condition that 

Wheelabrator shall have delivered to SCRRRA on the Service Commencement Date a certificate 

from Wheelabrator certifying that the representations and warranties set forth in Section 7.16 are 

true and correct as of the Service Commencement Date, in such form as reasonably requested by 

SCRRRA.   

(d)  In the event that the conditions in Section 7.01(b)(i), (ii), (iii) and (v) are not 

satisfied or waived by Wheelabrator on or prior to the Service Commencement Date then 

Wheelabrator, upon thirty (30) days’ notice to SCRRRA, may terminate this Agreement.   In the 

event that the condition in Section 7.01(c) is  not satisfied or waived by SCRRRA on or prior to 

the Service Commencement Date then SCRRRA, upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Wheelabrator, 

may terminate this Agreement. In the event that the condition set forth in Section 7.01(b)(iv) is 

not satisfied or waived by Wheelabrator on or prior to December 31, 2019 then either 

Wheelabrator or SCRRRA, upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party, may terminate this 

Agreement.  Each of the parties shall use reasonable efforts and proceed with due diligence to 

satisfy the foregoing conditions precedent within its control. 
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Section 7.02 Termination for Breach; Limitation of Liability.  

(a) In the event there should occur any material breach or material default in the 

performance of any covenant or obligation of Wheelabrator hereunder which has not been 

remedied within 60 days after receipt of notice from SCRRRA specifying such breach or default, 

SCRRRA may, if such breach or default is continuing, terminate this Agreement upon 30 days’ 

notice to Wheelabrator, provided that if such default is not a payment default and can be cured, 

and Wheelabrator shall have commenced to take appropriate steps to cure such breach or default 

within a reasonable period of time, the same shall not constitute a breach or default hereunder for 

so long as Wheelabrator is continuing to take appropriate steps to cure such default or breach. 

(b) In the event there should occur any material breach or material default in the 

performance of any covenant or obligation of SCRRRA hereunder which has not been remedied 

within 60 days after receipt of notice from Wheelabrator specifying such breach or default, 

Wheelabrator may, if such breach or default is continuing, terminate this Agreement upon 30 

days’ notice to SCRRRA, provided that if such default is not a payment default and can be cured, 

and SCRRRA shall have commenced to take appropriate steps to cure such breach or default 

within a reasonable period of time, the same shall not constitute a breach or default hereunder for 

so long as SCRRRA is continuing to take appropriate steps to cure such default or breach.   

(c) The rights of termination provided hereunder are not exclusive of and may be 

exercised without prejudice to any rights provided by law to any party hereunder for any breach 

or default by any other party, provided that neither party may exercise such right of termination 

for a default which is not a payment default if damages would provide an adequate remedy.   

(d)      In no event shall either party be liable or obligated in any manner to pay special, 

consequential, punitive, incidental or similar damages on claims arising out of the performance 

or non-performance by such party of its obligations under this Agreement or the transactions 

contemplated hereby, or resulting from down-time at the Facility, whether such claims are based 

upon contract, tort, warranty or some other legal theory, or are asserted directly against the liable 

party or by third parties against the other party.  Each party’s obligations hereunder shall be 

limited to those expressly set out and assumed by such party under this Agreement. The 

execution and delivery of this Agreement by either party does not impose any personal liability 

on the members, officers, employees or agents of either party.  No recourse may be had by either 

party for any claims based on this Agreement against any member, officer, employee or other 

agent of the other party in his or her individual capacity, all such liability, if any, being expressly 

waived by both parties by the execution of this Agreement. 

Section 7.03 Force Majeure Termination.  

(a) If the cumulative total Change in Law Costs and Force Majeure Costs, in excess 

of any insurance proceeds or damages recovered from third parties, for which Wheelabrator is 

responsible, exceeds or are reasonably expected to exceed during the Term $8,750,000 (such 

amount being the “Force Majeure Termination Threshold’’), then Wheelabrator shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement without payment of any termination fee or other amount (a 

“Force Majeure Termination”) by providing at least 180 days written notice thereof to SCRRRA 

at any time after such Force Majeure Termination Threshold has been or will be reached.  
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(b) SCRRRA shall have the right to avoid the Force Majeure Termination by 

agreeing to pay, and promptly paying to Wheelabrator the SCRRRA Share of the Change in Law 

Costs and Force Majeure Costs, incurred by Wheelabrator  from time to time, in excess of 

$8,750,000 (the “Force Majeure Termination Avoidance Amount”). If Wheelabrator does not 

exercise an applicable Force Majeure Termination or if SCRRRA avoids the Force Majeure 

Termination pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, then this Agreement shall continue 

uninterrupted and in full force and effect.  

(c) In the case that Wheelabrator does not exercise an applicable Force Majeure 

Termination, such non-exercise shall not be deemed a waiver of Wheelabrator’s right to include 

any and all Change in Law Costs and Force Majeure Costs as part of  the Force Majeure 

Termination Threshold and to exercise a  Force Majeure Termination.     

Section 7.04 Disputes.  All disputes, differences, controversies or claims pertaining to 

or arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach hereof, which the parties (i.e., 

SCRRRA, on the one hand, and Wheelabrator, on the other) are unable to resolve themselves 

shall be resolved by a court of competent jurisdiction in Connecticut, unless the parties agree to 

do so by arbitration or mediation.  Any arbitration or mediation proceedings shall be held in 

Hartford, Connecticut.  The parties and the SCRRRA Communities shall continue to perform all 

of their obligations under this Agreement during the pendency of any proceeding under this 

Section. 

Section 7.05 Further Assurances.  Each party agrees to execute and deliver any 

instruments and to perform any acts that may be necessary or reasonably requested in order to 

give full effect to this Agreement.   

Section 7.06 Relationship of the Parties.  Except as otherwise explicitly provided 

herein, no party to this Agreement will have any responsibility whatsoever with respect to 

services provided or contractual obligations assumed by any other party and nothing in this 

Agreement will be deemed to constitute any party a partner, agent or legal representative of any 

other party or to create any fiduciary relationship between or among the parties. 

Section 7.07 Notices.  Any notice or communication required or permitted hereunder 

shall be in writing and sufficiently given if delivered in person or sent by certified or registered 

mail, postage prepaid, as follows: 

If to Wheelabrator: 

100 Arboretum Drive 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Attn.: General Counsel 

E-Mail: mofriel@wtienergy.com 

 

If to SCRRRA: 

7 Hurlburt Road 

Gales Ferry, CT 06335 

Attention: Executive Director 

E-Mail: DAldridge@SCRRRA.ORG 

 

mailto:DAldridge@SCRRRA.ORG
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With a copy to: 

 

MKRB 

Hartford Square North, 2nd Floor  

10 Columbus Boulevard 

Hartford, CT 06106 

Attention: Attorney Richard L. Barger  

E-Mail: rbarger@mkrb.com 

 

Changes in the respective addresses to which such notices may be directed, may be made 

from time to time by any party by notice to the other parties. 

Section 7.08 Assignment; Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding 

upon and inure to the benefit of Wheelabrator and SCRRRA, together with their respective 

successors and assigns.  This Agreement may not be assigned or encumbered by any party 

without the consent of the other parties, except that SCRRRA’s consent shall not be required for 

an assignment by Wheelabrator of its rights and obligations hereunder (a) to another Affiliate; (b) 

as security for any financing of the Facility; or (c) to a successor-in-interest to Wheelabrator or 

the Facility.  SCRRRA (i) acknowledges that pursuant to the O&M Agreement the Facility may 

be transferred to Wheelabrator or another person as provided in the O&M Agreement and (ii) 

agrees that any such transfer shall not constitute an assignment under this Agreement or require 

the approval of SCRRRA or any SCRRRA Community so long as Wheelabrator (or any 

permitted assignee provided in this Section 7.08) continues to perform its obligations as provided 

in this Agreement. 

Section 7.09 Waiver; Amendment.  Unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms 

of this Agreement, no delay or failure to exercise a right resulting from any breach of this 

Agreement will impair such right or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but such right may 

be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  Any waiver or 

amendment hereof must be in writing and signed by the party against whom such waiver or 

amendment is to be enforced.  If any covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement is 

breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver will be limited to 

the particular breach so waived and will not be deemed to waive any other breach under this 

Agreement. 

Section 7.10 Governing Law and Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by 

and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.  

Section 7.11  References and Headings; Schedules.  All references herein to Sections, 

Articles and Schedules are to sections and articles of and schedules to this Agreement.  All 

Schedules are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.  Section and article 

headings herein have been inserted for convenience of reference only and will not limit, expand 

or otherwise affect the construction of this Agreement. 

Section 7.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

mailto:rbarger@mkrb.com
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counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts, all of which when so 

executed and delivered will together constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.13 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement with its Schedules constitutes the 

entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all of 

the terms and conditions thereof, all prior agreements and understandings whether oral or written 

having been merged herein. 

Section 7.14 Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall, for 

any reason, be determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the parties hereto 

shall negotiate in good faith and agree as to such amendments, modifications or supplements of 

or to this Agreement or such other appropriate actions as shall, to the maximum extent 

practicable in light of such determination, implement and give effect to the intentions of the 

parties as reflected herein, and the other provisions of this Agreement shall, as so amended, 

modified or supplemented, or otherwise affected by such action, remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7.15 Representations and Warranties of SCRRRA.  SCRRRA represents and 

warrants to Wheelabrator as follows: 

(a) SCRRRA is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the State duly 

organized and validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State, with full legal right, 

power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by SCRRRA 

and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of SCRRRA, enforceable against SCRRRA 

in accordance with its terms. 

(c) Neither the execution nor delivery by SCRRRA of this Agreement, nor the 

performance by SCRRRA of its obligations in connection with the transactions contemplated 

hereby nor the fulfillment by SCRRRA of the terms or conditions hereof (i) conflicts with, 

violates or results in a breach of any constitution, law or governmental regulation applicable to 

SCRRRA, or (ii) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any term or condition of any 

order, judgment or decree or any agreement or instrument to which SCRRRA is a party or by 

which SCRRRA or any of its properties or assets are bound, or constitutes a default thereunder. 

(d) No approval, authorization, order or consent of, or declaration, registration or 

filing with, any governmental authority or referendum of voters is required for the valid 

execution and delivery by SCRRRA of this Agreement or the performance by SCRRRA of its 

payment or other obligations hereunder except such as have been disclosed to Wheelabrator and 

have been duly obtained or made. 

(e) There is no action, suit or proceeding, at law or in equity, before or by any court 

of governmental authority, or proceeding for referendum or other voters’ initiative, pending or, to 

the best of SCRRRA’s knowledge, threatened against SCRRRA or its obligations hereunder or 

under the other transactions contemplated hereby, or which in any way questions the validity, 

legality or enforceability of this Agreement, or any other agreement or instrument entered into by 

SCRRRA in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, or would materially 
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adversely affect the ability of SCRRRA to perform its obligations hereunder, except such as have 

previously been disclosed to Wheelabrator in writing. 

(f) The MSWMSAs are in full force and effect, are legal, valid and binding 

obligations of SCRRRA and the SCRRRA Communities party thereto, require the SCRRRA 

Communities to deliver all of the Acceptable Waste generated in their municipality for disposal 

to the System, as directed by SCRRRA, and subject to the provisions of this Agreement will 

remain otherwise unaffected.   

Section 7.16 Representations and Warranties of Wheelabrator.  Wheelabrator represents 

and warrants to SCRRRA as follows: 

(a) Wheelabrator is a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws 

of the State of Delaware, with full legal right, power and authority to enter into and perform its 

obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by it and 

constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of it, enforceable against it in accordance with its 

terms.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Wheelabrator have been 

duly authorized by Wheelabrator and the Guarantor.  

(c) Neither the execution nor delivery by it of this Agreement, nor the performance 

by it of its obligation in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby or the fulfillment 

by it of the terms or conditions hereof (i) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any 

constitution, law, or governmental regulation applicable to it, or (ii) conflicts with, violates, or 

results in a breach of any term or condition of any order, judgment or decree, or any agreement 

or instrument, to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are bound, or 

constitutes a default thereunder. 

(d) No approval, authorization, order or consent of, or declaration, registration or 

filing with any governmental authority is required for the valid execution and delivery of this 

Agreement by it, except such as have been duly obtained or made. 

(e) There is no action, suit or proceeding, at law or in equity, before or by any court 

or governmental authority pending or, to the best of its knowledge, threatened against it, which 

might materially adversely affect the performance by it of its obligations hereunder or under the 

transactions contemplated hereby, or which, in any way, questions the validity, legality or 

enforceability of this Agreement, or any other agreement or instrument entered into by it in 

connection with the transactions contemplated hereby. 
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Schedule 1 

List of SCRRRA Communities 

East Lyme (Including CT Correctional Inst – York prison) 

 

Griswold 

 

Groton 

 

Ledyard 

 

Montville (Including Mohegan Sun Resort, Corrigan Correctional Inst, Radgowski 

Correctional Inst) 

 

New London 

 

North Stonington 

 

Norwich 

 

Preston 

 

Sprague 

 

Stonington 

 

Waterford 

 

Fishers Island 
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Schedule 2 

Waste Delivery Schedule 

Delivery of SCRRRA Tons shall not exceed 145,000 Tons per annum, nor 

13,500 Tons in any one month, 3,020 Tons in any one week, or 850 Tons in any one 

day. 
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Schedule 2.04(b) 

OPERATOR INSURANCE 

During the term of this Agreement, Wheelabrator shall keep in force, the following 

minimum insurance coverages on an occurrence basis with insurance companies rated “A-” or 

better by A.M. Best rating service: 

            Coverages                             Limits of Liability          

 

Commercial General Liability Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Insurance, including contractual     General Aggregate $2,000,000 

and products/completed operations 

 

Commercial Automobile Liability      For bodily injury and 

Insurance, including non-owned and      property damage 

hired and owned vehicle coverage    Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance      Statutory 

Employers’ Liability Insurance    Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

Commercial Excess Umbrella               Per Occurrence $4,000,000 

 

Pollution Insurance      Per Occurrence $5,000,000 

  

Prior to the Service Commencement Date, Wheelabrator shall furnish to SCRRRA 

certificates of insurance or other evidence satisfactory to SCRRRA to the effect that such 

insurance has been procured and is in force.  At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 

any of the insurance policies required herein, Wheelbrator will furnish to SCRRRA certificates 

of insurance, in accordance with the terms hereof, evidencing the renewal of such insurance for 

a period equal to at least the earlier of (a) the expiration of the term of this Agreement and (b) 

one year from the date of expiration of the then current insurance policies. 

The insurance policies required herein (shall be endorsed with, and the certificates of 

insurance shall contain, the following language: 

“Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource Recovery Authority 

(“SCRRRA”) is named as an additional insured with respect to the 

commercial general, excess umbrella, pollution, and automobile liability 

policies set forth herein.  A waiver of the underwriter’s rights of 

subrogation applies in favor of SCRRRA and its affiliates as their interest 

may appear with respect to all policies described herein.” 
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Facility Safety Rules and Regulations  
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Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures for 

Haulers and Drivers 

 

Each Hauler and Driver must follow the signs posted at each facility. Signs are posted at the scale 

house and the entrance to the Tipping Building. When in doubt of what to do, always ask the Loader 

Operator for assistance. 

 

The following are tipping floor/receiving area standards: 

 Do not enter the Tipping Building without receiving directions from the Loader Operator. 

 While on-site, always obey all signs, signals and instructions from the Loader Operator. 

 Be aware of other vehicles around you and drive slowly. 

 The person exiting the delivery vehicle shall always wear the required personal protective equipment 

(PPE) listed below: 

 Hard hat; 

 Sturdy work shoes; (recommended puncture resistant safety toe shoe) 

 Eye protection; and 

 High-visibility vest (ANSI Class II otherwise listed as REFLECTIVE). 

 All delivery vehicle occupants must remain in their vehicles when entry and exit ramps to the tipping 

floor are higher than 4ft above a lower level and the sides or edges of the ramp are not protected by use 

of an OSHA-compliant guardrail system. 

 Dump your load no closer than 15 feet from the pit edge unless specified by the Loader Operator due to 

a potential fall hazard. 

 Not more than one person per waste delivery vehicle may exit a vehicle on the Tipping Floor. All other 

vehicle occupants must remain in the vehicle. 

 The riding of a person on the outside of delivery vehicle is prohibited. 

 The person exiting the vehicle must stay within 6 feet of their vehicle when in the Tipping Building. 

 Vehicles are not to be left unattended. 

 The person exiting the vehicle shall stay at least 15 feet away from the pit opening. 

 After tipping their load, delivery vehicles shall pull away from the pit to a clear, safe area as directed 

within the Tipping Building to close the vehicle doors. 

 Any violation of these rules by a waste delivery vehicle driver or occupant will be reported to the 

hauling company’s district office, the plant manager and facility OHS manager. 

 Smoking is not permitted in the Tipping Building and is only permitted in posted areas. 

 Scavenging is prohibited at all times. 

 Cell phone use is prohibited while driving vehicles or operating the controls of equipment or vehicles. 

Failure to comply with these rules will subject the delivery vehicle occupants and their company to being 

banned from the facility. 
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1. PURPOSE 

This procedure describes the operation requirements and precautions to be taken to ensure 
safe and efficient operations during the receiving and unloading of waste vehicles in the 
tipping floor area. 

2. SCOPE 

This procedure applies to all Wheelabrator facilities to the extent applicable. 

3. REFERENCES 

FM-OPS-COR-410-1 Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures for Haulers and Drivers (Handout) 

FM-OPS-COR-410-2 Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures Violations Form 

OHS-COR-392  Yellow Iron Equipment Safety 

FM-OHS-COR-392-1  Yellow Iron Daily Inspection Form 

4. RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1. PLANT MANAGER; 

4.1.1. Ensures all tipping floor violations with haulers and their company are 
addressed and determines appropriate level of consequence based upon nature 
of violation and frequency. 

4.1.2. Ensures the Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures OPS-COR-410-1 are: 

• Available and communicated at least annually, or with any revision in 
one of the following formats. 

• Signage 

• Hard copy handout 

4.2. OPERATIONS MANAGER:  

4.2.1. Has overall responsibility for the implementation and adherence to this 
procedure. 

 

http://wtiobox/obox/documents/3672
http://wtiobox/obox/documents/3673
http://wtiobox/obox/documents/2298
http://wtiobox/obox/documents/2185
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4.2.2. Reviews this document in conjunction with the local facility OHS manager to: 

• Determine whether supplementary documentation is needed at the plant 
level to address issues specific to the plant or special waste handling 
requirements. 

• Ensures site inspections are conducted as needed to sustain this 
program. 

4.3. OHS MANAGER:  

4.3.1. Reviews this document in conjunction with the local facility OPS manager to: 

• Determine whether supplementary documentation is needed at the plant 
level to address issues specific to the plant or special waste handling 
requirements. 

• Ensures site inspections are conducted as needed to sustain this 
program. 

4.4. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGER:  

4.4.1. Reviews any special waste receiving and handling requirements and provides 
guidance to facility staff. 

4.5. SHIFT SUPERVISORS:   

4.5.1. Have responsibility for proper day-to-day operation of the Tipping Floor and 
adherence to this procedure. 

4.6. LOADER OPERATOR; 

4.6.1. Direct and control all traffic entering and leaving the tipping floor area. 

4.6.2. Ensure that exclusion zones are maintained at all times around vehicles  

4.6.3. Ensure that all delivery drivers follow the posted Safety Rules    
FM-OPS-COR-410-1 Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures for Haulers and 
Drivers. 

4.6.4. Complete the Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures Violations form OPS-COR-
410-2 and turn in to management for each observed violation of this procedure. 

5. PROCEDURE: 

The following general standards apply to all tipping floor and receiving areas.  If a facility 
is not able to comply with these standards a written request for variance shall be made to 
the Director of EHS at the corporate office. 
 

http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-1%20Tipping%20Floor%20Rules%20Drivers-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-1%20Tipping%20Floor%20Rules%20Drivers-1.pdf
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5.1. TIPPING FLOOR GENERAL STANDARDS 

5.1.1. Each facility must post signs at the scale house and the entrance to the Tipping 
Building stating the rules. The minimum size for the sign is 4 feet X 6 feet with 
2-inch high letters. Facilities that do not meet these size requirements shall 
modify signage when it is updated. The following is a summary of the rules 
that must be listed. 
• Do not enter the Tipping Building without receiving directions from the 

Loader Operator. 

• While on-site, always obey all signs, signals and instructions from the Loader 
Operator. 

• Be aware of other vehicles around you and drive slowly. 

• All delivery vehicle occupants must remain in their vehicles when entry and 
exit ramps to the tipping floor are higher than 4ft above a lower level and the 
sides or edges of the ramp are not protected by use of an OSHA-compliant 
guardrail system. 

• Dump your load no closer than 15 feet from the pit edge unless specified by 
the Loader Operator due to a potential fall hazard. 

• Not more than one person per waste delivery vehicle may exit a vehicle on the 
Tipping Floor. All other vehicle occupants must remain in the vehicle. 

• The riding of a person on the outside of delivery vehicle is prohibited. 

• The person exiting the vehicle must stay within 6 feet of their vehicle when in 
the Tipping Building. 

• Vehicles are not to be left unattended. 

• The person exiting the vehicle shall stay at least 15 feet away from the pit 
opening. 

• After tipping their load, delivery vehicles shall pull away from the pit to a 
clear, safe area as directed within the Tipping Building to close the vehicle 
doors. 

• Any violation of these rules by a waste delivery vehicle driver or occupant 
will be reported to the hauling company’s district office, the plant manager 
and facility OHS manager. 

• Smoking is not permitted in the Tipping Building and is only permitted in 
posted areas. 

• Scavenging is prohibited at all times. 

• Cell phone use is prohibited while driving vehicles or operating the controls 
of equipment or vehicles. 

• Failure to comply with these rules will subject the delivery vehicle occupants 
and their company to being banned from the facility. 
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5.2. DELIVERY VEHICLE DUMPING PROCEDURE 

5.2.1. The Loader Operator will direct the driver to enter the Tipping Building and 
signal where to dump. 

5.2.2. If more than one person is required to unload a vehicle, it will be considered a 
“Special Waste” load and shall be handled according to the requirements 
below for Assured Destruction/Special Wastes/International Waste/Witness 
Burn, section 5.8. 

5.2.3. The Loader Operator ensures a minimum 15-foot exclusion zone around each 
delivery vehicle and will designate a bay or location for dumping based on the 
type of vehicle Delivery Vehicles must dump their loads specified by the 
Loader Operator in accordance with the following: 
• Front-end Loader (FEL), Rear-end Loader (REL) will always dump their 

loads 15 feet from the pit edge. 

• Transfer Station Trailers and Roll-off containers may be permitted to dump 
directly into the pit once their doors have been opened in a safe location; the 
doors are secured from moving, and they are directed to do so. 

• At no time shall any part of a delivery truck extend into the pit unless the 
cranes are parked except as noted in section 5.8. 

5.2.4. The directing of traffic shall be made from the Front-end Loader.   

5.3. PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (PPE) 

5.3.1. The person exiting the delivery vehicle, all WTI employees, contractors, 
visitors or others conducting business on the Tipping Floor  shall always wear 
the required personal protective equipment (PPE) listed below: 
• Hard hat; 

• Sturdy work shoes; (recommended puncture resistant safety toe shoe) 

• Eye protection; and 

• High-visibility vest (ANSI Class II otherwise listed as REFLECTIVE). 

5.4. FRONT-END LOADER EQUIPMENT AND INSPECTIONS 

5.4.1. All loaders and other heavy equipment used in the Tipping Building shall be 
equipped with the following equipment: 
• Loud speaker or public address system to clearly communicate with people on 

the Tipping Floor or in other vehicles in the Tipping Building; 

• Working back-up alarms capable of being heard during high ambient noise 
periods; 

• Back-up camera with monitor mounted in the cab; and 

• Blind-spot sensors such as radar or proximity alarms to provide warning of 
fixed objects or pressure sensitive bumpers with integral emergency-stops. 
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5.5. INSPECTIONS 

5.5.1. Loaders and other heavy equipment used on the Tipping Floor are required to 
be inspected each shift per the requirements of OHS-COR-392 Yellow Iron 
Equipment Safety using FM-OHS-COR-392-1 Yellow Iron Daily Inspection 
Form. 

5.5.2. Items that do not meet the inspection criteria shall be reported immediately in 
Tabware to be corrected and the appropriate action be taken as determined by 
plant management. 

5.5.3. At the end of each week the completed inspection form is reviewed by the 
operations/maintenance manager and any identified concerns shall be 
addressed.  

5.6. WORK ACTIVITIES ON THE TIPPING FLOOR 

5.6.1. The Loader Operators are the only Wheelabrator employees routinely allowed 
to work in the Tipping Building. Other employees or contractors are permitted 
to work within the Tipping Building to conduct repair and maintenance 
activities, to conduct waste inspections, to escort visitors and in case of an 
emergency, provided the following conditions are met: 
• Employees or contractors shall, at a minimum, notify the Loader Operator of 

the type and location of the work to be done before starting the work and shall 
mark the area where the work will be done with safety tape, barrels, 
barricades or other equivalent high-visibility markers. 

• Employees or contractors moving closer than 15 feet from the pit opening 
shall notify the Loader Operator and Crane Operator in advance of this 
activity and shall be protected from falling by the use of one or more of the 
following OSHA-compliant systems, as approved by OHS management: 

o Guardrail system 

o Travel-restraint system attached to a rated and approved anchor point 

o Personal fall arrest system attached to a rated and approved anchor 
point 

o A Designated Area warning line system 

•  A plan to protect the worker from falling material shall be coordinated with 
and communicated to the Crane Operator(s) and Shift Supervisor when 
employees move closer than 15 ft. from the pit opening. 

5.7. ESCORTING VISITORS ONTO THE TIPPING FLOOR 

5.7.1. All visitors shall be escorted at all times on the tipping floor and any safety 
precautions communicated prior to entering the tipping area 

5.7.2. Facilities that have clearly delineated and protected “safe zone” pathways 
along the wall of the building do not have to cease Tipping Floor operations 
during the passage of people along the pathway. 

http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/03_HEALTH%20AND%20SAFETY/13_EQUIPMENT%20SAFETY%20PROCEDURES/OHS-COR-392%20Yellow%20Iron%20Equipment%20Safety-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/03_HEALTH%20AND%20SAFETY/13_EQUIPMENT%20SAFETY%20PROCEDURES/OHS-COR-392%20Yellow%20Iron%20Equipment%20Safety-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/03_HEALTH%20AND%20SAFETY/13_EQUIPMENT%20SAFETY%20PROCEDURES/FM-OHS-COR-392-1%20Operators%20Daily%20Yellow%20Iron%20Equip%20Insp-1.doc
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5.7.3. If visitors and the escort need to leave the pathway, the escort is to notify the 
Loader Operator who will then park and shut down the machine.   

5.7.4. In the situation where the loader needs to be operating while visitors and 
escorts are on the tipping floor e.g., waste inspections; a pre-job safe briefing 
will be conducted with the loader operator. 

5.8. ASSURED DESTRUCTION, WITNESS BURNS, SPECIAL WASTES, OR 
INTERNATIONAL WASTES (AD/WB/SW/IW) 

5.8.1. When receiving AD/WB/SW/IW the following general standards apply: 
• Facilities should attempt to schedule deliveries materials during low waste 

delivery traffic hours.  

• After the AD/WB/SW/IW delivery vehicle has parked on the Tipping Floor, 
the Loader Operator shall park the loader until the AD/SW/IWWB vehicle has 
unloaded and all “pedestrians” are off the Tipping Floor, e.g., in the delivery 
vehicle or exited the Tipping Building or located in a safe zone within the 
Tipping Building, to witness the movement/feeding of the waste material. 

• Where AD/WB/SW/IW loads are required to be dumped directly into the pit, 
the tipping floor operator will ensure communication between the crane and 
Loader Operators is maintained. 

•  No AD/WB/SW/IW loads can be dumped directly into the pit without the 
coordination of the crane and Loader Operators. 

• Individuals are not permitted to hand carry AD/WB/SW/IW loads and dump 
them directly into the pit unless the requirements of (Sect 5.8) 
AD/WB/SW/IW and (Sect 5.6) Work Activities on the Tipping Floor are met.  
Alternative methods such as using the loader bucket must be implemented.  
During periods of dumping, personnel must remain in their vehicle or in a 
predetermined safe viewing area. 

5.8.2. More detailed receiving and handling protocols specific to a particular type of 
waste based on environmental, health &safety or operational requirements 
will be developed locally by the management team and communicated 
accordingly. 

5.9. PLANT SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.9.1. All facilities shall mark 15 feet from the pit edge with signs or markers easily 
recognizable by a driver.   

5.9.2. Portable toilets will not be located within the Tipping Building. 

5.9.3. Eye-wash stations shall be made available in close proximity to the tipping 
floor. 
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5.10. TIPPING FLOOR VIOLATIONS 

5.10.1. Any violation of these rules by a waste delivery vehicle driver or occupant 
shall be reported to the hauling company’s District Office, the Plant Manager 
and facility OHS Manager. 

5.10.2. The Loader Operator shall document the hauling company violation using the 
FM-OPS-COR-410-2 Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures Violations Form. 

5.10.3. WTI employees or WTI contractors that do not observe the Tipping Floor 
Rules and Procedures for Haulers and Drivers are subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination. 

5.10.4. Hauling companies and operators that do not follow the tipping floor policy 
are subject to being banned from the facility. 

 

6. RECORDS 

Record Info to be recorded Location 
Yellow Iron Inspection 
Form 

Equipment status OPS Manager 

FM-OPS-COR-410-2 
Tipping Floor Rules and 
Procedures Violations 
Form. 

Tipping Floor Violations Plant Manager 

(Records maintained in accordance with WQMS-4.2.4 Records Control) 

7. REVISION HISTORY 

 

Revision level Approval date Summary of changes Approved by: 

Initial release 08-14-2013 Initial release 
J Bradley, 
Quality 
Representative 

    
 

http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-2%20Tipping%20Floor%20Violations-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-2%20Tipping%20Floor%20Violations-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-2%20Tipping%20Floor%20Violations-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-2%20Tipping%20Floor%20Violations-1.pdf
http://wtiobox/obox/document%20control/01_OPERATIONS/05_PLANT%20SYSTEMS/15_Fuel%20Handling/Tipping%20Floor/FM-OPS-COR-410-2%20Tipping%20Floor%20Violations-1.pdf
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AUTHORIZED HAULER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 During the term of this Agreement, each SCRRRA Community delivering waste directly 

to the Facility shall keep in force, and shall cause all Authorized Haulers to keep in force, the 

following minimum insurance coverages on an occurrence basis with insurance companies rated 

“A-” or better by A.M. Best rating service, or, with respect to the SCRRRA Communities only, 

on a self-insured basis: 

 

            Coverages                                   Limits of Liability          

 

Commercial General Liability      Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Insurance, including contractual     General Aggregate $2,000,000 

and products/completed operations 

 

Commercial Automobile Liability      For bodily injury and 

Insurance, including non-owned and      property damage 

hired and owned vehicle coverage    Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance      Statutory 

Employers’ Liability Insurance    Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

Commercial Excess Umbrella               Per Occurrence $4,000,000 

  

The commercial general liability insurance shall be specifically endorsed to provide 

coverage for the contractual liability accepted by each Authorized Hauler in this Agreement. 

 

Prior to the Service Commencement Date, SCRRRA shall and shall require each 

SCRRRA Community to furnish to Wheelabrator certificates of insurance or other evidence 

satisfactory to Wheelabrator to the effect that such insurance has been procured and is in force.  

At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any of the insurance policies required herein, 

SCRRRA will and will require each SCRRRA Community to furnish or cause to be furnished to 

Wheelabrator certificates of insurance, in accordance with the terms hereof, evidencing the 

renewal of such insurance for a period equal to at least the earlier of (a) the expiration of the 

Term of this Agreement and (b) one year from the date of expiration of the then current insurance 

policies. 

 

The insurance policies required herein for (i) Authorized Haulers or, (ii) if each 

SCRRRA Community delivers municipal solid waste directly to the Facility, each SCRRRA 

Community shall be endorsed with, and the certificates of insurance shall contain, the following 

language: 

 

“Wheelabrator Lisbon, Inc., Granite Acquisition, Inc. (“Wheelabrator”), 

and the Eastern Connecticut Resource Recovery Authority (“ECRRA”) are named 

as an additional insureds with respect to the commercial general, excess umbrella, 

and automobile liability policies set forth herein.  A waiver of the underwriter’s 
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rights of subrogation applies in favor of the Wheelabrator and its affiliates as their 

interest may appear with respect to all policies described herein.” 
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Schedule 3 

SCRRRA AUTHORIZED HAULER’S DECLARATION 

As the duly authorized and designated representative of [insert SCRRRA Authorized 

Hauler’s name] (the “Hauling Company”), I hereby certify for myself and for and on behalf of 

the Hauling Company that: 

1. The Hauling Company has been advised and instructed concerning working 

conditions, including potential hazards and specified rules as described in. 

[FM-OPS-COR-410-1 Tipping Floor Rules and Procedures  

for Haulers and Drivers.] 

2. The Hauling Company acknowledges that it has read the above mentioned policy 

and has communicated this policy to all employees that will deliver to Facility. 

3. List a contact person and phone number for the representative of the Hauling 

Company to whom additional safety and health information can be provided, if needed. 

Name: 

Telephone Number: 

4. The Hauling Company has provided proof of required insurance. 

 

Hauling Company Name: ___________________________________  

Signature: _______________________________________________   

Printed Name: ____________________________________________   

Title: __________________________________________________  

Date: __________________________________________________  
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Corporate Guaranty 
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GUARANTY 

 

Of 

 

GRANITE ACQUISITION, INC..  

for the benefit of the 

 

SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL  

RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

 

in respect of obligations of 

 

WHEELABRAOR LISBON INC. 

 

dated as of March 28, 2019 
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This GUARANTY, made and delivered as of March 28, 2019 (the “Guaranty”), by 

Granite Acquisition, Inc. , a Delaware corporation (the “Guarantor”), for the benefit of the 

Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource Recovery Authority, a body politic and corporate, 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut (the “Authority”), in respect of 

the obligations of Wheelabrator Lisbon Inc. (the “Company”). 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS the Company has entered into an agreement dated the date hereof with the 

Eastern Connecticut Resource Recovery Authority (“ECRRA”) to operate and maintain the 

Authority’s mass burn resource recovery facility for disposing of waste (the “O&M 

Agreement”), which facility is located in Lisbon, Connecticut (together with all additions, 

replacements, appurtenant structures, improvements and equipment in connection therewith, the 

“Facility”) commencing December 19, 2020; 

WHEREAS under the O&M Agreement the Company has the right to enter into waste 

disposal agreements with third parties for its own account; 

WHEREAS the Company and the Authority have entered into an agreement for the 

disposal of Acceptable Waste at the Facility dated the date hereof (the “Service Agreement”) 

commencing January 1, 2021; 

WHEREAS a condition to the Authority entering into the Service Agreement is that the 

Guarantor guarantee the obligations of the Company under the Service Agreement; and 

WHEREAS the Guarantor is willing to enter into this Guaranty because of the benefits 

the Company will receive under the Service Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, as an inducement for the Authority to enter into the Service 

Agreement and in consideration of the foregoing premises and of other good and valuable 

consideration, the Guarantor does hereby covenant and agree with the Authority as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. Definitions 

 

Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 

respective meanings set forth in the Service Agreement. 

 

“Bankrupt” means with respect to any entity, such entity:  

 

(i) files a petition or otherwise commences, authorizes or acquiesces in the 

commencement of a proceeding or cause of action under any bankruptcy, 

insolvency, reorganization or similar law, or has any such petition filed or 

commenced against it;  

 

(ii) makes an assignment or any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; 
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(iii) otherwise becomes bankrupt or insolvent (however evidenced);  

 

(iv) has a liquidator, administrator, receiver, trustee, conservator or similar official 

appointed with respect to it or any substantial portion of its property or assets; 

or  

 

(v) is generally unable to pay its debts as they fall due. 

 

 

SECTION 2. Guaranty. 

 

(a) The Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees to the 

Authority the due and punctual performance of all obligations of the Company under the Service 

Agreement (the “Obligations”). In the event that the Company shall fail to perform any such 

Obligations in accordance with the Service Agreement, the Guarantor will forthwith cause the 

performance and satisfaction of the Obligations on behalf of the Company. The Guarantor shall 

be entitled to all of the benefits, limitations, counterclaims and defenses to which the Company is 

or may be entitled to arising from or in connection with the Service Agreement except those 

benefits, limitations, counterclaims and defenses arising because the Company is or has become 

Bankrupt. 

 

(b) The Guaranty hereunder shall be a continuing, absolute, and unconditional 

guarantee of performance as aforesaid and shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Obligations of the Company under the Service Agreement shall have been fully discharged in 

accordance with the terms and provisions thereof. 

 

(c) This Guaranty and the liability of the Guarantor hereunder shall remain in full 

force and effect and shall in no way be affected or impaired by, and no notice to the Guarantor 

shall be required, except as specifically required in the Service Agreement, in respect of any 

compromise, waiver, settlement, release, renewal, extension, indulgence, change in or 

modification of any of the obligations and liabilities of the Company under the Service 

Agreement; and no failure, neglect, or omission on the part of the Authority or any other person 

to give the Guarantor notice of any default by the Company under the Service Agreement, shall 

affect or impair the liabilities of the Guarantor hereunder. 

 

(d)  This Guaranty shall constitute a guaranty of payment and of performance and not 

of collection, and Guarantor specifically agrees that in the event of a failure by the Company to 

pay or perform any obligation under the Service Agreement constituting an Obligation, the 

Authority shall have the right to proceed first and directly against the Guarantor under this 

Guaranty and without proceeding against the Company or any other person or exhausting any 

other remedies which the Authority may have. Without limiting the foregoing, the Guarantor 

agrees that it shall not be necessary, and that the Guarantor shall not be entitled to require, as a 

condition of enforcing the liability of the Guarantor hereunder, that the Authority (1) file suit or 

proceed to obtain or assert a claim for personal judgment against the Company, (2) make any 

other effort to obtain performance of such Obligation from the Company, including payment, (3) 

foreclose against or seek to realize upon any security for such Obligation, or (4) exercise or 
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assert any other right or remedy to which the Authority is or may be entitled in connection with 

such Obligation.  Upon any failure in the performance of any Obligation, including payment, the 

liability of the Guarantor shall be effective without notice and shall immediately be performed. 

 

(e) The obligations of the Guarantor set forth in Section 2 are absolute, present, 

irrevocable and unconditional and shall remain in full force and effect until the Company shall 

have fully discharged the Obligations in accordance with their respective terms, and shall not be 

subject to any counterclaim, set-off, deduction or defense (other than full and strict compliance 

with, or satisfaction of, such Obligations or as provided in Section 2(a) hereof) based on any 

claim that the Guarantor may have against the Company, the Authority, ECRRA or any other 

person, provided, however, the Guarantor expressly reserves the right to pursue any claims 

against any of the foregoing in a separate proceeding.  Without limiting the foregoing, the 

obligations of the Guarantor to perform an obligation hereunder shall not be released, discharged 

or in any way affected by reason of any of the following (whether with or without notice to, 

knowledge by or further consent of the Guarantor): 

 

(i) the waiver by the Authority of the payment, performance or observance by 

the Company or any other person of the terms and conditions contained in the Service  

Agreement, or any default thereunder; 

 

(ii) the extension by the Authority of the time for performance and discharge 

by the Company of any of the Obligations, including payment, or the extension or 

renewal of this Guaranty or the Service Agreement; 

 

(iii) any exercise of or failure, omission or delay by the Authority in the 

exercise of any right, power or remedy conferred on the Authority with respect to this 

Guaranty or the Service Agreement; 

 

(iv) any permitted transfer or assignment of rights or obligations under the 

Service Agreement or any permitted assignment, conveyance or other transfer of the 

Authority’s interests in the Facility; 

 

(v) any permitted assignment for the purpose of creating a security interest or 

mortgage of all or any part of the respective interests of the Company or the Authority in 

the Facility; 

 

(vi) other than with respect to the obligation of the Company under the Service 

Agreement giving rise to an Obligation, any compromise, settlement, release, renewal, 

extension, indulgence, amendment, change, waiver or modification in respect of any of 

the obligations of the Company under the Service Agreement; 

 

(vii) any compromise, settlement, release, renewal, extension, indulgence, 

amendment, change, waiver or modification in respect of any of the terms or conditions 

of the Service Agreement; 

 

(viii) the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, sale or other 
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disposition of all or substantially all the assets, marshalling of assets and liabilities, 

receivership, insolvency, bankruptcy, assignment for the benefit of creditors, 

reorganization, moratorium, arrangement, composition with creditors or readjustment of, 

or other similar proceedings affecting the Company or the Guarantor or any of the 

property of either of them, or any allegation or contest of the validity of this Guaranty or 

the Service Agreement in any such proceeding (it is specifically understood, consented 

and agreed to that, to the extent permitted by law, this Guaranty shall remain and 

continue in full force and effect and shall be enforceable against Guarantor to the same 

extent and with the same force and effect as if any such proceeding had not been 

instituted, it being the intent and purpose of this Guaranty that Guarantor shall and does 

hereby waive all rights and benefits which might accrue to it by reason of any such 

proceeding), 

 

(ix) any sale or other transfer by the Guarantor of any of the stock or other 

equity interests of the Company, or other interest of the Guarantor in the Company now 

or hereafter owned, directly or indirectly, by the Guarantor, or any change in composition 

of the interests in the Company; 

 

(x) any failure on the part of the Company for any reason to perform or 

comply with any agreement with the Guarantor; 

 

(xi) the invalidity of any security or payment for any reason whatsoever 

(including avoidance with respect to the Company under any enactment relating to 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar proceedings); 

 

(xii) any order directing any person to pay any sum in the bankruptcy, 

insolvency, reorganization or similar proceedings in respect of the Company; 

 

(xiii) any release, settlement, discharge or arrangement which may have been 

given or made on the faith of any payment made by the Company which is subsequently 

returned as a preference; 

 

(xiv) the release or discharge of the Company from the performance of any 

obligation under the Service Agreement by operation of law relating to the bankruptcy or 

insolvency of the Company; or 

 

(xv) any other similar circumstance which might constitute a legal or equitable 

discharge or defense of a surety or a guarantor. 

 

SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties of the Guarantor  

 

The Guarantor hereby represents and warrants a follows: 

 

(a) the Guarantor is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good 

standing under the laws of the State of Delaware; 
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(b) the Guarantor has full power and authority to transact the business in which it is 

engaged and to execute and deliver this Guaranty and to cause the performance of the 

Obligations hereunder; 

 

(c) this Guaranty has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by the Guarantor 

and is a valid and binding agreement of the Guarantor enforceable in accordance with the terms 

hereof, except that (i) such enforcement may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, 

or other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights; and (ii) the remedies 

of specific performance and injunction and other forms of equitable relief may be subject to 

equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may 

be brought; 

 

(d) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, 

before or by any court, public board or body, pending or, to the knowledge of the Guarantor 

threatened against the Guarantor (or, to the knowledge of the Guarantor, any meritorious basis 

therefor), wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would have a material adverse 

effect on the ability of the Guarantor to cause the performance of the Obligations hereunder; 

 

(e) neither the execution and delivery of this Guaranty, nor the performance of the 

terms and provisions hereof, will violate any law or any regulation, order, writ, injunction, or 

decree of any court or governmental instrumentality, or result in a breach of any of the material 

terms, conditions, or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or 

imposition of any mortgage, lien, or encumbrance upon any of the properties or assets of the 

Guarantor pursuant to the terms of the Guarantor’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, or 

any mortgage, indenture, agreement, or instrument to which the Guarantor is a party or by which 

it is bound, except where such violation, breach, default, creation or imposition would not have a 

material adverse effect on the ability of the Guarantor to cause the performance of the 

Obligations hereunder; and 

 

(f) no consent or action of, or filing with, any governmental or public regulatory 

body or authority is required to authorize, or is otherwise required in connection with, the valid 

execution and delivery of this Guaranty. 

 

(g) No Litigation.  There is no action, suit or other proceeding, at law or in equity, 

before or by any court or governmental authority, pending or, to the Guarantor’s knowledge, 

threatened against the Guarantor wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would 

materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Guaranty or any other 

agreement or instrument entered into by the Guarantor in connection with the transactions 

contemplated hereby, or which would materially and adversely affect the performance by the 

Guarantor of its obligations hereunder. 

 

(h) Consideration.  This Guaranty is made in furtherance of the purposes for which 

the Guarantor has been organized, and the assumption by the Guarantor of its obligations 

hereunder will result in direct and material financial benefits to the Guarantor. 
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SECTION 4. Covenants of the Guarantor 

 

(a) The Guarantor covenants and agrees as follows: the Guarantor will at all times 

maintain its corporate existence and will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve 

and keep in full force and effect all franchises and licenses necessary for the conduct of its 

business, except where the failure to so maintain would not have a material adverse effect on the 

ability of the Guarantor to cause the performance of the Obligations hereunder; and provided, the 

Guarantor shall not be required to qualify to do business in any jurisdiction where it is has not 

previously so qualified. 

 

(b) The Guarantor agrees to pay reasonable costs, fees and expenses (including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees) actually incurred by the Authority in enforcing and collecting on this 

Guaranty whether by suit or otherwise to the extent the Authority is the prevailing party.  

 

SECTION 5.  Waivers by the Guarantor. 

 

 The Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably waives as a condition to 

performance by the Guarantor of Obligations: 

 

  (1) notice from the Authority of its acceptance of this Guaranty; 

 

  (2) notices of presentment to or demand of payment from the Company with 

respect to the Obligations, and notice to the Company of default or protest for nonpayment or 

failure by the Company to perform and comply with the obligations of the Company under the 

Service Agreement; 

 

  (3) all notices which may be required by statute, contract, rule of law or 

otherwise to preserve intact any rights against the Guarantor, including; 

 

  (4) any right to the enforcement, assertion or exercise by the Authority of any 

right, power, privilege or remedy under or in respect of the Service Agreement; 

 

  (5) any requirement on the part of the Authority to mitigate damages resulting 

from any default under the Service Agreement (except as required thereby); 

 

  (6) to the fullest extent lawfully possible , all defenses which may now or 

hereafter exist by virtue of any statute of limitation, stay, valuation, moratorium or similar law in 

any way limiting or restricting the liability of the Guarantor hereunder, except the sole defense of 

payment and performance and as provided in Section 2(a) hereof; 

 

  (7) any right to require a proceeding first against the Company or any other 

person or the security provided by or under the Service Agreement; 

 

  (8) any requirement that the Company or any other person be joined as a party 

to any proceeding for the enforcement of any term of the Service Agreement; 
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  (9) the filing of claims by the Authority in the event of the receivership or 

bankruptcy of the Company;  

 

  (10)    any duty on the part of the Authority to disclose to Guarantor any facts the 

Authority may now or hereafter know about the Company, regardless of whether the Authority 

has reason to believe that any such facts materially increase the risk beyond that which 

Guarantor intends to assume, or has reason to believe that such facts are unknown to Guarantor, 

or has a reasonable opportunity to communicate such facts to Guarantor, since Guarantor 

acknowledges that Guarantor is fully responsible for being and keeping informed of the financial 

condition of the Company and of all circumstances bearing on the risk of non-payment or non-

performance of any Obligations: and  

 

  (10) all demands upon the Company or any other person and all other 

formalities not required by the terms of the Service Agreement the omission of any of which, or 

delay in performance of which, might, but for the provisions of this Section 5, by rule of law or 

otherwise, constitute grounds for relieving or discharging the Guarantor in whole or in part from 

its absolute, present, irrevocable, unconditional and continuing obligations hereunder, it being 

the intention of the Guarantor that its obligations hereunder shall not be discharged except by 

performance and then only to the extent of such performance, including payment. 

 

SECTION 6. Subordination of Rights. 

 

 The Guarantor agrees that any right of subrogation or contribution which it may have at 

any time against the Company as a result of any performance, including payment, hereunder is 

hereby fully subordinated to the rights of the Authority hereunder and under the Service 

Agreement and that the Guarantor shall not recover or seek to recover any payment made by it 

hereunder from the Company until the Company or the Guarantor shall have fully paid or 

performed and discharged the Obligations. 

 

SECTION 7.  Separate Obligations; Reinstatement. 

 

 Each obligation of the Guarantor in Section 2 shall (1) to the extent permitted by 

applicable law, constitute an obligation of the Guarantor separate and independent from any 

other obligation under this Guaranty, (2) give rise to a separate and independent cause of action 

against the Guarantor and (3) apply irrespective of any indulgence granted from time to time by 

the Authority. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Guarantor agrees that this 

Guaranty shall continue to be effective or shall be reinstated, as the case may be, if all or any part 

of any payment made hereunder is at any time avoided or rescinded or must otherwise be 

restored or repaid by Authority as a result of bankruptcy, reorganization, dissolution, liquidation 

or insolvency of Company or Guarantor, or otherwise, all as though such payments had not been 

made. 

 

SECTION 8. Miscellaneous 

 

(a) This Guaranty shall be binding upon and enforceable against the Guarantor, its 

successors, or permitted assigns and legal representatives (including any successor by merger or 
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consolidation or any transferee of all or substantially all of the properties or capital stock of the 

Guarantor), whether or not the Guarantor’s obligations hereunder are expressly assumed by such 

successor, assignee or transferee. The obligations and undertakings of the Guarantor under this 

Guaranty shall inure only to the benefit of the Authority and shall inure to no other person, firm, 

corporation, or entity whatsoever. No third party beneficiary rights whatsoever shall be created 

or shall arise by virtue of any term or provision of this Guaranty. No person, firm, corporation, or 

other entity whatsoever, other than the Authority, shall have any right for any purpose 

whatsoever to rely upon any term or provision of this Guaranty or upon the Guarantor’s 

performance of any of its obligations or undertakings herein set forth. This Guaranty and the 

rights of the Authority hereunder shall not be assignable by the Authority without the prior 

written consent of the Guarantor which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

The Guarantor shall not assign its obligations hereunder without first obtaining the express prior 

written consent of the Authority which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

(b) This Guaranty constitutes the entire agreement and supersedes all prior 

agreements and understandings, both written and oral, between the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof. 

 

(c) This Guaranty shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the law of 

the State of Connecticut exclusive of its conflict of laws rules. 

 

(d) The Guarantor irrevocably:  (1) agrees that any suit, action or other legal 

proceeding arising out of this Guaranty may be brought in the courts of the State of Connecticut 

or the courts of the United States located within the State of Connecticut; (2) consents to the 

jurisdiction of each such court in any such suit, action or proceeding; and (3) waives any 

objection which it may have to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in 

any of such courts.  During the term of this Guaranty, any service of any and all process shall be 

made on the Guarantor, and in addition the Guarantor irrevocably designates the Company as its 

agent in the event the Guarantor does not  maintain offices in the State to accept and 

acknowledge on its behalf service of any and all process in any such suit, action or proceeding 

brought in any such court and agrees and consents that any such service of process upon such 

agent shall be taken and held to be valid personal service upon the Guarantor whether or not the 

Guarantor shall then be doing business within the State of Connecticut, and that any such service 

of process shall be of the same force and validity as if service were made upon the Guarantor 

according to the laws governing the validity and requirements of such service in such state, and 

waives all claims of error by reason of any such service.  Such agent shall not have any power or 

authority to enter any appearance or to file any pleadings in connection with any suit, action or 

other legal proceeding against the Guarantor or to conduct the defense of any such suit, action or 

any other legal proceeding. 

 

(e) No delay or failure to exercise any right granted hereunder shall impair such right 

or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but such right may be exercised from time to time 

and as often as may be deemed necessary. Any waiver hereunder shall be in writing and, in the 

event that any representation, warranty, or covenant contained herein is breached by the 

Guarantor which breach shall thereafter be waived, such waiver shall be limited to the particular 

breach so waived and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach hereunder. 
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(f) In the event the Guarantor shall fail to cause the performance of any of the 

Obligations hereunder, the Authority may avail itself of all available remedies at law or at equity 

to enforce its rights hereunder to recover any damages suffered as a result of such failure, but 

only to the extent that such remedies would be available against the Company. 

 

(g) Any provision of this Guaranty which may be determined by competent authority 

to be prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective 

only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining 

provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not 

invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction. To the extent 

permitted by applicable law, the Guarantor hereby waives any provision of law which renders 

any provision hereof prohibited or unenforceable in any respect. 

 

(h) The headings of the Sections of this Guaranty have been inserted for convenience 

of reference only and shall in no way restrict or otherwise modify any of the terms or provisions 

hereof. 

 

(i) This Guaranty may not be amended except in writing signed by the Guarantor and 

the Authority. 

 
SECTION 9. Notice 

 

Any demand, notice, request, instruction, correspondence or other document to be given 

hereunder by any party to another (herein collectively called “Notice”) shall be in writing and 

delivered to the designated party either by (i) personal delivery, (ii) certified U.S. mail sent 

postage prepaid and with return receipt requested, or (iii) by recognized nationwide courier 

service at the following address: 

 
If to the Guarantor:   Wheelabrator Technologies Holdings Inc. 

100 Arboretum Drive 

      Portsmouth NH 03801 

      Attn: General Counsel 

 

 

If to the Authority: Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource    

Authority 

7 Hurlburt Road 

Gales Ferry, CT 06335 

Attention: Executive Director 

E-Mail: DAldridge@SCRRRA.ORG 

 

 

 

 

 



10 
      
\\BA - 065344/000008 - 757849 v8   

With a copy to: 

 

MKRB 

Hartford Square North, 2nd Floor  

10 Columbus Boulevard 

Hartford, CT 06106 

Attention: Attorney Richard L. Barger  

E-Mail: rbarger@mkrb.com 

 

 

Notice given in accordance with the first sentence of this Section 9 shall be deemed 

effective (i) upon actual receipt at the specified address if delivered during the recipient’s normal 

business house, and (ii) at the beginning of the recipient’s next business day after receipt if not 

delivered during the recipient’s normal business hours. Any party may change any address to 

which Notice is to be given it by giving notice of such change of address as proceeded above. 
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EASTERN CONNECTICUT RESOURCE RECOVERY AUTHORITY 

MIDDLETOWN, CONNECTICUT 

 

March 28,2019 

 

 

David Aldridge 

Executive Director 

Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority 

7 Hurlbutt Road 

Gales Ferry, CT 06335  

 

Re: Waste Disposal Agreement between Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery 

Authority (“SCRRRA”) and Wheelabrator Lisbon Inc.(“WTI”) (the “SCRRRA Agreement”) 

 

 

Dear Mr. Aldridge : 

 

We are pleased that the negotiations of the 10-year SCRRRA Agreement have been successful. 

ECRRA agreed not to be a party to SCRRRA Agreement at SCRRRA’s request, but maintains an interest 

in seeing that ECRRA’s resource recovery facility in Lisbon, CT (the “Facility”) is used to meet regional 

waste disposal needs.    

SCRRRA has asked that ECRRA confirm that WTI has sufficient rights under the operation and 

maintenance agreement between ECRRA and WTI (the “O&M Agreement”) to perform the SCRRRA 

Agreement, and has agreed to pay ECRRA, as Facility owner, and as consideration for ECRRA’s 

agreements referenced herein, a fee of $1 per ton of waste delivered under the SCRRRA Agreement 

escalated as provided below. 

ECRRA hereby confirms that (i) it has entered into the O&M Agreement with WTI for the term 

of the SCRRRA Agreement and (ii) under the O&M Agreement WTI will have sufficient rights to accept 

waste delivered under the SCRRRA Agreement SCRRRA.  

SCRRRA hereby agrees to pay ECRRA an amount equal to $1.00 times the number of tons of 

waste delivered and accepted under the SCRRRA Agreement during the term thereof (such $1.00 to be 

escalated in accordance with the CPI escalation of the Tipping Fee (“TF”) in the SCRRRA Agreement, 

i.e., commencing January 1, 2022, the Tipping Fee shall be adjusted on January 1st for each Contract Year 

for the duration of the term of the SCRRRA Agreement in accordance with the following formula: 

TF = BTF x [1 + (CPIx – CPIB)] 

            CPIB 

BTF = the Tipping Fee described in Section 3.02(a) of the SCRRRA Agreement, as 

adjusted pursuant to Section 3.02(b)of the SCRRRA Agreement 
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ANGLE POINT
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MONUMENT FOUND

REFERENCES:

1. "IMPROVEMENT LOCATION SURVEY -PREPARED FOR- SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL
RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY, 132 CONNECTICUT ROUTE 12" DATED AUGUST 29, 2023,
PREPARED BY ROB HELLSTROM LAND SURVEYING INC., HEBRON, CONNECTICUT.

1.1.1. "BOUNDARY MAP PREPARED FOR SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT REGIONAL RESOURCES
RECOVERY AUTHORITY PRESTON, CONN.", SCALE: 1"=100', DATE: 12-22-06, LAST REV:
10-4-12, BY:MEGSON & HEAGLE CIVIL ENGINEERS & LAND SURVEYORS, LLC 81 RANKIN ROAD
GLASTONBURY, CONN. 06033

1.1.2. "PROPERTY SURVEY PREPARED FOR S.C.R.R.R.A RT. 12 KENDALL RD. PRESTON CT.", SCALE:
1"=100', DATE: MAR. 31, 1987, LAST REV: 10-14-88, BY: FRANSEN CONSULTANTS

1.1.3. "CONNECTICUT STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT RIGHT OF WAY MAP TOWN OF PRESTON
GROTON NORWICH ROAD FROM LEDYARD TOWN LINE TO POQUETANUCK HALLVILLE ROAD"
SCALE: 1"=40' DATE: 11-5-1957 SHEETS NO: 2-3 OF 4

2. SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AE LIMIT LINE BASED ON PANEL 0352G, FIRM, NEW LONDON
COUNTY, CONNECTICUT, ALL JURISDICTIONS. MAP NUMBER 09011C0352G, EFFECTIVE DATE JULY
18, 2011.

EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF N/F VOC'S
REALTY, LLC (AS SHOWN PER MAP REFERENCE #2)

132 CONN. ROUTE 12
PROPERTY OF

 SOUTHEASTERN CONNECTICUT
REGIONAL RESOURCES
RECOVERY AUTHORITY

 AREA:
33.67 ACRES (1,466,519 SF)

N/F
JOHN & SANDRA

COURBIN

LIMIT OF AREA LEASED AS SHOWN
PER MAP (REFERENCE #1)

IRON PIN
(FOUND)

N/F
VOC'S REALTY, LLC

N/F
CASTLE REALTY, LLC

20' DRAINAGE RIGHT OF WAY IN
FAVOR OF THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

(PER DEED VOL.39/PAGE 224)

CHAIN LINK FENCE

S57°22'55", 20.66'

ACCESS CORRIDOR EASEMENT
(PER RECORD DEED VOL.91/PAGE 615)
& AS SHOWN ON MAP (REFERENCE #1)

5' WIDE NON DISTURBANCE EASEMENT
IN FAVOR OF THE SCRRRA.
(PER DEED VOL.121/PAGE 316)

PORTION OF 132 CONN. ROUTE 12
LEASED TO THE AMERICAN

RE-FUEL CO. PER MAP (REFERENCE#1)

ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF THE
CONNECTICUT LIGHT & POWER CO. (PER DEED VOL.91/PAGE 826)

CHD MON
(FOUND)

TRAFFIC SIGN

SERVICE
MAN HOLE

SMH

N/F
THOMAS P.

RABVOSKY, JR.

N/F
HAPPYLAND PROPERTIES, LLC

MH

N/F
SAVIN PRESTON,

 LLC

SMH

SMH

OTHER LAND OF
 S.C.R.R.R.A

36" CMP
INV. 41.90

36" CMP
INV. 42.39

24" RCP
INV. 44.93

(FULL OF
SEDIMENT)

24" RCP
INV. 41.10

(FULL OF
SEDIMENT)

UTILITY POLE

SEWER MANHOLE

WATER GATE

SMH

WG

PERMIT SET 11/28/23
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
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8' HEIGHT

12" - 18" DIA.
CONCRETE
 FOOTINGS

BOTTOM TENSION WIRE,
1-1/2" (MAX.) FROM
FINISHED GRADE

TENSION BAR BANDS / CLIPS
12" O.C.

TENSION BAR (TYP.)

2" MESH CHAIN LINK FABRIC
9 GA. CORE (BLACK VINYL COATED)

TERMINAL POST AT CORNER OR END
2-7/8" O.D. SCH. 40 GALV.

INLINE POST CAP

TOP RAIL PER SPECS.

KNUCKLED SELVAGE @ TOP
& BOTTOM (TYP)

MAX 10'-0"

1-7/8" O.D. LINE POSTS (TYP.)

WIRE TIES @ 12" O.C. (TYP.)

30" (4' HIGH)
36" (6-8' HIGH)
42" (10' HIGH)

NOTES:
1) Fence fabric shall be secured to gate frames with knuckled selvage along all edges for all types chain link fence installations.
2) Refer to specifications for all pipe sizing, wire fabric gauges and all other information.
3) All concrete footings around posts at ground line shall be mounded & sloped for positive drainage.
4) All posts & hardware to be hot dipped galvanized Sch. 40.
5) All gates to be secured with 3/8" chain and Everlock System (10-SLC-4). Owner to provide padlocks.

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE 12-18" DIA.

CONCRETE
FOOTINGS3" CLEAR

BOTTOM HINGE
180 DEG. SWING

36
" M

IN

8' HEIGHT

TOP HINGE
180 DEG. SWING

WIDTH VARIES - SEE
PLANS FOR WIDTH

LOCKABLE FORK OR
PLUNGER BAR LATCH

2" MESH CHAIN LINK
FABRIC; 9 GA. CORE;
BLACK VINYL COATED

NOTES:
1. Fence fabric shall be secured to gate frames with knuckled selvage along all edges for all types chain

link fence installations.
2. All concrete footings around posts at ground line shall be mounded & sloped for positive drainage.
3. All posts & hardware to be hot dipped galvanized schedule 40.
4. All gates to be secured with 3/8" chain and Everlock System (10-SLC-4). Owner to provide padlocks.

WIDTH VARIES -  SEE PLANS FOR WIDTH

CHAIN LINK FABRIC

STRETCHER BAR

TRUSS RODS

FABRIC BANDS

TOP HINGE
(180 DEG. SWING)

8' HEIGHT

BOTTOM HINGE
(180 DEG. SWING)

12-18" DIAMETER
CONCRETE FOOTING
SEE SPECS.

12" DIAMETER
CONCRETE
FOOTING

30" (4' HIGH)
36" (6-8' HIGH)
42" (10' HIGH)

PROVIDE KNOX BOX PER WAKE COUNTY
REQUIREMENTS AT EACH DRIVE GATE LOCATION

2" MESH CHAIN LINK FABRIC
9 GA. CORE (BLACK VINYL COATED)

8" WHEEL & TROLLY

TRACK BRACKET

RAIL

5" REAR STEEL WHEEL & TROLLY

CHAINLINK
FENCE
FABRIC

18" DIA. CONCRETE FOOTING

SLOPE FOR DRAINAGE

FENCE POST

GATE FRAME

GROUND PLANE

6'-0" OC MIN / 10'-0" OC MAX

1/2 OF TOTAL GATE OPENING + 2'-0"

5'-0" MIN / 8'-0" MAX

1. Contractor to provide shop drawings for approval prior to fabrication and installation.
2. Reference chainlink fence detail for fence construction.
3. All posts and hardware to be hot-dipped galvanized.
4. Fence fabric to be black vinyl-coated.
5. All concrete footings around posts at ground line shall be mounded & sloped for positive drainage.
6. Gates to be secured with 3/8" chain and Everlock System (10-SLC-4). Owner to provide padlocks.
7. End posts to be 2'-0" behind curb.

WIDTH VARIES / REFER TO PLANS

END POST

LINE POSTS

NOTES:

8"

36
"

2'-0" (MAX)

2 7/8" TUBULAR STEEL TOP RAIL

2 1/2" TUBULAR STEEL VERTICAL POST

2" TUBULAR
STEEL BRACE

1 5/8" TUBULAR STEEL REAR WHEEL TRACK

STANDARD R5-11 SIGN PER
CTDOT / MUTCD SPECS

(AUTHORIZED VEHICLES)

INSTALL SIGN PER NCDOT / MUTCD
SPECS. ALL HARDWARE TO BE

GALVANIZED AND FILED
TO PREVENT THEFT / REMOVAL

GALVANIZED U-CHANNEL POST (TYP.)

ROADWAY DISTANCE FROM ROAD EDGE
PER CTDOT / MUTCD SPECS.

12"

4"
16

"

24
"

CONCRETE FOOTING

WASHED STONE
COMPACTED SUBGRADE
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R
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AUTHORIZED
VEHICLES
ONLY

24
"

30"

STANDARD STOP SIGN PER
CTDOT / MUTCD SPECS (R1-1)

INSTALL SIGN PER NCDOT / MUTCD
SPECS. ALL HARDWARE TO BE

GALVANIZED AND FILED
TO PREVENT THEFT / REMOVAL

GALVANIZED U-CHANNEL POST (TYP.)

ROADWAY DISTANCE FROM ROAD EDGE
PER CTDOT / MUTCD SPECS.
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1 INTRODUCTION 
SCS Engineers (SCS) prepared this Operations and Management Plan (O&MP) for the Southeastern 
Connecticut Regional Resources Recovery Authority (SCRRRA) to support the Solid Waste Permit 
Application to the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (CT DEEP).  
SCRRRA plans to construct and operate a new compost facility, at the proposed site, to compost 
food scraps (targeted feedstock) and wood chips, using aerated static pile (ASP) technology.  The 
drawings (see Appendix A) provided with the application should be reviewed in concert with this 
O&MP. 

The site address is 132 Route 12, Preston and is identified as Lot 132, Block 12.  The lot is owned 
by SCRRRA and is 33.67 acres in total.  A large portion of the lot is leased to Covanta for a waste-to-
energy facility.  The compost facility is located south of Brewster Road and will occupy about 7.5 
acres.  Depth to seasonal high groundwater is estimated at 40 feet, based on work performed by 
Covanta in 2021. 

The proposed facility will be the first and only large-scale aerobic food waste composting facility in 
southeastern Connecticut, fulfilling an infrastructure need in a historically underserved region.  With 
this facility, SCRRRA will provide the infrastructure to create a sustainable, environmentally friendly 
system for diverting organics from the waste stream, to be turned into a high-quality soil amendment 
for farmers and gardeners.  Creation of this facility will not only save money for the SCRRRA member 
towns, in the face of rising waste management costs, but will also greatly benefit the environment in 
many ways, including reducing greenhouse gas emissions produced by trucks and sequestering 
carbon in the natural composting process. 

The overarching goal of this facility is to provide our region with the large-scale infrastructure 
necessary to divert organics from the waste stream and process them into nutrient rich compost for 
the local community.  The SCRRRA facility will:  

• Establish compost infrastructure that will facilitate diversion of food waste from the 
waste stream,  

• Establish large-scale capacity for organics recycling,  
• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions created by incineration and trucking of ash out of the 

region and trucking of purchased soil amendments into the region,  
• Sequester carbon in the natural process of composting,  
• Provide a local source of soil amendment/fertilizer alternative, some of which will be 

provided free to environmental justice communities for their community gardens,  
• Reduce the amount of waste being sent to incinerators and landfills,  
• Educate our communities about organics recycling and compost; and  
• Save our town’s money by lowering waste disposal costs. 

SCRRRA, in conjunction with SCS, completed a successful, CT DEEP-approved food waste 
composting demonstration project in that produced a high-grade soil amendment.  The large-scale 
food waste composting demonstration project was conducted in 2021 at the town of Stonington’s 
transfer station.  The project evaluated the receipt and composting of food scraps using the same 
ASP technology as proposed here.  SCRRRA composted two batches of feedstock material, with 
differing mix ratios of food scraps to wood chips.  This demonstration produced a high-grade soil 
amendment, as corroborated by certified lab tests. 
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2 METHODS OF COMPOSTING 
The SCRRRA compost facility will use a hybrid process, including aerated static piles, followed by 
machine-turned windrows. Aerated Static Pile (ASP) composting is a controlled aerobic 
decomposition process, which entails placing organic materials in piles and maintaining high oxygen 
levels by continually blowing air through the piles.   

COMPOSTING OVERVIEW 
Composting involves the aerobic biological decomposition of organic materials to produce a stable, 
humus‐like material. Composting happens naturally in the environment when organic material falls 
to the earth’s surface. There are many compost technology options for managing most organic 
materials in the waste stream, each striving to optimize the biological conditions in the mass of 
material to achieve the most uniform, mature compost in a reasonable amount of time. 

The composting process is somewhat forgiving in practice, so it is not always necessary to meet ideal 
conditions for making good compost, but the closer the system can get to the ideal, the better and 
more consistent the product will be. The resultant compost product makes a valuable soil 
amendment due to its high organic matter content. Organic materials contain rich nutrients that can 
play an important role in rebuilding soil structures. According to the USCC, compost’s useful 
properties lead to healthier soil and plants, better nutrient cycling and greater fertility, and aid in 
erosion control and storm water management. 

One distinct advantage that composting has compared to other organic processing systems is its 
ability to work at a wide range of scales with both low technology and high technology systems. A 
homeowner’s backyard compost bin or pile can be an effective method for recycling household food 
scraps and yard trimmings. On a larger scale, municipal and private facilities can recycle from as 
little as a few hundred cubic yards of organics to more than 50,000 cubic yards each year and 
handle a variety of materials, including yard trimmings and food scraps.   

When evaluating alternative processing methods or technologies, key criteria include available land 
and labor.  Minimal or passive composting systems with limited management requirements will use 
more land area and take more time. More active composting systems with greater management 
requirements can process the materials more quickly, using less land. While it is important to be 
aware of odor concerns, a properly designed and operated composting system will not create 
problematic, persistent odors, regardless of the technology. 

At a municipal and county level, it is common to compost leaves. The addition of food scraps to 
municipal leaf compost systems is becoming more common. The volume of food scraps that can be 
processed is limited by the amount of leaves/wood chips (or other carbon source) available and the 
ability to achieve a proper mixture. Leaves/wood chips and food scraps are mixed in appropriate 
proportions to create the proper carbon-to-nitrogen ratio; to add bulk to increase the stability of the 
pile; and, to increase porosity to allow greater air flow through the material during the decomposition 
process. 

DESCRIPTION OF SCRRRA COMPOST FACILITY 
The drawings provided with this application should be reviewed in concert with this section. 
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The SCRRRA compost facility includes the following key components, presented in the order of the 
composting process: 

• Scale and Scale House: Incoming organic materials will be weighed upon arrival at the 
facility.  Commercial trucks with food scraps will be directed to the enclosed receiving 
and mixing building.  SCRRRA trucks with wood chips will be directed to the open-air 
wood chip stockpile area.   

• Receiving and mixing building: The receiving and mixing building is a fully-enclosed 
building, with a concrete floor.  Food scraps are unloaded inside the building and 
immediately mixed with wood chips.  Food scraps are not stockpiled for any length of 
time and are incorporated into the composting process on the day of receipt.  The 
organic materials (e.g., food scraps, wood chips) are mixed to create a mixture that 
meets the system’s feedstock requirements (see Section 3). 

• ASP Bays: Mixed organic materials are initially placed in a Phase 1 ASP bay.  Each of the 
two Phase 1 ASP bays is delineated by moveable concrete bin blocks, with a height of 6 
feet, a width of 24 feet, and a length up to 80 feet.  At the end of the Phase 1 process, 
organic materials are moved to a Phase 2 ASP bay.  Each of the two Phase 2 ASP bays is 
delineated by moveable concrete bin blocks, with a height of 6 feet, a width of 24 feet, 
and a length up to 80 feet.  All ASP bays will include a concrete slab, with cast-in-place 
aeration trenches. 

• Curing Windrows: At the end of the Phase 2 process, composted materials are moved to 
a curing windrow.  Each of the four curing windrows will be up to 15 feet in height; up to 
30 feet in width; and, up to 100 feet in length.  The windrow area will include an asphalt 
millings surface. 

• Screening Area: At the end of the curing phase, the composted material will be screened 
to remove non-organic materials and large particles (e.g., sticks, rocks, wood chips) to 
create fine-grade compost for distribution or sale.  The screening area will include an 
asphalt millings surface. 

• Storage Areas: Finished compost will be stored in the sales stockpiles, which will be up to 
15 feet in height; up to 60 feet in width; and, variable in length.  The sales stockpile will 
include an asphalt surface.  Ground wood will be stored in stockpiles, which will be up to 
15 feet in height; up to 30 feet in width; and, variable in length.  The ground wood 
stockpile will include an asphalt millings surface. 

Key terms are defined as follows: 

• Contact Water:  Water that has come in contact with raw feedstocks or active composting 
piles. It does not include water from curing piles, finished compost or product storage 
piles. 

• Curing:  A continuation of the composting process after the high heat stage (i.e, ASP 
process), during which stability and maturity continue to increase. 
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• Stormwater:  Precipitation that has not come into contact with raw feedstocks or active 
composting piles. 

SITE PREPARATION AND MANAGEMENT 
The site will be compacted and graded to a 1.5-2.5% slope, which will prevent ponding of 
stormwater.  The grading of the site, roughly from south to north, will generally match the existing 
grading and stormwater flow patterns.  The drawings indicate the surfacing of the site for the various 
operational areas, which will include concrete, asphalt, or asphalt millings. 

Stormwater will be directed into a new stormwater pond and reused in the process to the extent 
possible.  Any excess stormwater will be directed to the existing site stormwater system (i.e., large 
infiltration basin to the north).  Contact water from the ASP process will be contained and collected in 
a sump.  Contact water will be pumped from the sump to a small above-ground tank and recycled 
back into the process. 

A screening berm, 4 to 5 feet high, will be installed on the south perimeter.  The berm will be planted 
with grass.  Any other areas within the facility boundary, which are not covered by concrete or 
asphalt, will be planted with grass. 

Control of customer access at the site entrances will be managed by physical barriers (gates and 
fences), signage, and staff vigilance. Signs will be located at the main facility entrance on Brewster 
Road. The facility entrance signage will identify the name and address of the site, phone number, 
hours of operation, and accepted materials. Perimeter fencing and locking gates will provide site 
security during non-operating hours and control entry during operating hours. Receiving building and 
scalehouse doors and entrances will be locked and inaccessible during non-operating hours.   

SITE EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES 
Major equipment that will be used at the site is as follows: 

• Front-end loader 

• Aeration blower (1 or 2) 

• Trommel screen 

The front-end loader and trommel screen will include diesel engines, which will be fueled by private 
fuel trucks.  The loader will be parked inside the receiving building during overnight hours.  The 
trommel screen will be stationed outside on a regular basis.  The aeration blower will be powered by 
an electric motor. 

Structures will include the following: 

• Scalehouse, including bathroom 

• Receiving and mixing building 
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The scalehouse is expected to be a modular building/office trailer.  The receiving building is 
expected to be a 75-foot by 100-foot, pre-engineered, fabric-covered structure; see typical photo 
below. 
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3 OVERALL PROCESS 

ACCEPTABLE FEEDSTOCKS AND RECEIVING GUIDELINES 

Acceptable Feedstocks 
The feedstocks will be sourced locally from residential and commercial generators in the SCRRRA 
member towns (i.e., East Lyme, Griswold, Groton, Ledyard, Montville, New London, North Stonington, 
Norwich, Preston, Sprague, Stonington, and Waterford).  SCRRRA’s twelve municipal transfer 
stations have an abundance of yard trimmings and wood waste, as generated within each town, 
which SCRRRA will grind for use in the compost facility as a bulking agent and source of carbon.  
SCRRRA plans to collect clean, source-separated food scraps at each of the municipal transfer 
stations and to partner with experienced organics haulers like Black Earth Compost (Gloucester, MA) 
and Blue Earth Compost (Hartford, CT) to provide curbside pickup to the residents of the SCRRRA 
member towns.  We expect local businesses, schools, hospitals, etc. will also use the facility.  Only 
clean, source-separated food scraps will be accepted.  The specific quantity of food scraps that will 
be received from each type of generator is unknown at this time. 

Initially, SCRRRA does not intend to accept compostable plastics.  SCRRRA will work with the 
member towns and the above-noted haulers to provide outreach and training to the food scrap 
generators, including definition of acceptable materials. 

SCRRRA expects that food scrap quantities will increase over time, with the first-year quantity 
estimated at 1,000 to 2000 tons (about 80 to 170 tons per month).  The system shown in the 
drawings can manage about 5,500 tons of food scraps (about 460 tons per month) and 8,500 tons 
of wood chips per year (see calculations and process flow diagram in Appendix B).  Finished compost 
will range from 3,500 cubic yards in the first year to about 19,000 cubic yards when higher input 
levels are reached.  Due to tourism, food scrap quantities may increase in the summer season. 

The facility will be open to commercial customers only.  The general public will not be allowed to use 
the site for drop-off or pick-up of materials.  Public participation (i.e., drop-off or pick-up of materials) 
will be allowed at the existing municipal transfer stations. 

Grinding of woody material will be performed off-site, which will minimize dust and noise generation 
at the compost facility.  Sufficient stockpiles of wood chips (about one month, or 2600 cubic yards) 
will be placed near the receiving building to facilitate mixing with each batch of food scraps. 

Biosolids will not be accepted. 

Receiving Guidelines 
• Food scrap loads will be weighed on the facility scale. 

• SCRRRA personnel will direct food scrap vehicles to the receiving and mixing building.   

• Incoming food scrap material will be dumped on to a bed of wood chips, as taken from 
the wood chip stockpile.  The amount of wood chips for the bed will be equal to 1.5 times 
the volume of the incoming vehicle (e.g., 15 cubic yards of wood chips for a 10 cubic yard 
food scrap load; wood chips will be measured by full bucket scoops of the loader; e.g., 5-
CY bucket will require 3 scoops). 
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• SCRRRA will visually inspect incoming food scraps for unacceptable materials. Any 
incoming contamination will be recorded and categorized by SCRRRA as to type and 
amount.  Contaminated or unacceptable feedstock will be segregated and disposed as 
MSW at the Lisbon WTE facility, with short-term storage in a dumpster placed inside the 
receiving and mixing building.  SCRRRA will notify the hauler of any contaminated loads.  
The hauler will be responsible to notify the generators of contaminated loads, if 
identification of the generator can be ascertained. 

• After removal of any contamination from each food scrap load, additional wood chips will 
be added to each load per the mix recipe (see below).  The front-end loader will mix the 
materials inside the receiving building. 

• The fully-mixed load will be moved to one of the Phase 1 ASP bays during the same day 
of receipt. 

• Ground wood will be stored outdoors on an asphalt millings pad, as shown on the 
drawings.  This area provides about 2,600 CY of storage capacity. 

Operating Hours 
During the first year, the facility will likely be manned for less than 40 hours per week, as it will take 
time to secure a steady supply of food scraps.  Food scrap deliveries may be limited to certain days 
of the week.  As quantities increase, SCRRRA expects to staff the facility during typical business 
hours; i.e., 5 days per week, 8 hours per day. 

The aeration blower will operate 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, via an automated control 
system.  The blower will operate with a variable frequency drive motor, which will greatly reduce the 
sound from the blower. 

MIXING AND LOADING OF COMPOST BATCHES 

General Guidelines 
The recipes for each batch are based on the following assumptions and guidelines: 

• Food Scrap 
– Moisture Content 50-85% 
– Bulk Density 1400 lb/yd3 

• Wood chip material 
– Moisture Content 35-50% 
– Bulk Density 550 lb/yd3 

• Mix Ratio Range (Food Scrap to Wood Chip) 
– By Weight: 1:1 to 1:2 
– By Volume: 1:3 to 1:4 
– Target Mix Bulk Density: ~800 to 1000 lb/yd3 
– Target Mix Moisture Content: 55-65%  
– Target C:N ratio: 30:1 to 40:1 
– Target Porosity: ~35 - 50% 
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Initially, the food scraps will be mixed with ground wood at a volumetric ratio of 4:1. This will result in 
a conservatively high ratio of carbon to nitrogen to minimize the potential for odors. 

Loading of ASP Bays 
After unloading each food scrap load on to the bed of wood chips, additional wood chips will be 
added to each load per the mix recipe.  An appropriately sized front end loader will then mix and 
blend the materials together.  Blended material will be used to load one of the Phase 1 ASP bays, as 
described below. 

Each Phase 1 ASP bunker is delineated by moveable concrete building blocks, with a height of 6 
feet, a width of 25 feet, and a length of up to 100 feet. The pile is static, and as such does not need 
to be turned. It is aerated via a blower system, which blows ambient air through two trenches 
installed below each bay. This process provides oxygen, enabling the microorganisms responsible for 
breaking down the material to thrive. It also cools the pile to acceptable temperatures. 

Each ASP bay will be loaded as follows: 

• Place a 2-inch to 6-inch base layer of wood chips on the aeration trenches.  

• Load mixed material into the ASP bay.  

• Build the pile up to 10 feet high, creating a uniform trapezoidal shaped pile. 

• Cover the pile with 6 inches of wood chips or finished, unscreened compost.  

• Place the temperature sensor in the pile. 

COMPOST PROCESS 
SCRRRA expects that food scrap quantities will increase over time, with the first-year quantity 
estimated at 1,000 to 2000 tons (about 80 to 170 tons per month).  The system shown in the 
drawings can manage about 5,500 tons of food scraps (about 460 tons per month) and 8,500 tons 
of wood chips per year.  Finished compost will range from 3,500 cubic yards in the first year to about 
19,000 cubic yards when higher input levels are reached. 

Each batch will be composted over a 3-month period, in three phases, as described below. 

Phase 1 ASP 
Phase 1 will include the following activities: 

1. Turn the control system on 

2. Let the automated aeration system operate for 14-21 days.  The blower and control valves 
will modulate to regulate temperatures in the ASP bay to range from 130 to 140 F. 

3. Monitor temperature readings daily via the internet.  Monitor moisture by hand-squeeze 
method. 
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4. At the end of the period, turn off the control system.  

5. Unload and move the material to a Phase 2 bay with the front-end loader, add water as 
needed, re-cover the pile with 6 inches of wood chips or finished, unscreened compost, as a 
biofilter, and return the sensors to the pile. 

Phase 2 ASP 
Phase 2 will include the following activities: 

1. Turn the control system on 

2. Let the automated aeration system operate for 14-21 days. The blower and control valves 
will modulate to regulate temperatures in the ASP bay to range from 130 to 140 F. 

3. Monitor temperature readings daily via the internet.  Monitor moisture by hand-squeeze 
method. 

4. At the end of the period, turn off the control system.  

5. Unload and move the material to a curing windrow with the front-end loader and add water 
as needed. 

Curing Windrow 
Curing will include the following activities: 

1. Turn each windrow once per week. 

2. Monitor temperature readings weekly via the internet. 

The curing phase allows the temperature to drop as the composting process slows and the product 
becomes more stable (about one month).  

After curing, the product will be screened through a trommel. The screen separates out larger wood 
particles from the finer compost that can be sold. The fine product that makes it through the 
screening process will be stored in a Sales Stockpile on the east end of the facility. SCS estimated 
compost demand throughout the year to size this area. Finished Compost will build up during the fall 
and winter, and be drawn down in the spring and summer, as demand spikes for the product. The 
larger material that does not drop through the screen, mostly wood chips that have not fully 
decomposed, will be stored in a separate Overs Stockpile, and will be recycled into the beginning of 
the composting process.  
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4 TESTING AND MONITORING 

MATERIAL QUANTITIES AND TRUCKS 
SCRRRA will measure and record the weight of food scraps at the scalehouse.  SCRRRA will 
volumetrically measure and record the volume of wood chips that are used for the process.  

During the first year, food scrap deliveries may be limited to certain days of the week.  About 5 
truckloads of food scraps per week will be delivered in the first year, and wood chip deliveries will be 
about 1-2 trucks per week.  In future years, there may be 5 trucks of food scraps and 1 truck of wood 
chips per day. 

TEMPERATURE MONITORING AND RECORDKEEPING 
Two temperature probes are used to continuously measure temperatures in each ASP pile, during 
each ASP phase.  The temperature records will document pathogen reduction, based on applicable 
guidelines.  Temperature records will be stored digitally and will be available for review, upon 
request. 

MOISTURE MONITORING 
Moisture will be monitored throughout the compost process.  Moisture will be monitored by a hand 
squeeze test and recorded on a field form. 

SAMPLE COLLECTION AND TESTING OF FINISHED COMPOST 
SCRRRA’s Quality Assurance Plan (QUAP) is participation in the USCC Seal of Testing Assurance (STA) 
Program.  Material samples will be collected per USCC guidelines (see Appendix C).  The samples will 
be sent to a STA Compost-Certified lab for analysis of typical compost parameters, as recommended 
by USCC, including degree of completion (e.g., stability, maturity).  Compost samples will be sent to 
the lab using a Chain of Custody form.   

The STA frequency for lab testing is determined by the annual finished wet tonnage of compost, as 
follows:  

• For 1 - 6,200 tons of compost production: 1 sample per 3 months. 

• For 6,201 to 17,500 tons of compost production: 1 sample per 2 months. 

Initially, SCRRRA will test one sample per 3 months.  As quantities increase, SCRRRA will test one 
sample per 2 months. 

Finished compost will be ready for distribution when lab tests or field tests indicate that it is “stable” 
and “mature”, based on carbon dioxide evolution tests and plant bioassay tests (see Appendix D for 
USCC-lab test results from the SCRRRA pilot test).  Expected users of the finished compost include 
farmers and landscape companies.  While compost will be generated year-round, it is expected that 
most compost will be sold in the Spring and Fall seasons (see Appendix B for estimated seasonal 
distribution). 
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GENERAL INSPECTIONS 
SCRRRA will inspect all physical facilities on a regular and routine basis, including working surfaces, 
fences, contact water sump and pump, stormwater pond inlets and outlets, scales, buildings, and 
other components.  Inspections will be noted in a daily log. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND COMPLAINTS 
SCRRRA will install and maintain a weather station at the scalehouse.  The weather station will 
measure and record air temperature; wind speed and direction; and, barometric pressure. Weather 
records will be stored digitally and will be available for review, upon request. 

Noise from truck traffic will be minimal due to the limited number of trucks delivering materials, as 
noted above.  Further, food scrap trucks will unload inside the receiving building.  Mixing will also 
occur inside the building, which will minimize noise.  The process relies on static piles with only 
occasional movement of the materials by a loader.  As such, noise from loader operation will be kept 
to a minimum. 

Likewise, dust generation will be minimized.  As noted, mixing will occur indoors, which will contain 
and control dust.  During dry conditions, stormwater from the detention pond can be used for dust 
control for the roads and the screening process.  Dust control measures will be noted in a daily log. 

Complaints from the public, if any, can be made by calling the SCRRRA main office.  Compost staff or 
office staff will investigate any complaints and maintain records of complaints and remedies. 
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5 SITE CONTROLS 

LEACHATE/CONTACT WATER CONTROL 
For each ASP bay, the concrete pad will be sloped to drain contact water to the aeration trench, 
which will serve a dual purpose as a below-grade leachate drainage system.  In this approach, 
contact water will be collected from each ASP bay and drained by gravity to a sump.  Contact water 
will be pumped from the sump to a storage tank located near the receiving building.  Contact water 
from the storage tank will be recycled into the process to increase the moisture content of the 
feedstocks and will be used preferentially over other water sources.   

Each ASP bay is expected to generate 50 gallons per day of contact water.  Based on four bays, total 
generation of contact water is 200 gallons per day. 

The concrete floor in the receiving building will be sloped into the building and will be provided with a 
curb to contain any water.  Wood chips will be used to absorb any free water on the concrete floor.  
No floor drains will be provided in the receiving building. 

STORMWATER CONTROL 
The site will be compacted and graded to a 1.5-2.5% slope, which will prevent ponding of 
stormwater.  The grading of the site, roughly from south to north, will generally match the existing 
grading and stormwater flow patterns.   

Stormwater will be directed into a new stormwater pond and reused in the process to the extent 
possible.  Any excess stormwater will be directed to the existing site stormwater system (i.e., large 
infiltration basin to the north).   

Swales are provided on the east and west sides of the facility to prevent stormwater run-on to the 
compost areas.  The east-side swale discharges to the existing infiltration basin, which is consistent 
with current stormwater management. 

ODOR CONTROL 
Odors will be controlled using a combination of techniques.  Food scrap materials will be received 
inside the receiving building and processed daily, such that no food scrap material will be stored in 
the building overnight.  Food scraps will be mixed with wood chips on the same day of receipt and 
moved into a Phase 1 ASP bay.  If the food scrap materials cannot be mixed and/or moved within the 
same day due to an upset condition, the materials will be covered with wood chips, four to six inches 
in depth, to act as a biofilter.   

The ASP system will maintain conditions at optimal levels for temperature and oxygen, and thereby 
minimize odor generation.  The blower is designed for high flow capacity, such that oxygen levels in 
the ASP bays will remain high and temperatures will be controlled to the optimal range for the 
microbes (i.e., 130 to 140 F).  Most odor-causing compounds are generated and broken down in the 
first two weeks of the process.  A biocover will be placed over the top of the ASP bays to reduce 
emissions. This biocover will consist of unscreened, finished compost or ground wood waste. The 
biocover will be wetted on a regular basis to improve emissions reductions.  Should offensive odors 
be detected, placement of a thicker biocover over the top of the ASP bays can reduce emissions.  
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While turning of the curing windrows can release odors, windrow composting is a secondary process 
that occurs after the odor-potential phase has passed. Turning not only re- mixes the material in the 
windrows, it aerates and breaks open feedstock pieces allowing better access for the microbes to 
degrade the material. Consistent turning to maintain well managed materials will generate less 
odors than allowing the piles to sit and possibly become anaerobic. 

If odors are detected onsite, the source of the odor will be identified, and appropriate steps will be 
implemented to eliminate them.  If notification of off-site odor is received, the source of the odor will 
be identified and remedial action will be taken, if necessary.  Remediation activities may consist of 
additional aeration, additional capping of exposed materials, removal of materials from the site, or a 
combination of these techniques.  Odor records will be noted in a daily log. 

Ponded water and anaerobic conditions can generate odors. Water will be managed at the site to 
collect and contain contact water, and prevent ponding of water in areas other than the detention 
pond. Utilization of water from the pond to moisture condition the initial feedstock mix will help to 
avoid buildup of stagnant conditions that could lead to offensive odors. If odors from the pond 
become an issue, additional controls can be implemented such as oxygenating using aerators or 
stirring mechanisms. 

FIRE PREVENTION  
The system includes near-continuous monitoring of temperature.  The temperature is monitored for 
high temperature events, which can be avoided by turning on the blower system to cool the pile, if 
needed.  The control system will provide automated alerts to SCRRRA staff in the case of extreme 
high temperatures (greater than 180 F). 

The Gales Ferry Fire Company is located about 3 miles south of the SCRRRA facility on Route 12.  
SCRRRA will conduct a tour of the compost facility for the Fire Company, once the facility is 
constructed. 

VECTOR CONTROL 
The covered and mixed condition of the test pile will minimize the ability for pests to access the in-
process feedstock materials.  Further, the mixed materials will quickly attain high temperatures, 
above 130 F, which will offer little to no appeal for vectors. 
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6 EMERGENCY RESPONSE PROTOCOLS 
During the first year, the facility will likely be manned for less than 40 hours per week, as it will take 
time to secure a steady supply of food scraps.  Food scrap deliveries may be limited to certain days 
of the week.  As quantities increase, SCRRRA expects to staff the facility during typical business 
hours; i.e., 5 days per week, 8 hours per day. 

The system includes near-continuous monitoring of temperature.  The temperature is monitored for 
high temperature events, which can be avoided by turning on the blower system to cool the pile, if 
needed.  The control system will provide automated alerts to SCRRRA staff in the case of extreme 
high temperatures. 

In the unlikely scenario of a fire or other emergency, SCRRRA staff will call 911 to alert the local fire 
department and emergency personnel.  SCRRRA staff will muster at the employee parking area to 
await emergency personnel. 
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7 SCHEDULE 
During the first year, the facility will likely be manned for less than 40 hours per week, as it will take 
time to secure a steady supply of food scraps.  Food scrap deliveries may be limited to certain days 
of the week.  As quantities increase, SCRRRA expects to staff the facility during typical business 
hours; i.e., 5 days per week, 8 hours per day. 

The aeration blower will operate 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, via an automated control 
system.   

Each batch of materials will be composted over a 2-month period, in three phases, as described 
above, to create mature compost. 
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8 FACILITY MANAGEMENT 
The compost facility will be managed and operated by properly trained SCRRRA staff, with support 
from SCS staff, as follows: 

• SCRRRA 
– Dave Aldridge: Dave is SCRRRA’s executive director.  Dave attended the 2019 

Composting Council Research and Education Foundation (CCREF) Compost 
Operator’s Training Course at Cornell University from August 5 through 9, 2019. This 
40-hr, 5-day course focused on operating a successful composting facility, and 
included in-depth lectures, as well as indoor and outdoor activities. 

– Winston Averill: Winston is SCRRRA’s recycling coordinator. Winston attended the 
above-noted CCREF course in August 2019. 

• SCS 
– Greg McCarron: Greg is SCS’ “National Expert” for organics management, which 

includes composting.  Greg attended the Solid Waste Association of North America 
(SWANA) “Managing Composting Programs” training course in Boston in February 
2019.  Greg also attended the US Composting Council (USCC) “Compost 
Manufacturing” training course in New Jersey in September 2020.  Greg is a USCC 
Certified Composting Professional™. 

– Will Conrad: Will oversees SCS’ compost operations in New England and previously 
was the facility manager at a compost facility on Cape Cod.  Will is also a USCC 
Certified Composting Professional™. 

http://www.scsengineers.com/


Purpose
The purpose of this workbook is to calculate the Mass and Volume Balance for SCRRRA's compost program in order to estimate site acreage 
requirements.

General Description 
of Model

This model uses presumed yearly feedstock data to create a quarterly model of composting requirements. This data, along with some 
assumptions and inputs based on SCS expertise and conversations with SCRRRA, is used in a Mass/Volume Balance model to estimate 
volumes for each step in the process flow. The process is defined by the amount of food waste received and a volumetric ratio of food waste 
to wood chips. As such, stockpiles and deficits for each component,  besides food, are calculated and presented. Sales stockpiles are also 
calculated based on projected sales values.

PFD
The Process Flow Diagram presents each step of the process along with arrows to show flow, to match the Mass Balance Sheet stream 
numbers.

Inputs
This tab includes known or estimated values that are used throughout the rest of the workbook. These include component densities, volume 
reductions for each step, estimated sales, and stockpile and windrow cross sectional areas.

Mass Balance
This sheet is an overview of how volume changes in each step of the compost process. The inputs are driven by incoming food values and the 
composting recipe, and the sales portion is driven by expected sales. Stockpiles are described in later sheets.

Curing Windrows This sheet uses the Windrow Length to look up the number of windrows required.

Area Requirements
This sheet summarizes the area requirements for the input stockpiles, windrows, and sales stockpile.  This sheet should help plan for 
maximum stockpile areas in planning, and also help see how the areas change over the year, from minimum to maximum piles

Questions Questions that arise as we are working on the project are placed here

Description of Tabs
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20% REDUCTION

20% REDUCTION

5% REDUCTION

20% OVERS

PHASE 1 ASP

PHASE 2 ASP

BUNKERS (0.5 
MONTHS)

BUNKERS (0.5 
MONTH)

CURING (1 MONTH)

WOOD CHIPS

COMPOST TO 
SCREEN

SCREENED 
COMPOST

INCOMING SSO
RECEIVING 
BUILDING



2034 <-Enter Year for Analysis Here

Food Scraps Wood Chips
1 4

Waste Type:
Annual growth 

rate:
Year (tons) (CY) (tons) (CY)
2025 2,300 3,286 3,614 13,143
2026 2,530 3,614 3,976 14,457
2027 2,783 3,976 4,373 15,903
2028 3,061 4,373 4,811 17,493
2029 3,367 4,811 5,292 19,242
2030 3,704 5,292 5,821 21,167
2031 4,075 5,821 6,403 23,283
2032 4,482 6,403 7,043 25,612
2033 4,930 7,043 7,748 28,173
2034 5,423 7,748 8,522 30,990
2034 5,423 7,748 8,522 30,990 Selected Yea

Quarter Food Wood Chips Sales
Q1 25% 25% 10%
Q2 25% 25% 40%
Q3 25% 25% 30%
Q4 25% 25% 20%

0%
0%

20%
20%
5%

20%

INPUTS

Volume Ratio

Waste Acceptance

10%
Wood Chips

Quarterly Distributions

Woodchips Overs
Recycling Rate

Food Scraps

Volume Reductions

Curing Stockpile to Product Stockpile

Food to Phase 1 ASP
Wood to Phase 1 ASP
Phase 1 ASP
Phase 2 ASP
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Height ft 15
Width ft 30

Area ft2 225
Length ft calculate
Time months 1
Total Height ft 10
Block Height ft 6
Width ft 24

Area ft2 192
Length ft 80
Volume CY 569
Time months 0.5
Total Height ft 10
Block Height ft 6
Width ft 24

Area ft2 192
Length ft 80
Volume CY 569
Time months 0.5
Height ft 15
Width ft 30

Area ft2 225
Length ft calculate
Time months 1
Height ft 15
Width ft 30

Area ft2 225
Length ft calculate
Time months 0.5
Height ft 15
Width ft 60

Area ft2 675 1:1 slopes; trapezoid

Food Waste lb/cy 1,400
Wood Chips lb/cy 550
Water lb/cy 1,685

Cu
rin

g
Sa

le
s

O
ve

rs

Densities

Dimensions
W

oo
d 

Ch
ip

s 
St

oc
kp

ile
Ph

as
e 

1 
AS

P
Ph

as
e 

2 
AS

P
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2034

Quarter 1
Mass (tons) 1,356 2,131
Density (lb/CY) 1,400 550
Volume (CY) 1,937 7,748 9,684 7,748 6,198 5,888 1,178 4,711 1,884 2,826
% (by volume) 20% 80% 100%

Quarter 2
Mass (tons) 1,356 2,131
Density (lb/CY) 1,400 550
Volume (CY) 1,937 7,748 9,684 7,748 6,198 5,888 1,178 4,711 7,537 0
% (by volume) 20% 80% 100%

Quarter 3
Mass (tons) 1,356 2,131
Density (lb/CY) 1,400 550
Volume (CY) 1,937 7,748 9,684 7,748 6,198 5,888 1,178 4,711 5,653 -942
% (by volume) 20% 80% 100%

Quarter 4
Mass (tons) 1,356 2,131
Density (lb/CY) 1,400 550
Volume (CY) 1,937 7,748 9,684 7,748 6,198 5,888 1,178 4,711 3,768 0
% (by volume) 20% 80% 100%

Total
Mass (tons) 5,423 8,522 13,946
Density (lb/CY) 1,400 550 720
Volume (CY) 7,748 30,990 38,738 30,990 24,792 23,553 4,711 18,842 18,842 0
% (by volume) 20% 80% 100%

MASS BALANCE FOR SELECTED YEAR

End of 
Phase 1

End of 
Phase 2

ASP Sales

Compost 
Sold

Feedstocks Curing

Finished 
Compost

Sales 
Stockpile

End of 
Curing

Wood Chip 
Recycle

Total 
Input to 

ASP
Stream Description Food 

Waste Wood Chips
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2,066 cy
248 ft

3
10 ft
20 ft

Row # Length (ft) Cumulative Length
0 0 0
1 100 100
2 100 200
3 100 300
4 100 400
5 100 500

Number of Rows
Curing Length Needed

Aisle Width
Outer Width

Volume for Curing



Volume (CY)
Cross-Sectional 

Area (sqft) Width (ft) Length (ft) Rows Needed Area (sqft) Area (AC)
Wood Chips Stockpile 2,583 225 30 310 9,297 0.21
Overs Stockpile 196 225 30 24 707 0.02
Phase 1 ASP 1,614 192 24 227 3 5,760 0.13
Phase 2 ASP 1,291 192 24 182 3 5,760 0.13
Curing Windrows 2,066 225 30 248 3 37,188 0.85
Sales Stockpile 4,711 675 60 188 11,305 0.26
Total 70,017 1.61

Footprint







Client: SCS ENGINEERS Product: Compost Date Reported: 01/14/22
Date Sampled: 12/30/21 Laboratory # C22-102

4 EXECUTIVE BLVD Date Received: 01/03/22 Reveiwed by Brent Thyssen, CPSSc
SUFFERN, NY 10901 Invoice #: C22-102 PO#: 02-NY00556

845-357-1052 Amount: $190.00

Method As Received Dry Wt. Units Typical Range

Moisture 70 C 60 % ************************** 15 to 40

Solids 70 C 40 % *********** 60 to 85

pH 1:5 7.3 NA SU ********************* 5.5 to 8.5

E.C. (Sol. Salts) 1:5 0.26 0.64 mmhos/cm ****** below 5.0

Total N TMECC 04.02D 0.48 1.19 % ************* 1 to 5

Organic C TMECC 04.01A 9.1 22.6 % ************* 18 to 45

Organic Matter TMECC 05.07A 15.6 39.0 % ******* 40 to 60

Ash 550 C 24.5 61.0 % ******************************** 40 to 60

Ammonium -N TMECC 05.02C 40 99 mg/kg *************** 90 to 450

Nitrate-N TMECC 04.02B 3.8 9.5 mg/kg *** 50 to 250

C/N ratio 19 ratio ************* 18 to 24

Method Normal

CO2 Evolution TMECC 05.08 0.3 ** 1 to 7

TMECC 05.08 0.4 ***** 0.5 to 5

Very Stable

Method Units Normal
Emergence TMECC 05.05A 93 % ****************************************** 80 to 100

Vigor TMECC 05.05A 97 % ****************************************** 85 to 100
Maturity Mature

inches mm % Passing Inerts % by wt.

3 76.2 100

2 50 100 Total Plastic 0.00

1 25 100 Film Plastic 0.00

3/4 19.1 100 Glass 0.00

5/8 16 100 Metal 0.00

1/2 12.5 100  0.00

3/8 9.5 100

1/4 6.3 99

Sample was received, handled and tested in accordance with TMECC procedures

Particle Size Distribution  TMECC 2.02 B & C

Low

Cucumber Bioassay

Normal

.

High

High
Nutrients

NormalLow

Stability Rating

Respiration & Stability

mg CO2-C/g OM/day

Low NormalUnits

mg CO2-C/g TS/day
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